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Independent Auditors’ Report

i

To

The Members, s
SRINAGAR BANIHAL EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the financial statements
Opinion '

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SRINAGAR BANIHAL EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as of 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(Including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Statement Cash Flow for

" the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(hereina&er referred to as “Financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accotinting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, the Loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date. '

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. '

L3

.Emphasis of Matter

a) We also draw attention to Note 35 to the accompanying financial statements, where deductions in
earlier years were made by NHAI for Rs 2440.23 Mn from the annuities to the company and against
which the independent engineer has now recommended for release of Rs 1872.75 Mn. NHAI has made
further deductions of Rs 42.12 Mn during the year from the Annuities of the company. The company has
{nitiated for all the balance recoveries from NHAI and is confident that the amount is fully recoverable.
Pending the ultimate outcome of these matters, which is presently unascertainable, no adjustments
have been made in the accompanying financial statements.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of above matter

" Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report théreon-
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The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other 1nformat10n The other information compnses
the Management Discussion and Analysis and Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board’s Report including Annexures
to Board’s Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon. '

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board’s Report Including Annexures to Board’'s Report, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view .
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and.
changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,

_including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules

issued there under. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Respo:isibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue dn auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, lkﬁ“dmdually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basns of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and mamtam professronal _

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

. error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting




from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has an adequate internal financial controls system in place and

_the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or condltlons may
cause the Company to cease to continue-as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,-
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

‘Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements

" may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our

audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified

© - . misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with gm;’ernance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. '

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

‘1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure -A a statement bn the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. : '

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:.

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

" (b) [nour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

(c] The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the
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(d)-

(e

®

(8

(h)

statement of changes in Equity and the statement of Cash flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account. :

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accountmg Standards

- specified under Section 133 of the Act, relevant rules issued there under.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Seciion 164 (2) of the Act.

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over ﬁnanmal reporting of the
Company and the operating effectweness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure
B”; and

The company has not paid or provided any managerlal remuneration during the year. Hence, with
respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements - Refer note 36 to the standalone financial statements.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts mcIudmg derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educatlon and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
.as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of

funds} by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
{(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,

that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on hehalf of the

Ultimate Beneficiaries; ' '

(b} The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,.
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

{c) Based on such audit precedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v.  The Company has not declared or pald any dividend during the year.
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vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with. “

M/s S.K Mittal & co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 001135N

Partner
M No. 010633 '

UDIN: 24010633BKGUJY1764

Place: Delhi
Date: 24.05.2024
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Annexure- A to the Independent Auditors' Report'

The Annexure referred to the independent auditors’ report to the members of the company on the ﬁnancnal

statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, we report that:

i)

ii

iii

iv

a} (A) The company is rnaintaining proper records showing: full particulérs, including
quantitative details and situation with respect to its property, plant and equipment.

(B) The company does not have any intangible assets.

b} . The property, plant and equipment of the company have been physically verified by the.
management at regular intervals, which in our opinion is reasonable considering the size.
of the company and the nature of its property, plant and equipment. No material
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification during the year.

¢} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our \
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable propertles are
held in the name of the Company.

d) The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant & Equlpment and Intangible
assets during the year.

e) According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, we report that no proceedings have been
initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at March 31, 2024 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45
of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the-
company does not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements under sub-
clause (a) of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

b) The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (b) of clause (ii) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, we report that the company has not made any
investments in, nor provided any guarantee or security nor granted any loans or advances in
the nature of loans, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

Hence, the reporting requ1rements under clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable. :

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not advanced any loans to directors / to a company in which the Director is interested to’
which the provisions of section 185 of the Act apply and has not made any investments to
which the provision of section 186 of the Act apply. Further, based on the information and
explanations given to us, being an infrastructure company, the provisions of section 186 of the
Act to the extent of loans, guarantees and securities granied are not applicable to the
company. Hence, the reportmg requirements under clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are
not applicable.

In our opinion and according % " Raing
has not accepted any deposifs:¢

f
E g
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vii

viii)

ix)

X)

.

issued by Reserve Bank of India and the prbvisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed such records
and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to
determme whether they are accurate or complete.

.a)

b}

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us the company has been regular in depositing the undisputed
statutory dues including Income-Tax, Gst, Esi and PF except labour cess with the
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed labour cess of
Rs. 3,70,95,876 under BOCWW Act in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues are in
arrears as at March 31,2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they
become payable.

According to the information and explanations given-to us and the records of the
company examined by us, there are no dues of Income Tax or GST or cess as-at 31st
March, 2024 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations g_iven'to us, there are no
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that has been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

a)

b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the books of
accounts and records examined by us, in our opinion, the company has not defaulted in
the repayment of loans or other borrowings or the payment of interest thereon to any
lender which were outstanding as on 31t March 2024. '

According to the information and explanations given to us ahd as represented to us by
the management, the company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanatzons glven to us, no fresh
term loans have been taken during the year.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, in our opinion, no
funds raised on short term basis have been prima-facie being used for long term
purposes during the year.

The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and hence the
reporting requirements under sub-clause (¢) of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the order are
not applicable.

The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and hence the.
reporting requirements under sub clause (f) of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the order are-
not applicable. . .

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
examination of the books of accounts and other records, we report that the company has
not raised any moneys raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, the reporting requirements under
sub-clause {(a) of clause (x) of payaBFENES

Tsof the order are not applicable.
'Cb

]
i )




xi)

Xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

' x.v)

xvii)

xviii)

Xix)

b) According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
examination of the books of accounts and other records, we réport that the company has
not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible} during the year. :

a) Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpese of reporting the true and
fair view of the financial statements and as per the information and explanations given to
us by the management, we report that we have neither come across any instance of fraud
by the company or on the company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the management.

b)  No report under sub-séction (12} of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government during the year and till the date of this report.

¢) According to the information and explanations provided to us, no whistle blower
complaints have been received during the year and upto the date of this report.

The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under clause (xii)
of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. :

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into by the
company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards. '

a) In our opinion, the company has-an internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
company, in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

As per the information and explanations provided to us, the coinpa,ny has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them and hence the
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the company,

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

company is not required to be registered under Section 45 - IA of the Reserve Bank of

- India, 1934. Hence, the reporting requirements under sub-clause (a), (b) and (c) of clause
(xvi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. ' : '

b) According to the information and explanation given-to us by the management, in our
opinion, there is no Core Investment Company as part of the Group. Hence, the reporting
requirements under sub-clause (d) of clause (xvi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable.

The company has incurred cash loss of Rs. 458.76 million during the year ended March 31,

2024, -

There has been no resignation of statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of assets and-
payment of financial liabilities, other jnfs; mgtion accompanying the financial statements and




examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,

which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit

report indicating that the company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date’
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet

date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company.

We further state that our reporting is based on the facts upto the date of the audit report and

we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period

of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they

fall due.

S:x) The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the company for the year under
audit and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (a) & (b) of clause (xx) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. '

M/s S.K Mittal & co
Chiartered Accoun
FRN: 001135N

rishan Sarup Mittal 25D 7o

Partner
M No. 010633
UDIN: 24010633BKGUJY1764

Place: Delhi
Date: 24.05.2024
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Annexure- B to the Independent Auditors' Report:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Su‘b-sectioh 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) ' '

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SRINAGAR BANIHAL
EXPRESSWAY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. '

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Centrols
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maihtéin'ing internal financial controls

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls

-over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT’). These
. Tesponsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls

that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. '

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICA[ and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. '

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect-the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded

ReEessary to permit preparaticn of finangial statements in accordance alibgenecally accented accoyptine
feiXof the company are being made only in accordance with

the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance

authorizations of management and.y ir%to By Of



regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dlsposmon of the company s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

. possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
o or fraud may occur ancl not be detected. Also pro] ectlons of any evaluatlon of the 1nternal ﬁnancnal controls

ﬁnanaal reportmg may become madequate beCause of changes in conclltlons or that the degree of.'
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. :

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over

_ financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31st March 2024, based on the internal conirol -over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of’
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. : .

M/s S.K Mittal & co Y . _ _
_. Chal‘tePEdACCOHHtaﬂt- - W ettt

Krishan Sarup Mittal

Pariner

M No. 010633

UDIN: 240106633BKGUJY1764

Date: 24.05.2024
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1.

Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Reporting entity

Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited (the ‘Company’) is a company domiciled in Indiz, with its registered office
situated at Ramky Grandiose, 15th Floor, Sy No 136/2 & 4, Gachibowli, Hyderabad, Telangana. The Company has
been incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 as a Special Purpose Vehicle (*SPV") promoted
by Ramky Infrastructure Limited ('RIL’) and Jiangsu Provincial Transportation Engineering Group Co. Limited.

The project of the Company consists of design, construction, development, finance, operation and maintenance of four
laning of a section on the Srinagar-Banihal National Highway 1 in the state of Jammu and Kashmir on design, build,
finance, operate and transfer (DBFOT) annuity basis for a period of 20 years.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statementis have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS}) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 natified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’)
and other reievant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Direciors on 24 May 2024,

Details of the Company's accounting policies are included in Note3.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupaes (INR}, which is also the Company’s functional cusrency. All
amounts have been rounded-off 1o the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the hisiorical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement Basis

Certain financial assets and liabilitiss : Fair value

Use of estimates and judgment

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized prospectively.

Judgments

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

— Note 3(e)(ii) - realization of deferred tax assets
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

information about assumptions and estimation uncerfainiies that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the vear ended 31 March 2024 is included in the following notes:

— Note 3(d){ii) — impairment test of non-financial assets;

— Note 3(e)ii) ~ recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried
forward can be used;

~ Notes 3(f} — recognition and measurement of provisions: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an
outflow of resources; )

- Note 3(d) (i) — impairment of financial assets.




Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

E. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markeis for identical asseis or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either direcily
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inpuis for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {uncbservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible.
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest
level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers baiween levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the ¢hange has oocurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

Note 3(a) — financial instruments;

3. Significant accounting policies
a. Financial instruments
Non-detivative financial instruments

All financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value
of the financial asseis. Purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
astablished by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trade) are recognized on trade date. White,
lcans and barrowings and payable are recognized net of directly atiributable transactions costs.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified in the Tollowing
categories: non-derjvative financial assets at amortized cost; non dervative financial liabilities at amortized cost.

The classification of financial instruments depends on the objective of the business model for which it is held.
Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition

Non- derivative financial assets

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss.,

The company's financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, employee and other advances, trade receivables
and eligible current and non-current assets.

Non-derivative financial assets - service concession arrangements

The Company recognises a financial asset arising from a service concession arangemeni when it has an
unconditional coniractual right fo receive cash or ancther financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor of the
concession for the construction or upgrade services provided, Such financial assets are measured at fair value upon
initial recognition and classified as trade receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, such financial assels are
measured at amortized cost.




Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Non-derivative financial liabilities !

Financial liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest method.

The company has the following financial liabilities: loans and borrowings, trade and other payables including deposits
collected from varigus parties.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only

when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them
on a net basis or io realise the asset and setile the liability simultaneously.

b. Property, plant and equipment
i. Recognition and measurement

ltems of propery, plant and equipment are 'measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumnulated impairment losses, if any

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the
item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated cosis of dismantling and removing the item and
resioring ihe site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed itern of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labor,
any other costs directly aftributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for
as separate items (major components} of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expendiiure will flow to the Company. '

ili. Depreciation

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as
follows:

Asset ’ Management estimate Useful life as per
of useful [life Schedule 1l

Office equipment Syears Syears

Furniture and fixtures 10 years 10 years

Computer equipment 3 years 3 years

Depreciation method, usefut lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of
useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expedts to use these assets.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from {upto) the date on which asset is ready
for use (disposed of). )




Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

¢. Revenue recognition
i Construction contracts

Contract revenue inchudes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably.

If the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised in profit or loss in
proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. Contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable.

Contract costs are recognised as eipense‘s as incurred unless they create an asset related to future contract activity.
An expected loss on a contract is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

ii. Service concesslon arrangements

Revenue related to construction or upgrade services provided under a service concession arrangement is recognised
based on the stage of completion of the work performed, consistent with the Company’s accounting policy on
recognising revenue on construction contacts (see (i) ahove). Operation or service revenue is recognised in the period
in which the services are provided by the Company.

d. Impairment
L Impairment of financial instrumenis

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Cempany applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

« Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, deposits, and bank
balance.
+ Trade receivables.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which do
not contain a significant finanging compenerit. The application of simplified approach does not require the company to
track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on Ifetime ECLs at each reporiing
date, right from its initial recognition.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls {i.e. the diference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the
coniract and the cash flows that the Company expecis o receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credif losses in the Balance Sheef

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the wriie-cff.
However, financial assets that are written off coukl still be subject {0 enforcement activities in arder to comply with the
Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

{i. Impairment of non-financlal assets

The Company's nonfinancial assets, other than deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together inio cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU {or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
driscount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU {or
the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the camying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimaied recoverable
amount, Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of
a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any geodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU {or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

e¢. Income tax

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax, It is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to
an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income
taxes. [t is measured using tax rates {and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and i is intended to realise the asset and setile the liability on a net basis or simulianeously.

ii. Deferred tax

Defarred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also
recognised in raspect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be
available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the
extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there Is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable
profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or
recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the exient that it is probable/ no
longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax
entities, but they intend to setfle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be
realised simultansously.

§. Provisions (other than employee benefits)
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation.




Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

g. Recognifion of interest income or expense

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest mathod.

The effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to;

— the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
— the amortised cost of the financial liabitity

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset or to the amortised cost of the liabiliy.

h. Borrowing cost

Borrowing cosis are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to
the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest cosis) incurred in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarlly take a
substaniial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
horrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Segment reporiing

The Board of Directors assesses ihe financial performance of the Company and makes strategic decisiens and has
been identified as being the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Based on the internal reporiing provided to the
CODM, the Company has only one reportable segment i.e. the road project and hence no separate disclosures are
required under Ind AS 108,

Earnings per share
The basic earnings per share (“EPS"} for the year is computed by dividing the net profiif (loss) after tax for the year

attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares owlstanding during the year. The
Company has no potentially dilutive equity shares,




Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited
CI'N:U452.0(]‘I'(_32010PLCO'706‘76
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

{Rs. in Millions)
As at As af
Notes 51 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assets
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 1.83 1.87
Financial assets
Other financial assets 5 12,807 .10 14,265.87
Other non-current assets 6 3.08 3.08
Deferred tax assets {nat) 15 156.75 170.09
Non current Tax assets (net) 7 119.24 192,19
Total nan-current assets 13,088.00 14,633.10
Cuarent asseis
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 36533 7,675.93
Other financial assets 9 - 187.56
Other current assets i0 2,932.50 2,662.00
Total current assets 3,097.84 10,525.50
Taotal assets 16,185.84 25,158.60
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 1 616.00 616,060
Other equity 12
Retained earnings 4,769,644 5,228.44
Equity component of compound financial instrument - -
Capital contribution 90961 909.61
Other comprehensive income 0.45 0.50
Total equity 6,295.70 6,754.55
Liabilities
Non-current Habilities
Finaricial liabilities
Borrowings 13 7.325.88 4,034.25
Other financial liabilities 14 16.86 241.24
Provisions 16 1.02 IVE
Tatzl nen-~current labilities 7,343.76 4,296.22
Current liabilidesa
Financial lisbilities
Barrowings 17 1,000.00 -
Trade payables
1) Totad outstanding dues to micre and small enterprises 18 - -
if) Outs_tandi.ng dues to creditors other than micro and smailt 118.44 766.33
enderprises
Other financial Habilities 19 527.27 11,292 44
Other current dabilities 20 W7 87 1,263.31
Provisions x 622,79 845.74
Total current iiabilities 2.546.36 14,107.82
Total Habilities 9,890.14 - 18,404.05
Total equity and liabilities 16,185.34 25 158,60
The notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of these finandials statements
For Mfs S.K Mittal & co For and on behalf of the Board
Chattered Accountants Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited

¥ _k ~

LS 3
KRISHAN SARUP MITTAL

A ————
Divakar Maryi L
Partaer . mector
Membership Number : 0610633 N 06865376 .

~

UDIN: 24010633BKGUTY1764

D Lakshmsana Rag
Chief financial officer
AEMPE7135P

Bleha d Bager Nagvi
Company Secretary
M Mo : ATiST4

Place : Mew Delhi
Date : 24th May 2024




Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited
CINU45200TG2010PLC070676
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31 March 2024

{Rs in Millions)
MNotes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 51 March 2023
{Audited) " (Audited)

Revenue

Revenue from operations 22 42299 1,708.57

Other income pis 957.49 953.24
Tetal income 1,380.48 2,661.81
Expenses

Construction costs 24 46.42 1,287.88

O&M Expenses 25 35441 284.71

Employee Benefit expenses 26 8.95 742

Finance costs 27 1,286.00 321213

Depreciation expense 4 0.0 0.02

Other expenses 28 129.12 14,05
Total expenses 1,824.96 4,806.22
Profitf (Loss) Before Exceptional Items & Tax (444,49} {2,144.41)
Exceptional Item
Gain on extingnishment of borrowings under OTS - 12,944.02
Profit/ (Loss) after Exceptional Itetns , Before Tax (441.49) 10,799.61

Current Tax

Previous year Tax 0.97 (3.04}

Deferred Tax expensa/ (income) 13.34 1,359.46
Tax Expense 14.31 1,356.42
Profit After Tax {458.80) 9,443.18
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will nok be reclassified subsequently to profit or Ioss

Remeasurements of defined benefit Income / (Expenses) {0,053 0.03

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -
Qther comprehensive income for the yeay, net of jaxes (0.05) 0.03
Total comprehensive income for the year {458.85} 9,443.22
Earnings per share

Basic eatnings per share (Bs.} (7.45) 153.30

Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (7.45) 153.30

The notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of these financials statements

For M/s 8. K Mittal & co
Chartered Accountants

HAN SARU::MHTAL :
Partner
Membership Number : 010633
1TDIN: 24010633BKGUT Y1764

D Lakshmana Rao

Place : New Delhi Chief financial officer
Dage : 24th May 2024 ABMPRTL3SF

For and on behalf of the Board
Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited

T\,Q.‘_k R

Divakar Marri ™ »

Dhrector

DIN: 06865376

Moha

ad Bager Naqvi

Company Secrstary
M Na: A71874

[DEN: Q0372731

Anil
Chief Executive Officer
AJVPKT95417

ul




Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited
CIN:U45200TG2010PLCO70676
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 31 March 2024
(Rs. in Millions}

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 Maxch 2023
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year (befare tax) (444 49) 10,799.61
Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortisation expénse 0.04 0.02
Gurantee comimission - -
Interest expense _ 1,286.00 321213
Interest income {957 .49} (953.24}
Others 0.00 (65.00)
‘ (115.94) 12,989.52
Working capital adjustients:
{Increase)/decrease in other financial assets 2,607.39 5,078.32
(Increase)/ decrease in other assets 202.44 642.93
{Increase)/ decrease in inventories - -
Increase in other financial liabilities 13,720.81 (12,945.36)
Increase in trade payables (587.89) 375.75
Increase in provisions (222 65) {2317y
Increase (decrease) in other current labilities (985.44) 1,218.25
Cash used in operating activities 14518721 7,266.31
Income tax paid (net) ~ {0.97) 3.04
Net cash used in operating activities {A) 14,517.75 ~ 7,269.35
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment - -
Interest received 96.43 86.86
Net cash from ihvesting activities (B) 26.43 86.86
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceed from long-term borrowings (5,305.79) {1,378.14)
Interest paid (12,418.99) (354.89)
Net cash flow from financing activities ( C) {21,724.78) (1,733.03)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+) (7,110.61) 5,623.17
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 7,675.93 2.052.76
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 565.33 7,675.93 |
The notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of these financials statements
For M/s 8. K Mittal & co For and on behalf of the Board

Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited

X

D Lakshmana Rao Mok d Bag Anil Kaul
Place : New Delhi Chief financial officer Company Secretary { ] Chief Executive Officer
Date : Z4th May 2024 AEMPR7135P M.No; A71874 152 . AJVPK7954P

Chartered Accountants &
Firm Registration No. 00}

3 Z\ .. ‘.._\ R
SHAN SARUP mTrAL\é‘D ACY Divakar Manr——Bw;tm ddy

Partner ) ' Director
Membership Number : 010633 DIN: 06865376
UDIN: 24010633BKGUF Y1764




Srinagar Banihal Expreésway Limited
CIN:U45200TG2010PLCO70676 .
Staternent of changes in equity for the Year ended 31 Mrach 2024

a. Equity share capital

(Rs. in Millions)

Firm Registration No. 0011288 TT-

L.

A -

SHAN SARUP MITTAL

DivekarMami .
Partner Director
Membership Number : 010633 _ DIIN: 06865376
UDIN:24010633BKGUTY1764 "
7
D) Lakshmana Rao Moham ﬁaqer Nagvi
Place : New Delhi Chief financial officer
Date : 24th May 2024 AEMPR7135P

Particular Amount
Balance as at 31 Mar 2022 616.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital Due to Prior pericd Errors -
Restated balance as 31st March 2022 616.C0
Changes in equity share capital during 2022-23 e
Balance as at 31 March 2022 616.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital Due to Prior period Errors -
Restated balance as 31st March 2023 616.00
Changes in equity share capital during 2023-24 -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 616.00
b. Other equity
{Rs. in Millions)
Reserves and Equity Capital Ttems of Other
surplus component of | contribution | comprehensive
Particular compound income (OCI) Total
financial
instraments
Balance as at 1 April 2022 (4,214.75) - 909.61 0.47 {3,304.67)
Changes during the year 2022-23 9,443.18 - - 0.03 9,443 21
Balance at 31 March 2023 5,228.44 - 509,61 0.50 6,138.55
Balance at 1 April 2023 5,228.44 - 905,61 0.50 6,138.55
Changes during the year 2023-2¢ (458.80) - - {0.05) (458.85)
Balance at 31 March 2024 " 4,769.64 - 909.61 045 5,679.70
The notes 1 to 37 are an integral part of these financials statements

In terms of our report attached. '
For M/s §.K Mittal & co For and on behalf of the Beard
Chartered Accountants Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited

DIN: 60372731

Anil Kaul
Chief Executive Officer
AJVPK79547
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CIN:J45200TG2010PLC070676
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended 31 March 2024

5. Other financial assefs (Rs in Millions)
X As at As at
Particul
artiewars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Receivable from grantor 12,807.10 14,265.87
Total 12,807.10 14,265.87
6. Other non-current assets {Rs in Millions)
. As at As at
il
Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Security deposits 3.08 3.0%
Total 3.08 3.08
7. Non current Tax assets (net) (Rs in Millions)
Asg at As af
icul
Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Receivable from tax authorities 119.24 192.19
Total 119.24 192.19
8 Cash and cash equivalents (Rs in Millions)
. As at As at
Farticulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Cash in hand ' - -
Balances with banks: “ -
- in current accounts 565.33 7,675.93
- deposits with maturity is less than 3 months _ -
Total 565.33 7,675.93 !
9 Other financial assets (Rs. in Millions)
- As at As at
Pasticulars 51 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Receivable from grantor - 187.56
Annuity Receivable - -
Total ' - 187.56
10. Other current assets (Rs. in Millions) *
. Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Other receivables- Withheld Annuity 248235 2,440.23
Balanice with Statutory/ government authorities 21.20 189.23
Prepaid expenses 1119 1344
Advance to material suppliers 17.77 19.09
! Advance to vendors -
Interest acrued but not received - | -
Total ' 2,532.50 2,662.00




Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited
CIN:U45200TG2010PLC070676
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended 31 March 2024

11. Share capital {Es. in Millions)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
i. Authorised share capital:
63000000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. 630,00 630.00
0.001% Non Cumulative, Non Convertible Redeemable Preference Shates of Rs.10/-each - | -
630.00 630.00
ii. Issued and Subscribed capital:
61600000 Bquity Shares of Rs.10/ - each fully paid (PY 616000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each) £16.00 616.00
Total 6516.00 616.00
A, Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting petiod
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
At the commencement of the period 61.60 616.00 61.60 616.00
Shares issued during the year - - - -
At the end of the Year 61.60 616.00 61.60 61600

B. Rights, preferences and resirictions attached to equity shares

The company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the company’s residual
assets on winding up. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholdetr on a pofl
(not on show of hands) are in proportion to his/ its share of the paid-up equity share capital of the company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of
shares on which any call or other sums presently payable has not been paid. Faflure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to their forfeiture.

On winding up of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the company, remaining after distribution of

all preferential amounts, in proportion ko the number of equity shares held,

C. Shareholders holding more than 5% of equity share capital

As at 31 Mar 2024 As at 31 Mar 2023
Number % Holding Number %o Holding
Ramky [nérastructure Timited 61.59 99.98% 6159 99.98%
61.59 99.98% 61.59 99,98%
D Details of sharcholding by holding company :
As at 31 Mawch 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Nuamber % Holding Number Y% Helding
Ramky Infrastructure Limited
- Equity shares 6159 99.98% 61.59 99,98%
12 Other equity
- (Rs. in Millions)
. Asg at As at
Particular 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Surplus/ {Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 522844 {4,214.95)
Add: (Loss)/ Profit for the year (458.80) 944318
Balarnice at the end of the year 4,769.64 5,228 44
Equity component of compound financial instruments
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Additions during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year - -
Capital contribution from parent*(Refer note 13)
Balance at the beginning of the year 90%.61 ) A961
Additions during the year - _ -
Balance at the end of the year 909,61, 909.61
Other comprehensive income
Balance at the beginning of the year 050 047
Changes during the year {0.05) (.03
Balance at the end of the year 0.45 0.50
Total 5679.70 6,138.55
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13 Boogwings
[R5, in Millions)

. Asat Asat
Particular 31 March 2004 | 31 Maxch 2003

Secured - Debentuces

16% Securad, unrated, unlisted, Non convertible, redeemable Diebentures 2.000.00 -
Unsecured loan {Related Party)
Sub-debt frem Ramky [nfrastructure Limited 109054 arzin
Unsecured Loan from Rambky Infrastruciure limniked 3026.54 2,204.20

Unsecured Loan from Ardha Helding Privare Livited (Fommerly Known as

Orford Ayyappa Consulting Services{lndia) Private Limited) LIS 7555
Unsecurad Loan fom Madhya Pradesh Waste Management Private Limited QX765 15200
732568 4.054.25
7,325.68 4,054.28

A Terms and conditions attached [o Debentures

The company les jssued and atlotted 3000 (Three Thousandt 16% - Uncated Unlisted Secured Redeemable Mon-
onvertible Debentures of fare value of Rs.10,00,000/- each agygreyating upto INR 300 Crores to the Investars vie., {i}
Touchskorve Trast Scher [V i (i) Madhys Pradesh Waste Management Privabe Linited.

Repayment Schedule (B in Millions)
Parliculars Amount
Bfadhya Pradesh Waste Management Private Limited
Payment on or before 315t Ocrober 2024 1,000.0
Paymment on or before 3th April 2025 1,000.00
Toachstone Trust Scheme IV
Payment on of before 31st Qctober 2025 500.00
Payment on or beforg 30th Apeil 2026 500,00
Total 3,000.00

An nterest ot he raw of 15% pa taorthly compounding is applicalde and payable at the time of redemption of the
respective tranche of the delweniures from the respective holders, with held taxes to be grossed up and borng by the
issuar, Default intercst & 3% will be applicable upon failure b comply the lerms,

B Securiby:
&) First Exclusive chargs ot all assets of the company (Evcept the project)

b) Corporate guarantee of Ramky Estates & Farms Limited and bMadhya Pradesh Waste Management Private Limited.

o} Pledge of 51% of shares of the company, howevar as condition subsequent, the company would pledge balance 49%
of the shares of the company once reléased by the Owrent pledgee.

C. Terms and conditions attached to inferest free sub-debé fram Ramky Inirastructure Limited
To be repaid after repayment of Term ioans & Sukr debi from Banks

D. Terms and conditions attached fo Unsecured loan received from Ramky Infrastucture Limited

The company has entered Into an agreement to borrow an unsecured loan Rs 2500 Millions from Ramky Infrastructure
Limnited. Irterest at the rate 15.50% per anviun later on amended the same on 15th Felruary 2021 reducing fhe interest
rate € 5% from shall be payable in revpect of lan taken from RIL and the principal amount shall be repaid within 60
tonths or at the earliest of convendence of the bomowsr after 3 moratodwm of 2 years from the date of firsl
dishurserment L., Bth March 2019, Latet on 13th February 2024 the same has been amended with an amount of Fs 3500
Milllons.

E Terms and conditions attacked &0 Unsocured loan received from Ardha Hobding Private Limitad (Formerly Known
as Oxford Ayyappa Consmlting Services{India) Private Limited)

‘The company has entered into an agreament to borrow an unsecured loan of Rs1500 Millions from Ardha Helding
Private Limiled. nierest at the rate 16.00% per annum shall be payable in respect of loan taken froin Ardha Holding
Private Limited till March 31, 2020 and 8% p.a. with effect from April 01, 2020 onwards as per the supplimentary loan
agreement exeruted on April 01, 2020 and the principal amount will be repeid within hine years from the date of firse
disbursement Le, 27ih Mov 2018 a8 per the revised agreement dated March 31, 2022

Termsg and conditions attachad to Unsecnred loan received From Madbya Fradesh Waste Management Private
Eimited ’

e

The company has entered into an agreement to borrow an nnserured loan Rs.152 Millions from Madbya Pradesh Waste
Management Private Limited. Interest should be charged at the rate 15.00% per annom tll March 2020 and as per
suplimentary agreement dated Apri! 01, 2020, the rate of interest reduced from 15% to 8% with effect from April 01,
2020, The principal is repayable within 50 months or at the earliest convience of Ihe bomower after a moratorium of 2
years from the date of first dishursement i.g 20 march 2020,

The company has enterad into an agreement to borrow an unsecured loan Rs.5000 Milllons from Madhya Pradesh
Waste Management Private Limited. Interest shauld be charged at the rate 11.00% per acnum The principal is
repayable within 60 months or at the earliest comvience of the boreower after a moratorium of @ Months from the dat
of first disbursement L 23 Jan 2024,
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12 Other financial liabilites (Bs. in Millions)
. As Ak Asat .
Farficniar 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Felenlion maney tabe 241.24
Total 16855 241.24
15 Beferred tax assets (labilities) {Rs. in Millions)
. Agat Asat
Padticular 31 arch 2024 |31 March 223
Pefertad Tax Assets (DTA) ]
M A T Credit - -
DTA on Section 438 fterns and Major Malntenance 156,75 233674
Less: DT A reversal due to One Time Settlement with lenders (ref note 34} (1,99.51)
15675 34023
Diaferred tax Habilities
Interest - Effective Interest rate - -
Service Concassion Arrengement adjustments - 2446
Finaritial instruments - {194.60)
- {170.14)
Net Deferred Tax Asset 156.75 17000

ib Provisions

. Asat Asar
Particulars 71 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

Provision for employee benefits

~ Provision for leave encashmenk 043 033
- Provision for Cratulty .58 0.40
Tatal 102 0.73
17 Bomowings
Particulars As at Anat
3 ddarch 2024 31 March 2623
16% Secured, ted, urlisted, Non cotivertible, red ble Del 1,0010.00
Total 200000 -
18 Trade payables {Bs. in Millions}
. Asat Asat
Yarticulars %1 March 208 | 31 March 2023
Creditors for construction and utlity shilting - E960.05
Payabls bo material supplier 1M 1022
Creditors for sther expenses 11520 6.06
Total ] 118.44 70633

Ageing Schadule of Trade Payablas:

Particatars Oulstanding for the Ellowing perinds from the due date of payment*
<1 year 1-2 years -3 years| Morethan 3 years Total
| As at 3F March 2024 1
hfiere Small Medium Entarprises
- Undrepraned Duics
 Dispuked dues
Ol than Micro Smalt Medium Enterprises
- Undiapnted Dues 1005 - - B30 11844
- Eritpaned dhuts - - - - -
A5 a0 31 March 2023
Micro Small Medivm Enterprises
« Undisputod Dues
- Rigputed dues - - - - -
Oither than Micro $mall Medm Enterprises
- Undlisputet Dues ATETS 27434 37.99 1825 | TK.33
- Dizputed duen
* Ageing daes nol include the Provision
1% Other Financial liabilitles (Rs. in Millions)
: As at Asat
Particulss 31 March 2026 | 31 March 2023
Current maturities of long-term delxps:
- Terin loans - -
- Others - -
Loan cutstanding for repayinent 0.0 155748
Less Extinguishment of Loan liability due to OTS (L7254}
Nei Loan Cutstanding 10.00) 1020488
Interest accrued and due on bpmowings
a) Te banks - 10.582.04
Less Extinguishment of Interest liability due to OT3 {10,571 45)
Wet Taterest Culstanding - 1055
b} To Related Parties 50693 1,057.88
cj Others - Interest payable on Debentucs 3.8t
Seurity deposit received 16,53 1512
Tatal 527,27 11,292.44
20 Other cuerent liabilities (Es. in Millions)
Aszat Agat
Farticulars 31 March 2026 | 31 Maxch 2023
Statutory liabilities TTTET 1,263.31
Tatal 27787 1,26%.31
21 Provisions ) ) (s, in Millions}
Asal Asal
Paaticulars . 51 March 2024 |31 March 2023
| Provision for major maintenance expenses 601.83 F24.81
- Provision for expenses o 20.66 w077
Provigion for Current Gratuity a1 .05
Provision for Current Leave Encach . 018 412

Fotal 62279 545,74
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22 Revenue from operations (Rs. in Millions)
. Year ended Year ended
Farticolars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Construction Income under Service Concession Arrangement 4642 1,356.88
Operating Income 376.57 351.69
Total 422,99 1,708.57
23 Other income {Rs. in Millions)
Particul Year ended Year ended
articutars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Interest income
- From banks 90.63 8544
- on financial asset (under service concession arrangements) 861.06 86779
Miscellaneous Income 5.80 -
Total 957.49 953,24
24 Construction costs (Rs. in Millions)
Particul Year ended Year ended
cutars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Constructions costs under Service Concession Arrangement 4642 1,287.88
Total 46.42 1,287.88
25 Operation & Maintenance Expenses (Rs, in Millions)
.Parti il Year ended Year ended
crars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
O#&M Expenses 147.01 87.19
Major maintenance expenses 207.40 197.52
Total 354.41 284.71
26 Employee Benefit expenses (Rs. in Millionis)
Parh i Year ended Year ended
ariaras 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2023-
Salaries and wages 549 7.03
Contribution to provident fund 0.07 0.05
Leave encashment and Gratuity 042 0.34
Total ' 898 7.42
27 Finance costs ) {Rs. in Millions)
Particular Year ended Year ended
ears 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
 Interest expense - Term Loans 79811 2,873.71
Interest expense - Others 487 .89 33842
Other borrowing cost - -
Total 1,286.00 321213
28 Other expenses (Rs. in Millions)
articed Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Professional and consultancy charges 12686 14.00
- Audit fee : : 0.50 0.05
Miscellaneous expenses 1.76 -
Total 129_.12 14.05
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2¢ Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits

iDefined Confribution Plans

The company makes contribution, determined as a specified perrentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards
provident fund and empoyee state insurance, which are defined congibution plans. The company has no obligation other than to make

the specified contributions, The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue. The amount recognised asan -
expenses towards contribution to provindent fund and employee state insurance for the year aggregated to Rs 0.07 Millions (31 March
2023 s 0.05 Millions).

ii Defined Confribution Plans
The company operates the following post-employment defined benefit plan:

in accordance with the the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 of India,the company provides for Gratuity, defined Retirement Benefit Scheme
(Flan-A), Covering eligible employees. Liabilities with regard to such Gratuity Plan are determined by an acturial valuation ag at end of the
year and are charged o the statement of profit and loss. This defined plans expose the company to actarial risks, such as longevity risk,
currency risk,interest rate risk and market {investoient ) risk . the company also has Leave encashment policy (Plan B)

A. Funding

Pian A
The gratuity plan i unfunded.

Plan B
Leave encashment plan is unfunded.

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit {asset) liability
‘The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit (asset) liability and

its components.
“Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
Plan A (Rs. in Millions)
- - Asaf As at
|Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 046 0.32
Current service cost . 0.14 0,12
Interest cost 003 0.02
Past Service Cost - -
Benedits paid - -
Actuarial {gains)/ losses -1 -
-changes in linarcial assumptions 001 | {0.01)
-experience adjustments - 004 {0.00
Balance ai the end of the year ) ) _ ) 0,69 646
PlaiB . . (Rs. in Millions)
. ) As at As at
Particulars _ _ 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Badance at thie baginning of the year " 045 0.32]
Tenefits paid - -
Current service cost 014 043
Past Service Cost
Interest cost 0.03 0.02
Actunarial {gains} losses recognised in other comprehensive income
- changes in demographic assumptions £.01 {0.80)
- changes in financial assumptions :
- experience adjustments L _ b0y )
Balantce at the end of the year o ) 061 _ 0.45
. Expense recognised in profit or loss
Plan A - ] o n (Rs. in Milliows)
: As 2t As at
Farticulars _ L 31 Maich 2004 | 31 March 2023
Current service cost - 014 012
Past service cost '
Tnterest cost _ 0.0 o
Past sexvice gain ! ' .
Tnierest income i
017 0.15
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Plan B (R=. in Millions)
Particulass Asat Asat
. 31 March 2024 3T Miarch 2023
Current service cost © 0.14 213
Past service cost - -
[nterest cost 0.03 002
Past service gain - -
interest income - -
017 0.15
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income
Flan A {Rs, in Millions)
. Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Actuarial {gain) loss on defined benefit obligation [EX13 {0.01)
Rehurn on plan asscts excluding interest income
0.06 {0.01)
Plan B (Rs. in Millions)
L Asat As at
Parti
culars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Actuarial (gain) loss on defined benefit obligation (0.01) 0.0y
Return on plan assets exchiding interest income
(0.01) {0.0%)
. Defined benefit abligation
i. Actuarial assumptions
Principal actnarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):
Flan A
Particnlars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Disconnt rate 7.23% 7.a2%
Future salary growth 4.00% 4.00%
Mortality table TALM (2012-1£) TALM (2012-14)
Flan B
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate 7.25% 752%
Future salary growth 400% 4.00%
Mortality table IALM (212-19) [ TALM (201214}

ii. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant acknarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, -

would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Plan A
Particulars _ 31 March 2024_ 31 March 202_3
Incraase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (1% movement) 0.64 0.74 042 0.50
Withdrawal rate (1% movement) 0.70 067 047 0.45
Fupure salary growth (1% mo 1) .75 0.64 0.50 142
Flan B

. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Particulars

] Increase Drecrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate {1% movemznt) 059 0.64 044 047
Withdrawal rate (1% movement) 0.62 051 0.45 0.45
Future salary growth (1% movement) 0.64 0.5% 0.47 0.43

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an

approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Liability for Leave encashment as on 31 March 2024 is Rs.0.61 Millions {previous year: Rs. 0.40 MillionsY. Cost of [eave encashment
Yiability is 2 non funded liability. Expenses recognised during the year in P&L Rs, 0.17 Millions and gain in OCT Rs. 0.01 Millions (in P&L

Rs. 0.15 Millions and in OCT Rs. 0.02 Millions }
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30 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
A, Accounting classifications and fair values
The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities recognized in the financial statements approximate their fair vilues and hence no

further details about the fair.value measurements including their levels in the fair value hierarchy is not givef. No assets and liabilities are
measured at fair value. The following table shows the carrying amounts at amortized cost of financial assets and financial liabilities,

31 March 2024 {Rs in Millions)
Carrying amount
Financial Financial Total carrying
assets - amortized cost| liabilities - amortised amound
cost
Financial assets measured at amortized cost '
Recelvable from grantor 1280710 - 12,507.10
Cash and cash equivalents 365.33 - 565.33
' 1337244 | - 13,372.44
Firancial liabilities measured at fair value '
Secured bank loans - - -
Loans from related parties - 4117.08 4,137.08
Loars from Others 1,208.50 1,208.80
Debentures - 3,000.00 3,000.00
Trade payables - 118.44 118,44
Others - 540.33 540,33
- §,954.65 8,984.65
31 March 2023 {(Rs in Millions)
Carrying amount
Financial Financial Total carrying
assets - amortized cost| liabilities - amortised amount
' cost
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Receivable from grantor 14,453.44 - 14,453.44
Cash and cash equivalents 7,675.93 - 767593
22,129.37 22129.37
Financial liabilities measured at fair value '
Secured loan from banks and financial institutions - 10,204.88 10,204,88
Loans from related parties - 3,176.70 3,176.70
Loans from Others 877.55 877.55
Preference shares - - -
Trade payables - 706.33 706.33
Others “ 1,328.80 1,328.80
- 16,294.26 16,294.26

B. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instriments:

a) credit risk
b} liquidity risk
¢) market risk

i) Risk management frametvork

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Compary's risl management
framework. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set

appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence fo limits. Risk management policie

regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

The Company’s Board oversees how management monitors compliance with the Co

s and systems are reviewed

mpany’s risk management policies and procedures, and

reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board is assisted in its oversight
role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of

which are reported to the audit committee.
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) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of fnancial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers; loans and investiments in debt securities,

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk expostre.

Trade recervables and lopns

The Company's exposure to credit risk is infleenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also
considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the indusiry in which
customers operate. .

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company holds cash and cashequivalents of Rs.565.33 Millions at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: Rs.7675.93 Millions). The credit risk on
liquid funds is limited because the courterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

ifi) Ligtidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associabed with its financial liabilities that are seftled
by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have
sufficient liquidity to meet its Ljabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, witheut incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities
(other than trade payables) over the next six months. The Company also monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade receivables and loans
together with expected cash outflows on rade payables and other financial liabilities.

Exposure to liguidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual matutities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and
include contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements:

31 March 2024 (Bs in Millions}
Conftactual Cash flows
Particalar Carrying amonnt Total & mnanths or less | 6-12 months | 1.2 Years 2-5 Years Mote than 5
Years
Nen-derivative financial
liakilities
Secured bank loans - - - - - - -
Loans from related partdes 4,117.08 4,117.08 940.39 255,78 326.02 1,81852 77337
Loans from others 1,208.80 1,208.80 33125 - - B77.35
Debentures " 3,060.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 - - -
Trade payables 11844 118.44 110,05 - 8.30 -
Others 540.33 540,32 127.10 116.58 20L.90 58.73 3602
8,984.65 8,984.65 4,398.73 185.41 527.92 2,763.20 §09.38
Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited
CIN:U45200TG2010PLC070675
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended 31 March 2024
31 March 2023 (Rs in Millions)
i Conttactual Cash flows )
Particular ) Carrying amount Total & wmonths orlegs | 612 manths | 1.2 Years 2-8 Years Mo;,ee:rsm 5
Non-derivative financial
liakilikies :
Secured bank loans : 10,254,858 10,204.58 10,204.88 - - - -
Losns from related parties 3,176.70 3,176.69 - 25878 326,02 1,818.53 77337
Lnans from others 877.85 87755 - - - 877.55
Preference shares - - - - - - -
Trade payables 70633 706,33 - 37575 274.34 heM | - -
Others 1,328.80 1,328.30 127.10 116.58 201,50 622.83 260,40
16,294.26 16,294.26 10,331.98 75L 11 802.26 337515 1,033.76

The interest payments on variable interest rate Ioans in the table above reflect market forward interest rates at the reporting date and these
amournts rray change as market interest rates change.

Except for these financial liabilites, it is not expected that cash flows included in the maturity analysis could oceur significantly earlier, or at
significantly different amounts,

fv} Market visk :

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices ~ will affect the Company's
income or the value of its holdings of financial insguments, The ohjective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within aq':eptable parameters, while optimising the return,

Interest rate risk ;
The Company adopits a policy of ensuting that between 80 and 90% of its interest rate risk exposure is at a fixed rate, This is achieved partly by
entaring into fixed-rate instruments and partly by borrowing at a Aoating rate instruments.

Exposure to inlerest rale risk

Note 31 March 2024 | 37 March 2023
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets & 56533 7675.93
Financial labilitfes 13 8,325.88 14,259.13

The intérest rate profile of the Company's interest-beating financial instroments as reported bo management is as follows:
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31 Related party disclosure

A. List of related parties and nature of relationship

8. No. Name of the related pariy Namre of relationship
1 {Ramby [nfastructuse Linited Holding Company
1 |Ardba Holding Privane Limited (Formerly Known as Oxford Ayyappa Consulting
Services(India) Private Limited) Commen prometer with controlling Stake
3 [Madhya Pradesh Waste Management Private Limited Common promoter with contrelling Stake
4 |Mr.Divakar Marmi Director
5 |Mriol d Bager Naqvi Company Secretary
6 |MsB.Ujjwala Company Secretary
7 |Dr. 8. Ravi Knmar Reddy Tndependent Directot
§  |bir. P Esliwar Reddy Independent Director
9 [Mr. V Murabari Reddy independent Director
B. Transactions with related parties during the year ended
__{Rs in Millions)
8. No. | Name of the relaked party Nature of tr ti 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1{Ramley Infrastructure Limited Maijor Mai Exp 414,54 3405
O & M expendi 126.24 110,17
Comstruction Cost- Change of Scope 46.42 187.55
Utility shifting expenditure -
Utility shifiing Paid -
Retontion Money deducted’ Rel i 224.38
Tnsecured loan reesived 82235 255.7%
Interest expenscs oo Unsceured loan 226.06 162.95
and Preference Sharcs
2 | Ardha Helding Private Limited(Formetly Known | U loan recaived
as Oxford Ayvappa Consulting Services{India)
Private Limited) Interest expenses on Unsecured loan 37.21 58.04
Processing fes on unsecursed loan - -
Interest Repaid EYEE L)
Unsecured loan regaid 444,46 ' -
Unsecure loan recaived 4,375,653 -
Professional Charges 10000 .
Unsecare: loan repaid 4,100.00
3 | Madhya Pradush Wasto M tPAYAT  figerest expenses ou Unsooured loaa 102.31 12.16
Limited
Issue of Debentures 2,000.00
Interest on Debentures 1.94
4
Dr. 5, Ravi Fumar Reddy Siting fees 018 0.09
’ Mr. V Murzhar Reddy Sitting fees o7 0.0
6 s
Mr. P Eshwar Reddy Sitting fees .08
7 Mot d anerNaqvi R tion .12 0.36
8 |UjjwalaB Remuneration 0.36 0.12
C. Balances outstanding {Rs in Millious)
8. No. [Mame of ibe related party Nature of traosactives 31 Mareh 2024 31 Har:h 2623
1  [Ramky Jufrastractrs Lintted Equity shate capital &15.86 61586
) Preference share capital - -
Sub debi payable 1.583.32 1,693.32
Unszoured loan 3,026.54 220420
Tntercst Payabls 4755 G661
On account payable - 698,09
Payable against wtility shifting - {8.040)
Retention money payable i6.86 241.24
2 |Asdha Holding Privase Limited{Formerly Known  {Unsecured loan payable 281.15 725.55
as Oxford A Consulting Services(india)  |Interest Payable 3349 377.46
L] d loan payable 92765 152,00
5 Professional Fee Payable 108.00 -
3 ﬁf‘h‘:j Pradesh Wasia Management Private Tnlsrest Payable - ICD 125,86 EEEY]
Debenpures Lighility 2,000.00
Interest Payable - Det 175
4 |Mol d Bager Maqvi R jon Payable 0.4 -
5 ] R tion Payabls - 008

Ujiwola &
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—— Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited e .

CINU45200TG2010PLCOT0676
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended 31 March 2024

Service sslon arcvang, t Discl s

33 Service concession arrangement
a} The project of the commpany consists of Design, Construction, Development, Finance, Operation and maintsnance of four laning of
a section on the Srinagar-Banihal National Highway 1A in the state of Jaminn and Kashmir on design, build, finauce, operate and
transfer (DBFOT) annuity basis for a period of 20 years,
b) During il vear, the Company has recorded revenue of Rs. 422.99 Millions on construction and O&M (PY 1708.57 Millions).

The Comnpany has recorded tatal Loss of Rs 458.73 Millions in the curvent year (PY Profit of Rs 9443 22 Million )
The revenue recogaised in relation to construction represents the fair value of the construction services provided in constructing the
road. -

34 Pues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Information relating to Micro and Small Enterprises under the Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 have
been deermined based on the information available with the company. The required disclosutes are given below

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{a) Dues remeining unpaid as at Balance sheet date
Prinicpal amoynt . - -
Interest on the abeve . i}

{b) Interest Paid in terms of section 16 of the Act, ajong with the amount of
payment made to the supplier and service providers beyond the appointed day
duribyg the period
Prinicpal amount - -
Interest on the above - -
(c) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without
adding the interest specified under the Act)
(d) Further interest remiaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above ave actually paid to the small
enterprises
() Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at Balance sheet daie - -




o e 38 Puring the earlier financial yeat _ NHAT hag made.yarions deductions from. Anuit ity. towands. suhstandard steel. deviation of high. ...

embankment and oflrer deductions against which Rs 2440.23 Mo are yet t0 be received by the compaty. Independent engineer dwing
the year has recommended for release of Rs 1872.75 Mn of the above amount. NHAI has made further deductions of Rs 42,12 Ma
dusing the FY year 2023-24.

The company has initiated for all of the above recoverics from NHAL Based on the internalfexternal assessment, the Company is
confident that the amount is fully recoverable from NHAL

36 The cases filed by the initisl lenders against the company in DRT are still continuing , the same will be with drawn during the course
of next hearing.

37 The Company has opied for concessional incomme tax rate as pei section 115 BAA of Income Tax Act, 1961 i.e 22%, from the
Assessement Year 2023-24 as against earlier rate of 23% (Both the rates excluding applicable surcharge and cess).

3§ Previous year figuses have been re grouped, seclassified and recast wherever necessary to confitm to curent year's classification.

For M/s 5.K Mittal & co : o For and on behalf of the Board
Charstered Ascountants Srinagar Banihal Expressway Limited

L
HAN SARUP MITT. T

A1
. % Divakar MaPF P Ravi
Partner . Director A 1 '
Membership Number ; 010633 DIN: 66865376 DIN: (0372731
UDRN:24010633BKGUIY 1.764 f .
: MchMN

I» Lakshmana Rae zqvi Anil Kaul
Place : New Dellu Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer
Date : 24t May 2024 AEMFPR7135P M No: AT1874 ATVPKT7954P




ABYV & ASSOCIATES 8-2-686/DB/22, Plot No.22
Chartered Accountants Road No. 12, Banjara Hills
Hyderabad - 500 034,
Phone : +91-40-23546705
Email : abvassociateshyd@gmail.com

Independent Auditors’ Report

To
The Members,
Hyderabad STPS' Limited

Report on the Audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hyderabad STPS' Limited (“the Company"), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including other
comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Statement Cash Flow for the period then
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “Financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024,
the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Management Discussion and Analysis and Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, but does not
melude the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
fiancial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materally misstated,

If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.



Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued there
under, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
Is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management,

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or. 1t such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.



Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure -A a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(@)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b} Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in Equity and the statement of Cash flows and dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, relevant rules issued there under.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified ason 31*' March,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure B"; and

(8)  The company has not paid or provided any managerial remuneration during the year. Hence, with
respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.



(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

i, The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements, no funds have been received by the company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢} Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

V. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company; and

vi.  Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

For A B V & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm RegistratiomNo. 0049

“(A.9 Naidu)
Partner
Membership No.208582
UDIN: 24208582BKATHS2280
Place: Hyderabad
Date:21-05-2024



Annexure- A to the Independent Auditors' Report:

The Annexure referred to the Independent auditors’ report to the members of the company on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, we report that:

(1) (a) A) The Company has no Property, Plant and Equipment in the books of the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(A) of the order is not applicable to
the Company.

B) The Company has no Intangible assets in the books of the Company and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)  The Company has no Property, Plant and Equipment and accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(i)(b) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢)  There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d)  The Company has no Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets during the year hence clause 3 (i)(d) of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 is not applicable.

(e)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder hence clause 3
(i){e) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable,

(i1) (@) The Company has no inventory accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)  The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis
of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

{ii1) The company has not made / provided / granted any investments, guarantee / security, loans, or
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year by the company. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iif)(a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(iv) The company has not granted/made/given any loans, investments, guarantees, and security under
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and no order has been passed by Company Law
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any tribunal.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, maintenance of cost
records as specified by the Central Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company.

(vil) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us the company has been generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues to the appropriate authorities and no undisputed amounts payable were outstanding as at 31st
March, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable,



(W)

(ix)

(x)

{xi)

(xi1)

(%111)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, there are no dues of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and any other statutory dues as at 31st March, 2024 which have not been deposited on account
of a dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year,
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks,
government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, clause 3 (ix) (a) of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the company
is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) The Company has not raised any term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix)
(c) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we
report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by
the company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

() The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any amount by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, Clause 3 (x)(a) of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable.

{h) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, during the year the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully,
partially or optionally convertible) under section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, Clause 3(x) (b) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not
applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or no
fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the year,

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by [cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us] in Form ADT - 4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government,

() As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year,

The Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.



(xiv) (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the
period under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020 is not applicable.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934,

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable.

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no CICs in the
Group. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is
not applicable,

(xvil) The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year. Accordingly, clause 3(xvii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not
applicable.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause

is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios.
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when
they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount required to
be spent as per section 135 of the Act and hence the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(a) and
(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

for AB V & Associates —
Chartered Accountants 7. 15§
Firm Registratz)jw No. 004

q

>

(A.S.Naidu)
Partner
Membership No,208582
UDIN: 24208582BKATHS2280
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21-05-2024



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Hyderabad STPS' Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31" March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
period ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control aver financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
ofanternal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A companys internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
Inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
detenorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31%
March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For AB V & Associates
Chartered Accountant
Firm Registrati

(A.5.Naidu)
Partner
Membership No.208582
UDIN: 24208582BKATHS2280
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21-05-2024



Hyderabad STPS' Limited
CIN:U45209TG2022PLC158919
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

(INR in Millions)

Particulars Notes Asiat —
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
Financial assets
i) Other financial assets 2 3,352.03 1,687.85
Other non-current assets 3 9.36 13.86
Total non-current assets 3,361.39 1,701.71
Current assets
Financial assets
i) Cash and cash equivalents 4A 4.02 1.40
i) Other financial assets 5 41.86 470,05
Current tax assets (net) i} 20.74 24.54
Other current assets 7 3.29 2.49
Total current assets 09.91 498.48
Total assets 3,431.30 2,200.19
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 8 0.50 0.50
Other equity 9 188.78 106.58
Total equity 189.28 107.08
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 10 385.83 28.05
ii) Other financial liabilities 11 1.82 105.79
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 12 63.98 35.85
Total non-current liabilities 451.63 169.69
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
i) Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises = "
ii) ()uls:tandmg dues to creditors other than micro and small 13 2.736.80 1,893,090
enterprises
Other current liabilities 14 53.59 30.33
Total current liabilities 2,790.39 1,923.42
Total liabilities 3,242.02 2,093.11
Total Equity & Liabilities 3,431.30 2,200,19
Summary of significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes refered to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report attached of even date.

For A BV & Associates

Chartered Accountat

Firm Registratio
P i

(
o
——

A.S.Naidu
Partner

Place : Hyderabad
Date: 21.05.2024

Director Q

DIN: 06865 35

Y —————

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hyderabad STPS' Limite

k‘
o —




Hyderabad STPS' Limited
CIN:U43209TG2022PL.C158919
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31 March 2024

(INR in Millions)

Particulars Notes Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income
Revenue from contracts with customers 15 2,787.60 2.445.15
Other income 16 0.98 -
Total income (I) 2.788.58 2.445.15
Expenses
Cost of construction 17 2,641.00 2,298.48
Employee benefits expense 2 »
Finance costs 18 27.87 1.35
Depreciation expense - g
Other expenses 19 9.38 2.87
Total expenses (11) 2,678.25 2,302.70
Profit/(Loss) before tax (I1I=I-11) 110.33 142.45
Tax Expense
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax 19 28.13 35.85
Total Tax Expense (1Y) 28.13 35.85
Profit/(loss) for the period (V=I11-1V) 82.20 106.60
Other comprehensive income
ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement (losses)/gains on defined benefit plans . .
Income Tax effect - -
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) for the period (net of taxes)(VI) 5 “
Total comprehensive income for the period (net of taxes)(VII=V+VI) 82.20 106.60
Earnings per share (Face value of Rs.10/- each)
Basic & Diluted earnings per share Rs. 1.644.10 2,131.99

Summary of significant accounting policies

1

The accompanying notes refered to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report attached of even date.

For A BV & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 6449\:3_5%%?‘:‘\“
ﬁ x\\'-;,_ ﬂ/;:\}

 AS.Naidu
Partner

Place : Hyderabad
Date ; 21.05.2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hyderabad STPS' Limited

Director
DIN:06865376




Hyderabad STPS' Limited
CIN:U45209TG2022PLC158919
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

(INR in Millions)

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax 110,33 142.45
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows - -
Adjustments to:

Depreciation and amortisation expense - -

Interest expense 27.87 0.96

Interest income -
Operating profit before changes in Assets & Liabilitics 138.20 143,41
Working capital adjustments:

(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (1,235.99) (1,814.40)

(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets 3.70 (16.35)

Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities (103.97) 105.70

(Decrease) / increase in Trade pavables 843.71 1,556.44

Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities 23.26 23.46
Cash generated from operating activities (331.08) (1.74)
Income tax (paid) /refund (net) 3.80 (24.54)
Net cash from operating activities (A) (327.28) (26.28)
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment “ -

Interest received i -
Net cash from investing activities (B) ~ -
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from long term borrowings 329.91 27.18

Interest paid . _

Proceeds from issue of Equity shares . p
Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) 329.91 27.18
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 2,63 0.90
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1.40 0.50
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4,02 1.40

a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method”

Flow,

b) Cash & cash equivalent comprises of
Cash on hand
Balances with Banks
- Current accounts
- Cheques, drafts on hand
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet

Summary of significant accounting policies

as set out in (he Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) - Statement of Cash

31 Mach 2024

31 Mach 2023

4,02 1.40
0.00
4.02 1.40

1

The accompanying notes refered to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report attached of even date.

For ABV & Assoctateﬁfr :
Chartered Accountanig’y 2~
Firm Rt:ﬁtration NG 0049378

HYDERABAD ) * ||
— £

AS. Naidu
Partner
Membership Number : 2(!\’5‘%2

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 21.05.2024

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of

Hyderabad STPS' Limite

L ~—

Divakar M;
Dlru.tt}r

TDIN:07872103
Hyderabad S




Hyderabad STPS' Limited
CIN:U45209TG2022PLC158919

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year ended 31 March 2024

a. Equity share capital

(Rs in Millions)

Number of Shares Aigamt
(in Millions)

As at 01 April 2022 0.05 0.50
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance as at 01 April 2022
Issued during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 0.05 0.50
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance as at 01 April 2023 0.05 0.50
Issued during the year - -
Balance as at the 31 March 2024 0.05 0.50

b. Other equity

(Rs in Millions)

Reserves and surplus
Retained earnings Total
Balance at 1 April 2022 (0.02) (0.02)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Restated balance as at 01 April 2023 (0.02) 0.02)
Profit or loss for the year 106.60 106.60
Other comprehensive income 2 -
Total comprehensive income 106.60 106.60
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity - -
Balance at 31 Mar 2023 106.58 106.58
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Restated balance as at 01 April 2023 106.58 106.58
Profit or loss for the year 82.20 82.20
Other comprehensive income . x
Total comprehensive income 82.20 82.20
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity - -
Balance as at the 31 March 2024 188.78 188.78

For A BV & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 0049375~
&

B9 et
A SINaidu

Partner

3 -
&

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 21.05.2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hyderabad STPS' Limited

/._\ &//1
-\ \)”
Divadear-viarri— P Rayi Prasad
Director e

DIN:06865376




" Hyderabad STPS' Limited
CIN:U4S209TG2022PLC158919
Notes to the Financial statements for the Year ended 31 March 2024

1 Corporate information
The Company is a limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The
registered office of the company is located at 15th Floor, Ramky Grandisoe, Survey No 136/2&4, Gachibowli, Hyderabad, Telangana- 500032,
The Company is principally engaged in the business of Development, construction, operation and management of 6 STPs of 480,50 MLD
capacity (Decentralized) along South of Musi under Sewerge Tmprovement Project of Sewerage Master Plan of Hyderabad Urban
Agglomeration and allied works including O&M ete,

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 215t May 2024.

1A Significant accounting policies

1.1

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time),

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain [inancial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (tefer accounting policy regarding financial instruments). The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to
the nearest Millions (INR 10,00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. A asset is treated as current
when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cyele

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting
period
All other assets are classitied as non-current.

A lability is current when:
- Itis expected 1o be settled in normal operating cycle
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Itis due to be seitled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Tability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilitics.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating eycle,

. Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid o transter a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the lability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of'a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their cconomic best interest,
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufTicient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable mputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics

- Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is sighificant to the fair value measurement is directly or mdirectly
observable

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
For assets and labilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recwming basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-measured
or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies, For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and ather relevant documents,
The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change 1s reasonable.
On an interim basis, the management present the valuation results o the Audit Committee and the Company's independent auditors. This
includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis o {" the nature,
characteristics and nisks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,
This note summarises accounting policy for fair value, Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes,

- Fair values
- Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions



Hyderabad STPS' Limited

CIN:U4

S209TG2022P1L.C158919

Notes to the Financial statenments for the Year ended 31 Mareh 2024

¢ Revenue from contract with customer

Basis of accounting of service concession arrangement

The Company has determined that Appendix D to IND AS 115 on "Service Concession Arrangements (SCA)" is applicable to the
concession agreement and hence has applied it in accounting for the same,

Under Appendix D to Ind AS 115, concession arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible
assel model is used to the extent that the Company receives a right to charge users of the public service, The financial asset model is used
when the Company has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another tinancial asset from or at the direction of the grantor
for the construction services.

The Company has determined that financial asset model is applicable to the agreement as the Company is entitled o receive fixed amounts
from the grantor.

Construction contract revenue arises fiom construction of STPs as per the agreement with HMDA,

Operation or service revenue is recognised in the period in which the services are provided by the Company.

i, Revenue from construction contracts

The Company recognizes and measures revenue, costs and margin for providing construction services during the period of construction of'
the mfrastructure in accordance with Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers'.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable that it will be profitable; contract revenue and

contract costs associated with the construction contract are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the percentage
of completion of the contract activity at the reporting date. The percentage of completion of a contract is determined considering the

proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed up to the reporting date bear to the estimated total contract costs.

For the purposes of recognising revenue, contract fevenue comprises the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract, the variations in
contract work, claims and incentive payments to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and they are capable of being
reliably measured.

Costs incurred for rendering the construction services, exchanged for the financial asset, include all costs that are directly related 1o the
construction of the project and include all overheads other than those relating to general administration of the Company.

The percentage of completion method is applied on a cumulative basis in each accounting period to the current estimates of contract
revenue and contract costs. The eftect of a change in the estimate of contract revenue or contract costs, or the effect of a change in the
estimate of the outcome of a contract, is accounted tor as a change in accounting estimate and the effect of which are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the change is made and in subsequent periods,

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs

incurred of which recovery is prabable and the related contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred,
When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which such probability occurs.

ii. Borrowing costs

Project specific barrowing costs are capitalized to the extent that they relate to the intangible asset until the capitalization of intangible
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, Where funds are temporarily invested pending their expenditures on the intangible

asset, any investment income earned, to the extent that it relates to the intangible asset are reduced from the borrowing cost capitalized.

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue 1s recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the € ompany and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made, Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recervable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behall of the covernment,

Operation or service revenue is recognised in the period in which the services are provided by the Company

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the € ompany performs by
transterring goods or services 1o a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised
for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required
belore payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services o a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer, If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payiment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier), Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at Fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded
using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset ot to the
amortised cost of a financial liability,. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not
consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss,



Hyderabad STPS' Limited
CIN:UA3209TG2022PLCI58919
Notes to the Financial statements for the Year ended 31 March 2024

d. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries
where the Company operates and generates taxable income,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
mecome or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets, liabilitics and their carrving
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, excepl:

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
suffieient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating 10 items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation ta the underlying transaction either in OC1 or directly in equity,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-termn deposits with an origmal maturity of
three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management,

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable 1o equity holder by the weighted average number of
cquity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects ol all dilutive potential equity shares.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset thal necessari ly takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they oceur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the bortowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present abligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision 1o be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually ertain, The expense relating to
a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement

Il the effect of the time value of money i1s material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks speeific to the lability, When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance
cost.



" Hyderabad STPS' Limited
CIN:U45209TG2022PLC158919
Notes to the Financial statements for the Year ended 31 March 2024

i. Leascs

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, That i
the use ofan identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

Company as a lessee

Ihe Company applies a single recognition and messurement approach tor all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, The
Company recognises lease liabilities 1o make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying gssets,

s, if the contract conveys the right to control

i} Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (Le., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised. initial direet costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and the estimated useful lives of the assets,

I ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option. depreciation
is caleulated using the estimated useful life of the asset,

The right-of-use assets are also subject 1o impairment.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease labilities measured at the present value of lease pavments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate. and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exereise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the leasc
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate, Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrow ing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, After the commencement date, the amount of lease labilities is increased to reflect the
aceretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition. the carrying amount of lease linbilities is remeasured if there is a
madification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (¢.p., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset,

iii} Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its shart-terim leases of machinery and equipment (i.c.. those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to those items that are considered to be low value (ie.. below Rs, 3,00.000). Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does nat transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases, Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recogmnised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income, Contingent
rents are recomnised as revenue in the period in which they are ¢arned,

i, Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordimary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.



Hyderabad STPS' Limited
CIN:U45209TG2022PLC158919
Notes to the Financial statements for the Year ended 31 March 2024

2, Other non-current financial assets

(Rs in Millions)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Receivable from grantor 3,352.03 1,596.08
Security deposits % 91.77
3,352.03 1,687.85
3. Other non-current assets
(Rs in Millions)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Gst Receivable

9.36 13.86
9.36 13.86
4. Cash and cash equivalents
(Rs in Millions)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand = .
Balances with banks:
- in currenl accounis 4.02 1.40
- Cheques, drafts on hand - -
4.02 1.40
5. Other current financial assets
(Rs in Millions)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Receivable from grantor 41.86 470.05
41.80 470.05
6. Current tax asset (net)
(Rs in Millions)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
TDS Receivable 20.74 24.54
20.74 24.54
7. Other current assets
(Rs in Millions)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Prepaid expenses 3.29 2.49
3.29 2.49




Hyderabad STPS' Limited

CIN:UAS209TG2022PLC158919
Notes to the Financial statements for the Year ended 31 March 2024

8. Equity Share capital

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

Number of shares in

Rupees

Number of shares in

Rupees

Millions (in Millions) Millions (in Millions)
(i) Authorised share capital
Equity Share Capital
As at 31 March 2023 0.05 0.50 0.05 (150
Increase/( Decrease) during the vear - - - "
Asat 31 March 2024 0.05 0.50 0.05 0.50
(i) Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued,subseribed and fully paid
As at 31 March 2023 0.05 0.50 0.05 0.50
Increase/( Decrease) during the year - - - =
As at 31 March 2024 0.05 0.50 0.05 0.50

A. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

a. The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- cach. Each equity share holder is entitled
company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees, The interim dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to

ensuring Annual General Meeting,

b. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assels ol

preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

B. Shareholders holding more than 5% of cquity share capital

o one vote per equity share held. The
the approval of the shareholders in the

the company, after distribution of all

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Number of shares 5 : Number of shares
G sy Yo of Hold 5 9 i
(in Millions) IR (in Millions) ¢of Holding
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Ramky Inlrastructure Limited 0.05 100% 0.035 100%
C. Details of sharcholding by Holding Company
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number of shares — Number of shares Keorpnit
(in Millious) ' (in Millions) e
Ramky Infrastructure Limited
- Equity shares 0.05 0.50 0.05 0.50

D. Shares held by the promoter
As at 31st March 2024

Promoter Name

Class of Equity
Shares

No. of shares at
the beginning of
the year

Change during the
year

No. of shares at the
end of the year

% of Total Shares

% change during
the year

Ramky Infrastructure Limited

Equity shares of Rs.10
each

50,000

50,000

100%

As at 315t March 2023

No. of shares at

2 Cquity Chang ing tl (0, of shares at tl b/ i
Promoter Name Class‘ ot Equiy the beginning of g during the | No, oFsharesue the % of Total Shares He R algeanting
Shares year end of the year the year
the year ;
Equity shares 510
Ramky Infrastructure Limited th;lll} sharke of Ry 50,000 - 50,000 100% -
eac
9. Other equity
As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Retained earnings

Opening balance 106.58 (0.02)
Add: (Loss)/ Profit for the year 82.20 106.60
Closing balance 188.78 106.58
Total Other Equity 188,78 106.58
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10.

11,

12,

Non-current borrowings

(Rs in Millions)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured
Inter corporate deposits from holding company* 385,83 28.05
385.83 28.05

*Inter corporate deposit from related parties carrys a interest rate of 8% p-a and repayable with in 24 months,

Other non-current financial liabilities

(Rs in Millions)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Security deposits

1.82

105.79

1.82

105.79

Deferred tax Liability (net)

(Rs in Millions)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Deferred tax Liability (net)

63.98

35.85

63.98

35.85

A. Components of Deferred tax liabilities

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Carry forward losses (9.83) (1.06)
Liabilities on account of SCA 73.81 36.91
63.98 35.85

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

As at March 31,2024

Particulars Percentage (%) (Rs in Millions)
Profit before tax 110.33
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 25.17% 2000
Effect of:
Non deductible expenses 0.33% 0.36
Effective tax rate 25.49% 28.13

C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

As at March 31,2023

Particilars Percentage (%) (Rs in Millions)
Profit before tax 142.45
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 25.17% 35.85
Effect of:
Non deductible expenses 0.00% -
Effective tax rate 25.17% 35.85
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13. Trade payables

(Rs in Millions)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

- Total outstanding dues to MSME

- Total outstanding dues to creditors other than MSME

2,736.80

1,863.049

2,736.80

1,893.09

Ageing Schedule of Trade Payahle

Particulars

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment

Not Due

<] year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

Morethan 3
years

Total

As at 31 March 2024
Micro Small Medium Enterprises
- Undisputed Dues
- Disputed dues
Other than Micro Small Medium
Enterprises
- Undisputed Dues
- Related parties
- Others
- Disputed dues

2,735.20

1.60

2,735.20
1.60

Asat As at 31 March 2023
Micro Small Medium Enterprises
- Undisputed Dues
- Disputed dues
Other than Micro Small Medium
Enterprises
- Undisputed Dues
- Related parties
- (thers
- Disputed dues

1,512.85
0.55

379.69

1,892.54
0.55

14. Other current liabilities

{Rs in Millions)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Statutory liabilities

30.33

30.33
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15 Revenue from contracts with customers

(INR in Millions)

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Rendering of services

Revenue from service concession activity 2,787.60 244515
2,787.60 2,445.15
16 Other income (INR in Millions)
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Interest income

0.98

0.98

17 Construction Cost

(INR in Millions)

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Constructions costs under Service Concession Arrangement 2,641.00 2,298.48
2,641.00 2,298.48
18 Finance costs (INR in Millions)
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Interest expense

- Intercorporate Deposit 2787 0.96

- Others 0.00 0.39
Other borrowing costs 0.00 -

27.87 1.35

19 Other expenses

(INR in Millions)

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

[nsurance

Rates and taxes

CSR Expenses (refer note below)
Professional consultancy charges
Audit fee

4.67 1.74
0.02 0.04
1.43 -

2.68 0.51
0.58 0.58
9.38 2.87




Hyderabad STPS' Limited
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Notes to the Financial statements for the Year ended 31 March 2024

(i) Details of payments to auditors

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Statutory audit fee .50 0.50
Other services 0.08 0,08
Total 0.58 0.58

(ii) Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities:

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules therein, the Company is required to spend at least 2% of average net profit of

past three years towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Details of corporate social responsibility expenditures as certified by

Management are as follows:

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

For the Year ended
31st March 2024

For the Year ended
31st March 2023

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year

¢) Amount spent during the year ending
i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset
ii) On purposes other than (i) above

d) Details related to spent / unspent obligations:
i) Contribution to Public Trust
ii) Contribution to Charitable Trust
iii) Unspent amount in relation to;
- Ongoing project

- Other than ongoing project

1.42
1.43

1.43
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20, Capital management

21,

The Company's policy is 1o maintain a strong capilal base so as to safeguard its ability to continue as 4 going eoncern, so that it can continue o provide
returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders and for the future development of the Company, In order to maintain or achieve an optimal
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment, return on capital to shareholders or issue of new shares,

The Company's adjusted net debl 1o cquity ratio at 31 March 2024 was as follows:
{Rs in Millions)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Total Debt 38583 28.03
Less: cash and eash equivalents (4.02) (1.40)
Adjusted ner debt 381.81 26.65
Total equity 189.28 107.08
Adjusted equity 189.28 107.08
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 2.02 0.25

Earnings per share
Basic eamnings per share is calculated by dividing:
~ the profit attributable to owners of the group
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during he financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares
{Rs in Millions)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
L. Profit (loss) attributable to equity shareholders{basic) ..-« 82.20 ” 106,60
i, Weighted average number of equity shares (basic) (.05 0.03
Basic EPS 1,644.10 2,131.99
1. Profit (loss) atinbutable to equity shareholders(diluted) 82.20 106.60
ii. Weighted average number of equity shares (diluted) 0.05 0.05
Diluted EPS 1,644.10 2,131.99

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk managerent

Accounting classifications and fair values

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities recognized in the financial statements approximate their fair values and hence no further details
about the fair value measurements including their levels in the fair value heirarchy is not given. No assets and liabilities are measured at fair value,

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities:

As at 31 March 2024 (s in Millions)

Carrying amount
Other financial Other financial Total carrying
assets -amortised cost liabilities - amortised cost amount
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Receivables from grantor under SCA 3,393.89 - 3,393.89
Cash and cash equivalents 4.02 - 4.02
3,397,901 - 3.397.91
Financial liabilitics not measured at fair value
Loans from related parties - 38583 385.83
Sceurity deposits - 1.82 1.82
I'rade payables - 2,736.80 2.736.80
- 3,12445 3,124.45

As at 31 March 2023 (Rs in Millions)

Currying amount

Other financial Other financial Total earrying
assets -amortised cost liabilities - amortised cost amount
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Receivables trom grantor under SCA 26613 - 2,066.13
Security deposits 91,77 . 9177
Cash and cash equivalems 1.40 - 1.40
2,159.30 - 2,159.30
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Loans from related parties - 28,05 28.03
Security deposits - 103.79 105.79
Trade payables 2 1.893.09 1,893.00
- 2,026.93 2,026.93

Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
a) credit risk

b liquidity risk

¢) market risk

i) Risk management framework

The Company’s hoard of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversi ght of the Company's risk management framework. The
Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls
and o monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all emplovees understand their roles and obligations.

I'he Company's Board oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation 1o the risks faced by the Company.
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Finaneial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
Financial risk management

i) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company il a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails (o meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Company's receivables from customers.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure,
Trade receivables

The credit risk on trade receivables is limited because the counterparty was government,

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents of INR 4.02 Millions (INR 1,40 millions at 31 March 2023) at 31 March 2024. The eredit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international eredit rating agencies.

i) Liguidity visk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as faras possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are

due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company uses activity-based
costing to cost its products and services, which assists it in monitoring cash flow requirements and optimising its cash return on investments.

Exposwre to liguidit risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial Tiabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest

payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements

As at 31 March 2024 {Rs in Millions)

Contractual Cash flows
Carrying Amount Total § mpuibygr 6-12 months 1-2 Years 2-5 Years ALaceithan:s
less years
Non-derivative financial liahilities
Borrowings 385.83 38583 - - 385.83 - -
Security deposits 1.82 1.82 - - 1.82 - -
Trade payables 2,736.80 2,736.80 2,736.80 - - & .
3,124,45 3,12445 2,736.80 - 387.65 < d
As at 31 March 2023 (Rs in Millions)
Contractual Cash flows
Carrying Amount Total Srmontigne 6-12 months 1-2 Years 2-5 Yeurs Wigre than
i less years
Non-derivative financial liahilities
Borrowings 28,05 2805 - - 28.035 -
Security deposits 105.79 105.79 - - 105.79 -
I'rade payables 1,.893.09 1,893,090 1,893.09 & o i n
2,026.93 2,026.93 1,893.09 - 133.84 - -

iv) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange mtes, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the Company’s income or the value of ils

holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while

the return.

Interest rate risk

optimising

The Company adopts a policy of ensuring that between 80% and 90% of its interest rale risk exposure is al a fixed rate. This is achieved partly by entering into fixed-rate
instruments and partly by borrowing at a fleating rate instruments.

Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affeet the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent Tiabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets ar liabilities affected in future years.

Taxes
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can he recognised, based upon the likely liming and the level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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24 Related party transactions

A. List of related parties and nature of relationship

5. No. Name of the related party Nature of relationship
I |Ramky Infrastructure Limited Holding Company
2 |P Ravi Prasad Director
3 [M. Divakar Director
4 |Y R Nagargja Director

B. Transactions with related parties during the year ended

(Rs in Millions)

S. No. |Name of the related party Nature of transactions As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Constructions costs under SCA 977.29 2,298.48
Seeurity Deposits Repaid 105.79 2
1 [Ramky Infrastructure Limited Security Deposits Receievd 1.82 105.79
Unsecured Loan Taken 332.70 27.18
Interest Expense 27.87 .96

C. Balance outstanding at the end of the year

(Rs in Millions)

S. No. [Name of the related party Nature of transactions As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Equity share capital 0.50 Cr 0.50 Cr
1 [Ramky Infrastructure Limited Trade‘payahlcs. - Ak ISQE‘S‘_‘ Cr
Sceurity Deposits Reveievd 1.82 Cr 105.79 Cr
Unsecured Loan taken 385.83 Cr 28.05 Cr
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26 Service concession arrangement

27

28.

29.

30.

A.S.Naidu

The Company has entered into a service concession arrangement with Hyderabad Metropolitan Water supply and Sewerage Board for
construction, operation and management of 6 STPs of 480.50 MLD capacity (Decentralized) along South of Musi under Sewerage
Improvement Project of Sewerage Master Plan of Hyderabad Urban Agglomeration and allied works under Hybrid Annuity Mode of
contract including O&M for 15 years.

During the year, the Company has recorded revenue of Rs.2,787.60 Millions (INR 2,445.15 Millions for FY 2022-23) as construction
income, Financial asset of Rs.3393.89 Millions (INR 2066.13 Millions as at 31st March 2023) has been recognised as at 31st March
2024,

There are no dues to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as on 31-03-2024,

(a) The Company do not have any Benami propetty, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any Benami property.

(b) Transactions with struck off companies: Nil

(¢)The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(d) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,

(e) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediaty shall: directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

The Company have not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (i) provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(f) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

(g) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

Balances in respect of Creditors, receivables and various Advances are subject to confirmation from the respective parties.
Previous year figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to confirm the current year classification.

As per our report attached of even date.
For A BV & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Hyderabad STPS' Limited

Divakar Marfi °
Partner Director
Membership Number : 208582 DIN:0686537

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 21.05.2024
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

To
The Members,
Visakha Pharmacity Limited

Report on the Audit of the standalone financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Visakha Pharmacity Limited (“the
Company"”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
fincluding other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(heremnafter referred to as “standalone financial statements”),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
(“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2024, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Fipancial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matter in the Notes to the financial statements:

Note No. 40 to the financial statements which describe the uncertainty in connection with the Charge sheet filed
by CBI against company and the attachment order of the Enforcement Directorate in respect of certain assets of
the company. The Management believes that it has complied with the provisians of the concession agreement.
Our report is not qualified in respect of this matter as the consequential financial impact of the said regulatory
action will be reliably known only when the matter is resolved.

Our opiniton is not modified in respect of this matter.



Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Management Discussion and Analysis and Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report,

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant
rules 1ssued there under. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies:
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
Iraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.



« Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books,

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in Equity and the statement of Cash flows and dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

fd)In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, relevant rules issued there under.

(e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31° March, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31* March,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

{(f) In our opinion, the matter described in the Emphasis of Matter paragraph above may have effect on the
functioning of the business of the company.

(g)  with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B": and

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended :



In-our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

(1) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements - Refer Note No. 40 and 41 to the financial statements;

. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company,

v, a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements, no funds have been received by the company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v, The dividend declared or paid during the year by the company is in compliance with section 123
of the Companies Act, 2013: and

Vi, Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

for A BV & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(A.S.Naidu)
Partner
Membership No, 208582
UDIN: 24208582BKATHM3046
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23-05-2024



Annexure- A to the Independent Auditors’ Report:

The Annexure referred to the Independent auditors’ report to the members of the company on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, we report that:

(i) (@) A) the company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

B) the company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) A major portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of
the Company.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not revalued its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both du ring
the year hence clause 3 (i)(d) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable.

(e)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder hence clause 3
(1)(e) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable.

(i1) (a)  The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable
intervals and in our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate were not noticed for
each class of inventory on such physical verification.

(b)  The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis
of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(1) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the company has made
investments in companies and granted unsecured loans to companies:
(@) During the year the company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans and

A) the aggregate amount during the year was Rs.96.83 Millions, and balance outstanding at
the balance sheet date with respect to such loans or advances to subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates was Rs.151.24 Millions;

B) the aggregate amount during the year was Rs.762.50 Millions and balance outstanding
at the balance sheet date with respect to such loans or advances to parties other than
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates was Rs.1,835.30 Millions,

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the
grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans, investments made and guarantees
provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

() According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of advances in nature of
loans granted by the company the repayment and payment of interest are regular.

(d) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, no amount is overdue for a period of
more than ninety days and hence clause 3 (iii)(d) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020 is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year no loan or advance
in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during thé year, has been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same
parties.



(1v)

(v)

(vi)

(vil)

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the loans or advances in the
nature of loans granted by the company has contain the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest and hence clause 3 (iii)(f) of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 is not applicable,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans,
investments, guarantees, and security the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 have been complied with by the company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and no order has been passed by Company Law
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any tribunal.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company,

We have broadly reviewed the accounts and records maintained by the company as specified by the
Central Government of India for the maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of Section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination
of the same.

{a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us the company has been generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues to the appropriate authorities and no undisputed amounts payable were outstanding as at 31st
March, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, there are no dues of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, sales-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues as at 31st March, 2024 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute. However, the
Company disputes the dues in respect of Service tax and Income Tax is as mentioned below:

—

) |
Name of the | Nature of the | Amount in Rupees | Period to which the

Forum where
Statute Dues amount relates dispute is
pending
Service Tax Tax 11,24,03,856 2007-2013 EThI@ Custom;,
The  Finance | Penalty 11,24,03,856 ).F(;;i& (Sjl;vgze
| Act, 1994 ] PP
s.2,50,00,000/- Tribunal,
paid under protest Hyderabad
Service Tax | Tax Rs. 10,07,65,310 2012-2017 ETh_e Cgséom?'
. Xcise ervice
12?1992%“@ Penalty Rs. 10,07,65,310 Tax Appellate
: ? Rs.75,57,398/- Tribunal,
paid under protest Hyderabad
The lncame | T on Rs.11,13,938/- Financial Year National Faceless
. 2016-17 Appeal Centre
Tax Act, 1961 additions (Rs.1,19,352/- (NFAC)
| made adjusted against
refund receivable)
The Iresire | Tas on | Rs.2,64,53,760/- Financial Year National Faceless
- . 2017-18 Appeal Centre
Tax Act,1961 additions (adjusted against 0 (NFAC)
made and non | refund receivable)
consideration
of Dividend
‘ Distribution
| tax paid
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The Cempany has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year,
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks,
government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, clause 3 (ix) (a) of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable,

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the company
is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender,

(c) The Company has not raised any term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix)
(¢) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we
report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by
the company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) The Company has not raised any amount by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, Clause 3 (x)(a) of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, during the year the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully,
partially or optionally convertible) under section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, Clause 3(x) (b) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not

applicable,

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
company or no material fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the
year,

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,

2013 has been filed by [cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us] in Form ADT - 4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards,

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the

period under audit.



(XV) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020 is not applicable,

(xVi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934,
(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities

without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable.

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable.,

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no CICs in the
Group. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is
not applicable.

(xvii) The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year. Accordingly, clause 3(xvii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not
applicable.

(xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause

Is not applicable,

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when
they fall due.

{xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount required to
be spent as per section 135 of the Act and hence the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(a) and
(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

for ABV & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(A.S.Naidu)
Partner

UDIN: 24208582BKATHM3046

Pltace: Hyderabad
Date: 23-05-2024



Annexure- B to the Independent Auditors’ Report:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Visakha Pharmacity Limited (“the
Company™) as of 31st March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the nisk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of Internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st
March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

for A BV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration

UDIN: 24208582BKATHM3046
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23-05-2024



VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
(CIN: U24239TG2004PLCO42855)
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024
(INR m Millions)

: As at As at
fYmes J1st March 2024 31st March 2023
Assels
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4A 1.396.55 1.350.61
Capital work-in-progress 4B 73743 663,35
Right-of-Use Assets qc 49.77 5135
Financial assets
i} Non-current investments 5 11544 7058
11) Loans 6 | .986.54 1,733, 14
11) Other linancial assets 7 94,46 5799
Total non-current assets 4,380,19 3,927.02
Current assets
lnventories 8 92,37 806 8
Fimancial assels
i} Trade receivables 9 1,232.11 1,234.97
it) Cash and cash equivalents 10 387.75 126,42
1) Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents I 6,99 6.60
iv) Loans 12 - 91,76
v) Others Ninancial assets 13 013 4.63
Current tax assets (net) 14 7248 9.78
Other current assets 15 595.58 42525
Total current assets 3,087.41 2,706.21
Total asscts 7,467.60 6,633.23
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital l& 1 80.00 180.00
Other equity 17
General reserve 30.00 50,00
Retamed earnings 2,599.05 2.383.74
Other comprehensive income (0.52) .59
Taotal equity 2,828.53 2,614.33
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial habilities
i} Other financial labilities 18 1,735 66 91037
Provisions 19 1.02 110
Diferred tax habilities, net 20 138 19 7195
Total non-current liahilitics 1.874.87 983.42
Current liabilities
Financial labilities
1) Trade and other payables
a) Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises - <
b) Outstanding dues Lo creditors other than micro and small enterprises 21 84127 953 56
Other current liabilities 22 1,921 .88 2,080.82
Provisions 23 |05 110
Total current liabilities 2,764.20 3,035.48
Tatal liabilities 4,639.07 4,018.90
Total equity and liabilities 7,467.60 6,633.23

The notes | to 43 are an integral part of these financial statements.

In terms of our report attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Visakha Pharmacity Limited

Py £ = e

PP Lal krishna Divakar Marri  se———
Partner Managing Director Director g
Membership No 208582 DIN 03515181 DN 06863376

UDIN: 24208582BKATHM3046

Place © Hyderabad A, .Snl:l-nﬂrm: Kesava Datta Nanduri

Date: 23-05-2024 Cro

Company Secretary



VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
(CIN: U24239TG2004PLC042855)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31st March 2024

(INR in Millions)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
Notes 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers 24 4,373.39 3,883.80
Other income 25 248.88 130.39
Total income 4,622.27 4,014.19
Expenses
Operating expenses 26 3,701.53 3,261.18
Purchases of stock-in-trade 0.00 0.08
Employee benefits expense 27 58.25 63.19
Finance costs 28 72.65 18.58
Depreciation and amortization expenses 4A&4C 115.76 106.60
Other expenses 29 242.40 200.63 .
Total expenses 4,190.59 3,650.26
Profit before tax 431.68 363.93
Current tax 101.90 108.92
Deferred tax 24.05 (3.35) |
Taxes of earlier years 0.42 (0.11) L
MAT Credit Entitlements - 5 |
Income tax expense 126.37 105.46 ]
Prafit for the year J05.31 258.47
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be re classified to profit and loss
Actuarial gains/(losses) of defined benefit plans (1.56) (0.40)
loss _ 0.45 0.12
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (1.11) (0.28)
Total comprehensive income for the year 304.20 258.19
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (INR) 16.96 14.36
Diluted carnings per share (INR) 16.96 14.36
The notes | to 43 are an integral part of these financial statements.
[n terms of our report attached.
for ABV & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Visakha Pharmacity Limited
Firm Regn I\‘-o: 004@
YRR -NI{
f—— e “
CA AS.Naidu = Dr P.P. Lal krishna Divakar Marri — _ . ,
Partner \09&[“ ac,};-.\\_ Managing Director Director
Membership No: 208582 v\ DIN: 03515181 DIN: 06865376

UDIN: 24208582BKATHM3046

Place : Hyderabad
Dale : 23-05-2024

W
h =
=2

13

© /&)

W QY
&1 N ‘/ s

A. Satyam'Naidu

CF.O

Kesava Datta Nanduri

Company Secretary



VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
(CIN: U24239TG2004PLC042855)
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31st March 2024
(INR in Millions)
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2024 31 March 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Profil for the year (before tax) 431.68 363.93
Adjustments for,

Depreciation and amortization expenses 115.76 106.60
Bad debts written off 15594 99.77
Provision for Doubtful debts - 16.50
Finance costs 72.61 18.52
Other Income (170.36) (97.98)
605.63 507.34
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase) decrease i inventories 14.42 (D.31)
{Increase) Decrease in trade receivables (153.07) (213.61)
{Increase) Decrease in other financial assets (31.99) (5.20)
{Increase) Decrease in other current assets (170.34) (100.84)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables (112.29) 570,91
Increase (deerease) in other financial liabilities 825.30 60791
Inerease (decrease) i other current liabilites (15893) 46698
Increase (decrease) n provisions (1.69) 0.36
Cash generated from (used in) operations 817.04 1,833.54
Incame tax paid (Net) (122.37) (114.13)
Net eash from (used in) operating activities (A) 694.67 1,719.41

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment in Subsidary Company (40.01) (1.50)
Purchase of property. plant and equipment (234.20) (515.88)
Increase in Right of use assets 5 (52.03)
Loans to Related Parties (161.64) (1,092.07)
Interest received 16551 94 38

Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash equivalents (0.39) (0.31)
Net eash from investing activities (B) (270.73) (1,567.41)

Cash flows from !‘inancing activities

Interest expense (72.61) (18.52)
Dividend Paid (90.00) (90.00)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities ( C) (162.61) (108.52)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 261,33 4348
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 126,42 82.94
Closing cash and cash equivalents 387.75 126.42

a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method™ as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) - Statement of
Cash Flow

31st March 2024 31 March 2023
b) Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises of
Cash on Hand 0.02 (102
Balances with Banks
- Current Accounts 387.73 126.40
387.75 126.42
The notes | 1o 43 are an mtegral part of these financial statements.
In terms of our report attached
for A BV & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn 0049375

Visakha Pharmacity Limited

o e L

CA ASNaidu Dy P.P. Lal krishna Divakar Marri
Partner Managing Director Director
Membérship No: 2083582 DIN 03515181 DIN: 06865376

UDIN: 24208582BK ATHM3046

AL WL\'W Jodd
A, Satyam¥ u Kesava Datta Nanduri

Date © 23-05-2024 CEO Company Secretary

Place | Hyderabad



VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year ended 31st March 2024

a. Equity share capital
(INR in Millions)

Amount
Bitlance at the 31st March 2022 180.00
Changes in Equily Share Capital Due to Prior period Errors -
Restated balance as 31st March 2022 180,00
Changes in equity share capital duning 2022-23 -
Balance as at the 31st March 2023 180.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital Due to Prior period Frrors
Restated balance as 31st March 2023 180.00
Changes in equity share capital durmg 2023-24 -
Balance as at the 31st March 2024 180.00
b, Other equity
{INR in Millions)
Reserves and surplus Other items of Other Total
General reserve Retained earnings | Comprehensive Income

Balance at 31st March 2022 50,00 2,215.27 0.87 2,266.14
Changes in accounting palicy or prior period errors - % e G
Restated Balance at 31st March 2022 50.00 2,218.27 0.87 2,266.14
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March 2023
Profit or loss - 258.47 - 258.47
Other comprehensive income(net of tax) - - (0,28) (0.28)
Total comprehensive income - 258.47 (1.28) 258.19

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
directly in equity

Final dividend, declared and paid during the year - (90.00) - (90.00)
Tax on final dividend i " 4

Balance at 31st March 2023 50,00 2,383.74 0.59 2,434,33
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - R 5 =
Restated Balance at 31st March 2023 50,00 2,383,774 .59 2,434.33

Total comprehensive income for the vear ended 31st March 2024

Profit or loss - 305.31 - 305.31
Other comprehensive incomeinet of tax) - - (L.11) {1.11)
Total comprehensive income - 305.31 (L.11) 304.20

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Dividend " (90.00) 3 (90.00)
Tax on final dividend 5 5 =

Balance at 31st March 2024 50,00 2,599.05 (.52) 2,648.53

The notes 1 to 43 are an integral part of these financial statements,
In terms of our report attached.

for A BV & Associates
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Visakha Pharmacity Limited

lhr—— <&\,

A ALB. Naidu Dr P Lal krishna Divakar Marri -

Partner Managing Director Director -~ 4

Membership No: 208582 PIN: 03515181 DIN: 06865370

UDIN 24208582BKATHM3046 e

=j53\

NG *q;— MJUK e &\

Pliace - Hyderabad A Satyam Naidu Kesava Datta Nandiiri 1] \ |

Date - 23-05-2024 CFoO Company Secretary ﬁ 3|
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VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
For the Year Ended 31st March 2024

4A. Property, plant and equipment

(INR in Millions)

Freehold land Social infrastructure .Plalnl 2 Pyl e Vehicles Office equipment ('nml“"," Total
equipment fixtures accessories

Deemed cosit (gross earrying )

Balance at 31st March 2022 64.67 475.63 1,305.30 1.54 12.12 4.08 2.68 1,866.02
Additions - - - 0.90 EX 047 1.34 65.32
Disposals z = ¥ " = - . -
Balanee at 31st March 2023 .67 475.63 1,305.30 244 15.73 4,55 4.02 1,872.34
Additions 2,89 - 157.23 - - - - 160,12
Misposals = = = % N
Balance at 31st March 2024 67.56 475.63 1,462.53 2.44 15,73 4.55 4.02 2,032.46
At lated deprecis

Balance at 31st March 2022 = 125.32 277.46 1.20 B.06 2,13 1.64 415.82
Depreciation for the year - 18.22 84,62 0.15 1.62 .57 .74 105,92
Disposals - z = - E = - -
"B:Ilance at dlst March 20213 - 143.54 362.08 1.35 9.68 2.70 2,38 521.73
Depreciation for the year 18.27 92,75 0,13 1,70 (.54 0.719 114,18
Disposals = = = = 5 = - -
Balance at 315t March 2024 - 161.81 454.83 1.48 11.38 3.24 317 635.91
Carrying amounts(net)

As atd3lst Mareh 2023 64,67 33209 943,22 1.09 6.05 1.85 1.64 1,350.61
As at 31st March 2024 67.50 313.82 1,007.70 .96 4.35 1.31 .85 1,396.55
¥ Refer Note no, 40

4B . Capital work-in-progress (IMNK i Millions)

As at As at
st March 2024 | 31st March 2023

| Capital work -in-progress 73743 663.35
. 737.43 663.35

Ageing Schedule of Capital work-in-progress;

. Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars - =
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Morethan 3 years Total

As at dst March 2024

- Projects in progress 23097 41979 B6.67 - 73743

- Projects temporarily suspended

As atdlst March 2023

- Projects in progress 1oz 15233 = - 66335

- 'rojects temporanly suspended

4C, Right of use assets:

Asat As at

Particulars

Fst March 26024

3lst Mareh 2023

(INR in Millions)

Gross Carrying Amount
Land

Opening balance

Add: Additions

Less: Deletions

{a) Closing Balance

Amortisution
Opentng balance
Adkd: Durmg the year
Less: Deletions

(b} Closing Balance

() Net Carrying Amount

(INR in Millions}

52.03 :
= 52.03
52.03 52.03
068 .
158 0.68
i 2.26 0.68
49.77 51.35




VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
.Notes to the financial statements
For the Year Ended 31st March 2024

5.

9.

Non-current investments

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

As at
J1st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

a) Equity instruments of subsidiaries:

(unquoted, carried at cost)

1.50.000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each in INPC Pharma [nnovation Limited
51,000 (P.Y. 50.000) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each in RECEPS Limited

50,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each in Visakha Pharma Innovation and Incubation
Limited

50,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each in Visakha Energy Limited

b) In mutual funds, at fair value through profit and loss

25,026.552 units in Bandhan Liquid Fund - Regular Plan -Growth ( IDFC Cash Fund-
Growth-(Direct Plan) )

(Face value of Rs.1000/-cach) (Refer note: 40)

1.50 1.50
40.51 0.50
0.50 0.50
0.50 0.50
72.43 67.58
115.44 70.58

. Loans

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Unsecured, considered good:

Particulars

31st March 2024

l.oans to Related Parties 1,986.54 1.733.14
1,986.54 1,733.14
The above loans will be repayable with in 24 to 60 months and interest @ 8% p.a.
. Other non-current financial assets
(INR in Millions)
As at As at

31st March 2023

Unsecured, considered good:

Security deposits 94.46 57.99
94.46 57.99
. Inventories

(valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

(INR in Millions)
g As at As at
Particular
HENERIRES 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Development expenditure 791.35 805.52
Stock of stores, consumables and trading goods 1.02 1.28
792.37 806.80
Trade receivables
(INR in Millions)
. As at As at
Particulars ;
1 ¥ 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Unsecured, considered good 1,232.11 1,234.97
Credit impaired 15.60 16.50
1,247.71 1,234.97
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (15.60) (16.50)
1,232.11 1,234.97

Ageing details refer note no: 36
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VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
For the Year Ended 31st March 2024

10. Cash and Cash equivalents

(INR in Millions)

; 5 As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2024 | 31t March 2023
Cash on hand (.02 002
Balances with banks:
-1 eurrent aecounts 387.73 126,40
387.75 126.42
- Banlk balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
(INR in Millions)
s o ) As at As at
astouiany st March 2024 31st March 2023
Balances with banks;
- n Margin money deposits against guarantees 6.99 6.60
6.99 6.60
12. Loans
(INR in Millions)
As at As at

Particulars

Jlst March 2024

31st March 2023

Unsecnred, considered good
Loans to related parties

91.76

91.76

13. Other curvent financial assets

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Unsecured, considered good
Other loans and advances

0.13

4.63

0.13

4.63

14, Current tax assets (net)

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Advance Tax , Net of Provision for Income Tax 72.48 9.78
72.48 9.78
15, Other current assets
(INR i Millions)
Particulars s S
J1st March 2024 31st March 2023
Advances recoverable i cash or in kind 46.19 23,64
Cenvat/GS'T receivahle 436.18 30372
Income Tax Refund Receivable 20,00 -
Pre-paid expenses 4.37 4.80
Other Current Assets 88 84 93.09
595.58 425.25
16. Share capital
(INR in Millions)
Particulars s AT
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Authorised
1.80,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. [0/~ ¢ach 180.00 180.00
180.00 180.00
Issued, subseribed and paid-up
1.80.00.000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 180,00 180.00
180,00 180.00

A, Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Number (INR in Millions) Number (INR in Millions)
At the commencement of the period 1.80.00.000 180.00 1.80.00.000 I80.00
Shares issued for cash i - - -
At the end of the period 1,80,00,000 180.00 1,80,00,000 180.00




VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
For the Year Ended 31st March 2024

B. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly. all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the company's residual assets on winding up.
The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a
hisfits share of the paid-up equity share capital of the company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respeet of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable has not
been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to their forfeiture
On winding up of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the company, remaming afler disteibution of all preferential amounts.
in proportion to the number of equity shares held

C. Sharcholders holding more than 5% of equity share eapital

poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

N“mb{;:;?gs“m“ % of holding  [Number of shares held % of holding
Ramky Infrastructure Limited 91,580,000 51% 91,80.000 51%
Ramky Estates and Farms Limited 68.40.000 38% 68.40.000 38%
Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastucture Corporation Limited 19.80,000 1% 19.80,000 I 1%
1,80,00,000 100% 1,80,00,000 100%
D. Shares held by holding company
(INR in Millions)
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
Equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid
up 91.80.000 1 80 91.,80,000 91 .80
Ramky Infrastructure Limited
91,580,000 91.80 91,80,000 91.80

E. Shares held by the promoter
As at 31st March 2024

Promoter Name

Class of Equity

No. of shares at

Change during  No. of shares at

% of Total Shares % change during

Shares the beginning of the year the end of the the year
the year year
Souity shar C B F % =
Ramky Infrastructure Limited Bty shares of 91,80,000 91,80,000 51%
’ Rs. 10 each
o PR LI, e o y " i
Ramky Lstates and Farms Limited Bauity shares of 68,40,000 68,40,000 38%
’ Rs. 10 each
Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastucture  Equity shares of 19.80.000 - 19.80.000 1% -

Corporation Limited

Rs. 10 each

|

As at 31st March 2023

Promoter Name

Class of Equity

No. of shares at

Change during  No. of shares at

% of Total Shares % change during

Shares the beginning of the year the end of the the year
the year year
Ramky Infrastructure Limited Equity shares of 91,80,000 - 91.80.000 51% -
: Rs. 10 each
Ramky Estates and Farms Limited Equity shares of 68,40.000 - 68,440,000 38% ~
: Rs. 10 cach
Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastucture  Equity shares of 19,80,000 - 19,80.000 1% =

Corporation Limited

Rs. 10 each

. Other equity

(INR in Millions)

Particulars Asal At
J1st March 2024 Jist March 2023

General reserve S0.00 50.00
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginnmg of the vear 2.383.74 221527
Profit for the year 30531 258 47
Dividend (90.00) (90.00)
Balance at the end of the year 2,599.05 2,383.74
Other comprehensive income
Balance at the beginmng of the year 0.59 (187
Changes during the year L) (0.28)
Balance at the end of the year (0.52) 0.59

2,648.53 2,434.33




VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
For the Year Ended 31st March 2024

18. Other non-current financial liabilities

(INR in Millions)

As at As at
> of o,
Kaeticalary 3ist March 2024 31st March 2023
Security deposits 97.27 94.17
Capital creditors 1,638.39 816.20
1,735.66 910.37
19. Non-current provisions
(INR in Millions)
N N As at As at
Paflivatins 315t March 2024 31st March 2023
Provision for employee benefits
- Compensated absences 1.02 1.10
1.02 1.10

20. Deferred tax assets /(liabilities) , net

A Movement in temporary differences

(INR in Millions)

2 As at As at
Fartieuiges 315t March 2024 31st March 2023
Deferred tax asset
MAT credit entitlement 5.29 47.94
5.29 47.94
Deferred tax liability
Property, plant and equipment 125.79 120.29
Investments 10.78 9.37
Others 6.91 (9.78)
143.48 119.89
(138.19) (71.95)
B Reconciliation ol effective Tax Rate
(INR in Millions)
As at 31st March 2024
Profit Before Tax 431.68
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 29.12% 125,70
Cifect of
Non-deductible expenses / incomes not taxable 0.06% 0.24
Effective tax rate 29.18% 125.95
As at 31st March 2023
Profit Before Tax 363.93
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 29.12% 105.97
Effect of:
Non-deductible expenses / incomes not taxable -0.11% (0.40)
Effective tax rate 29.01% 105.57

21, Trade payables

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

As at
st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Trade Payahles
- due to micro and small enterprises

- due to other than micro and small enterprises 841.27 953.56
841.27 953.56

Ageing details refer note no: 37

22, Other curvent liabilities
(INR in Millions)
. As al As at
Particulars
s 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Advance from customers 1.888.17 2,049 96
Dues to statutory / government authorities 23.82 18.05
Accrued salaries.wages and benefits 5 2.45
Lxpenses payable 9.89 10.36
1,921.88 2,080.82




VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
For the Year Ended 31st March 2024

23,

24,

25,

26,

27,

28.

Current provisions

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

As at
J1st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Provision for employee benefits:
- Gratuity

- Compensated absences

1.05

1.10

1.05

1.10

Revenue from contracts with customers

(INR in Millions)

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

Particulars
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Revenue from sale of land and development 475.07 -
Operations and maintenance revenue 3.894.93 3.881.71
Sale of goods 3.39 2.09
4,373.39 3,883.80

Other income

(INR in Millions)

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

Particulars
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Interest income 170.36 97.98
Other non-operating income 78.26 12.77
Liabilities no longer required, written back 0.26 19.64
248.88 130.39

Operating expenses

(INR in Millions)

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

Particulars
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Development expenditure 14.16 -
Operating and maintainance expenditure 3.670.69 3.246.05
Chemicals and reagents 3.93 5.66
Power and fuel 12.75 9.47
3,701.53 3,261.18

Employee benefits expense

(INR in Millions)

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

Particulars
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Salaries and wages 52.88 55.92
Contribution to provident and other funds 2.69 3.13
Workmen and stafl welfare expenses 2.68 4.14
58.25 63.19

Finance costs

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31st March 2024

For the Year Ended
31st March 2023

Interest expense
- on others
Other borrowing costs

- bank charges

72,01 18.52
0.04 0.06
72.65 18.58




VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
For the Year Ended 31st March 2024

29,

(ii)

Other expenses

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31st March 2024

For the Year Ended
31st March 2023

Rates and taxes

Professional and technical charges
Fees and charges

Business promotion
Advertisement

Travelling and convevance
Printing and stationary

Audit fees

Communication charges

Repairs and maintenance
Insurance

CSR expenditure

Bad debts and advances written off
Provision for Doubtful debts

Miscellaneous expenses

2.52 1.94
49.97 53.72
0.59 0.38
5.23 1.51
0.35 0.30
3.88 4.41
0.19 0.22
¥:23 1.10
0.46 0.64
0.17 4.09
7.76 6.59
10.00 6.00
155.94 99.77
- 16.50
4.09 3.46
242.40 200.63

Details of payments to auditors

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

For the Year Ended
J1st March 2024

For the Year Ended
31st March 2023

Statutory audit fee
Other services
Total

0.50 0.50
(.75 0.60
1.25 1.10

Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities:

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules therein, the Company is required to spend at least 2% of average net
prolit of past three years towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Details of corporate social responsibility expenditures

as certified by Management are as follows:

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

For the Year ended
J1st March 2024

For the Year ended
J1st March 2023

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year

b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year

¢) Amount spent during the year ending
i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset

ii) On purposes other than (i) above

d) Details related to spent / unspent obligations:
i} Contribution to Public Trust
i) Contribution to Charitable Trust
iif) Unspent amount in relation to:
- Ongoing project

- Other than ongoing project

9.78
10.00

10.00

10.00

8.49

0*

6.00

6.00

*The company has incurred excess amounts in previous years, hence the short fall for the F.Y 2022-23

CXCess amounts.

is used against that




VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
" Notes to the financial statements
For the Year Ended 31st March 2024

30, Related parties
A List of velated partics and nature of relationship

Nature of relati

| TW Viyava Kumar*

12 |P P Lal knishna

I3 A Satyam Naidu

14 | V.Murahar Reddy

15 [E.Sankar Rao

16 [P Eshwar Reddy

17 M Divakar

18 | M Siva Satyanarayana Reddy
19 |5 Ravi Kumar Reddy

20 |N Kesava Datta

10 |Frank Llovd Tech Management Services Linted

5. No. Name of the related party I
I |Ramky Infrastiucture Limited Holding company
2 |INPC Pharma lanovation Limited Subsichary
3 |RECEPS Limited Subsidiary
4 [Visakha Energy Linited Subsidiary
3 |Visakha Pharma lnnovation and [ncubatien Limsted Subsidiary
6 |Ramky Estates and Farms Limited Group Company
T |RE Sustainability Limited Group Comipany
8 |Snulax Laboratories Linvited Group Company
9 Ramky Foundation Giroup Concern

Fellow subsidiary

Whole Time Director
Managing Diector and C.E. O
CFO

Director

Director

Directar

Director

Director

Director

Company Secretary

* upte 09-11-2022

B. Transactions with related partics during the year ended

(INR in Millions)

. Year endeqd Year ended
S. No. |Name of the related party Datureof Lransactions 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Contract expenditure (Operation & M, ) 322214 322767
Inter Corporate Deposits given - 120.00
|Capital Expenditure 146.67 502.07

. : : Contract expenditure (Repairs & Mai ) 548.935 =
1 |Ramky Infrastructure Limited Tisieet Theo e 704 o530
Inter Corporate Deposits received back 300.00 35
Recovery of Expenses Incurred T41.74 746,32
Dividend paid 45,90 4590
Dividend paid 34.20 34.20
; . Inter Corparate Deposits given 0.00 100.00
% (R NG b Liiea fiter Coﬁnmle Da::sits Received back CYRE] 13.00
Interest on 10D 264 529
3 |Re Sustamabality Linmted D&M Income 226,89 22402
Inter Corporate Deposits piven 96.83 69,40
Inter Corporate Deposits Received back = 2500
Interest on 1CD 977 1.35
4 [RECEPS Lumited Investmel in Equity shares 40 50 0500
Other Receivables recovered 302 -
Rental and O&M income .04 -
Payment made on behalf - 302
5 |Smulax Laboratories Lamled O&M Income 103 19 7511
Inter Corporate Deposits given 66500 811.00
6 [Madhya Pradesh Waste Management Private Limited Inter Corporate Deposits Received back 45000 012
Interest on ICD 76,70 19.79
Rent Expenses 326 126
7 |Ramky Foundation CSR expenses 10.00 600
8 JINPC Pharma Innvotion Limited Exj Incurred on behal 0.02 0.0]
9 |Visakha Energy Lunited Investmet in Equity shares 0.50
10 [Visakha Pharma lnnovation and lneubation Limited Investmet i Equaty shares = 050

11 |Ramky Enclave Limited Inter Carporate Deposits given 97.50 -

Interest on ICD 6.56 -
12 |P.P Lal krishna Director Remuneration 639 3.80
13 LW Vijaya Kumar Director It = 608
14 |A Satyam Naidu Salary 223 2,03
15 |V Murahan Reddy Director Silting fee 027 019
16 |E Sankar Rao Dhrector Sitting fee Q.21 010
17 |P Eshwar Reddy Director Siting fee .20 015
I8 |5 Ravi kumar Reddy Director Sitting fee 0.27 0.19

C. Balances outstanding

(INR in Millions)

5. No. | Name of the velated party Detnily _":I ;:::::?:}24 SIIm::::;?HA
Security deposit payable 5000 50.00 |
Inter Corporate Deposits given 669 17 Q08 84
I Ramky Intrastruciure Limited 'I‘md.e Paynh.lcs = = 4259 S0
Captal ereditors (before discounting) 1,629 97 83811
Share Capual 91 80 91.80
2 [Ramky Estates and Farms Limited Shers oapinl by B340
Inter Corporate Deposits mven @l 76
3 |Re Sustanability Limied Trade recevables 19 69 4806
4 [Madhya Pradesh Waste Management Private Limited l'_m:r Corporate Deposts gven LOge i 77869
Expenses payable 39 -
Inter Carporate Deposits given 151.24 45.61
5 |RECEPS Limited Investment i Equity share capital 4051 050
Other Receivables 1000 302
6 [Visakha Energy Linnted Inivestmet in Equity shares 050 (500
7 |Visakha Pharma nnovation and Incubation Limited Investmet m Equity shares 0.50 0.50
8 |Snulax laboratories Trade Receivables 7849 7400
9 [INPC Pharma Innovation Limited Expetises Recoivable 023 0.23
Investment_in Equity share capital 1.50 1.50
10 [Frank Lloyd Tech Management services Limited Expenses Payable 148 148
Il [Ramky Enclave Linyied Inter Corporate Deposits wiven 103 41 -
12 |P P Lalknshna Remuneartion payable 027 |
13 [Satyam Naidu Salary payable - .04
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31.

32.

33,

Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns

for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders and for the future development of the Company, In order to maintain or acl

structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment. return on capital to shareholders or issue of new shares.

The Company's adjusted net debt 1o equity ratio at 31 March 2024 & 31 March 2023 was as follows:

lieve an optimal capital

(INR in Millions)

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Debt
less: cash and cash equivalents
Adjusted net debt

Total equity

Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio

387.75 126.42
(387.75) (126.42)
2,828.53 2,614.33
0.00 0.00

Earnings per share
Basic carnings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit attributable to owners of the group

- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity sl

excluding treasury shares

1ares issued during the year and

(INR in Millions)

Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
i. Profit (loss) attributable to equity shareholders(basic) 30531 258.47
il. Weighted average number of equity shares (basic) 1.80.00.000 1,80,00.000
Basic EPS (In Rs.) 16.96 14.36

The Company does not have any potentially dilutive equity shares outstanding during the year.

Assets and liabilities relating to employece benefits

For details about the related employee benelit expenses, see Note 27.
The Company operates the following post-employment defined benefit plan;

The Company has a delined benefit gratuity plan in India, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972. The pl

an entitles an employee, who has rendered at

least five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of filteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereol in excess of six months.,

based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned. This defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuaria

currencey risk. interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.

Al Funding
The gratuity plan is funded.

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset) liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net detined benefit (

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

1 risks, such as longevity risk,

asset) liability and its components,

Plan A (INR in Millions)
Liahility As at As at
J J1st March 2024 J1st March 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 4.56 3.31
Benelits paid (2.44) -
Current service cost 0.29 0.64
Interest cost 0.25 0.24
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income

- changes in demographic assumptions - =

- changes in financial assumptions 0.06 (0.05)

- experience adjustments 1.5] 0.42
Balance at the ¢nd of the year 4.23 4.56




VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
For the Year Ended 31st March 2024

(INR in Millions)
. As at As at
Fund assets 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 7.59 7.01
Interest income 0.48 (.51
Contributions 0.09 0.10
Benelits paid (2.44)
Remeasurement - return on assels 0.01 (0.03)
Balance at the end of the year 573 7.59
Plan B (INR in Millions)
As at As at
J1st March 2024 31st March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 2.19 1.44
Benefits paid - (0.29)
Current service cost 0.16 0.80
Interest cost 0.17 0.09
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income
- changes in demographic assumptions = “
- changes in financial assumptions 0.01 (0.01)
- experience adjustments (0.47) 0.16
Balance at the end of the year 2.06 2.19
Expense recognised in profit or loss
Plan A (INR in Millions)
As at As at
J1st March 2024 31st March 2023
Current service cost 0.29 0.64
Interest cost 0.25 0.24
Interest income (0.48) (0.51)
0.06 0.37
Plan B (INR in Millions)
As at Asat
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Current service cost 0.16 0.80
Interest cost 0.17 .09
Past service gain (0.45) 0.15
(0.12) 1.04
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income
Plan A (INR in Millions)
As at As at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Actuarial (gain) loss on defined benefit obligation 1.57 0.37
Return on plan assets excluding interest income (0.01) 0.03
1.56 0.40
Plan B (INR in Millions)
As at As at

31st March 2024

Jlst March 2023

Actuarial (gain) loss on defined benefit obligation
Return on plan assets excluding interest income
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C. Defined benefit obligation

. Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Plan A
As at As at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Discount rate 7.23% 7.50%
Future salary growth 8.00% 8.00%
Withdrawal Rate 1.00% 1.00%
Mortality table (as % of IALM(2012-14)(Mod.) Ult. Mortality Table) 100.00% 100.00%
Plan B
As at As at
J1st March 2024 J1st March 2023
Discount rate 7.23% 7.50%
Future salary growth 8.00% 8.00%
Altrition rate 1.00% 1.00%
Mortality table (as % of IALM(2012-14)(Mod.) Ult. Mortality Table) 100.00% 100.00%

ii. Seasitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumplions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the

defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below

Plan A

(INR in Millions)

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 4.03 4.47 4.36 4.79
Future salary growth (1% movement) 4.47 4.02 4.80 4.36
Withdrawal rate (1% movement) 4.21 4.25 4.54 4.58
Plan B (INR in Millions)
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 2.02 2.13 2.14 2.26
Future salary growth (1% movement) 2.15 2.01 227 4 Bt
Altrition rate (1% movement) 2,07 2.08 2.20 2.20

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan. it does provide an

the assumptions shown.

approximation of the sensitivity ol
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34, Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
A, Accounting classifications and fair values
The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities recogmized m the financial statements approximate their fair values and hence no further details about the fair value measurements ncluding
their levels in the fair value heirarchy is not given,
The following table shows the carrving amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities:

Jlst March 2024

(INR in Millions)

Carrying Amount

Financial assets - Other financial Financial liabilities - Other financial Total carrying
FVTPL assets -amortised cost FYTPL linhilities - amortised cost amount
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investment in mutoal funds* 7243 - 5 - 72.43
72.43 - - 72.43
Finaneial assets not measured at fair value
Security deposits - 94.46 - - 94 46
Investments - 43.01 - - 43.01
|oins - 1,986.54 - - 1,986.54
Trade receivables - 1,232.11 1.232.11
Cash and cash equivalents - 381.75 - - 387.75
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents = 6.99 - - 6,99
Other current financial assets - 0.13 - - 0.13
- 3,750.99 - 3,750.99
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Security deposits received - - 97127 97.27
Capital creditors®* - - 1.638.39 - 1,63839
Trade payables - - 84127 84127
- - 1,638.39 938.55 2,576.94

3lst March 2023

(INR in Millions)

Carrving A

mount

Financial assets -

Other financial

Financial liabilities -

Other financial

Total carrying

FVTPL assets -amortised cost FVTPL liabilities - amortised cost amount
Financial assets measured at fair value
Non-current investiments® 67.58 - - 67.58
67.58 - - - 67.58
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Security deposits - 57.99 = - 57.99
Investmens - 3.00 - - 300
Loans - 1,824.90 - 03 1,824 90
Trade receivables - 1,234 97 - - 1,234.97
Cash and cash equivalents - 126.42 - = 12642
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents = 660 - - 6.60
Other corrent tinancial assets - 4.63 - 4 463
- 3,258.51 - - 3,258.51
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Secunily deposits received = - - 94.17 94.17
Capital creditors** - 816,20 - 816.20
Trade payables - - - 933.56 953,56
- - 816,20 1,047.73 1,863.93

*Level | Inputs used
**Level 3 Inputs used

+ Levell inputs — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the enhity can access at the measurement date.
+ Level? inputs — Inputs other than quoted prices icluded within Level | that are observable for the asset ar liability, either directly or indirectly.
* Level3 inputs — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
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34. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

kg

B. Financial visk management

i) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the visk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible. that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
meurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation

The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents at an amount in excess ofexpected cash outflows on financial liabilitics (other than trade payables) aver the next six months. The
Company also monitors the level of expected cash inflows with expected cash outflows on trade payables and other financial liabilities,

Fxposire fo lquidity risk
The followimg are the remaining contractual maturities of financial abilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments and exclude the

mpact of netting agreements

3st March 2024 (INR i Millions)

Contractual Cashflows

Carrying Amount Total 6 months or less 6-12 months 1-2 Years 2-5 Years Maore than 5 years

Mon-derivative financial linbilities
Secured Bank Loans -
Security deposits received 97.27 97.27 - - - - 97.27

Capital Creditors 1.638.39 1,638.39 - = 1.638.39 - -
Trade pavables 84127 841.27 841.27 - - - -
2,576.94 2,576.94 841.27 - 1,638.39 - 97.27
Jlst March 2023 (INR in Millions)
Contractual Cashflows
Carrying Amount Total 6 months or less 6-12 months 1-2 Years 2-5 Years Maore than 5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Secured bank loans * - 2 - E - -
Security deposits received 94.17 94,17 - - - - 9417
Capital Creditors 816.20 816,20 - - 816,20 - -
Trade Payables 953.56 953,56 953,56 - - - -
1,863.93 1,863.93 953.56 - 816.20 - 94.17

The interest payments on variable interest rate loans in the tabile above reflect market forward interest rates at the reporting date and these amounts may change as market interest rates change.
Exeept for these financial liabilities, it is not expected that cash flows included in the maturity analysis could oceur significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts,

i) Murket risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the Company’s income or the value of is holdings of financial
instruments, The objective of market risk management is 10 mmage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the returm

Interest rate visk
The Company adopts a policy of ensuring that between 80 and 90% of its interest rate risk exposure 15 at a fixed rate. This is achieved partly by entering into fixed-rate instruments and partly by
borrowing at a floating rate instruments,

Fxposure to fnterest vare risk
The nterest rate profile of the Company's mt Dbearing financial inste as reported to management is as follows:

(INR in Millions)
Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets 1.993.53 1.831.50
Financial liabilitics

5 Ratio Analysis and its elements
Ratio Mumerator Denominator 3lst March 2024 | 31st March 2023 Yo change Reason for variance
C'urrent ratio ) Current Assets Current Liabilities [ 0,89 25.28%| Refer note (i) below
Deebi- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 0.00 .00 0.00%,

Earnings for debt service = :
arnings for ERVICE=NEL! (il verice = Interest & Lease Payiments |

Service Coverage ralio ofit g axes + Nan-ca S o
Debt Service Coverage ralic profit .1!ler| 1XEs on-cash Principal Repayments .00 0.00 0.00%
operating expenses Interest
i I Net Profits after taxes — ozt
Retunn on Equuty ratio RUEmfEalertanes Average Shareholder's Equity 11,22%) 10.22% 9.82%

Preference Dividend

ﬁ_wculur)' Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Net credit sales = Gross credil

Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio siles Lol e Average Trade Receivable 3:55 39 8209,
Net credit purchases = Gross T
Trade Payable Tumover Ratio credit purchases - purchase Average Trade Payables 4.29 510 -16.00%
retim
Nel Capital Turnover Ratio Net sales = Total sales - sales | Working capital » (‘1.1r.r§|ll assets — Current 133 TG A ] 1
et | G liabiititias 3,53 7 214.72%| Refer note (1) below
Net Profit ratio Net Profit Net sales = Total sales - sales retumn 6.98% 66| 4902
5 Farnings before iterest and Capital Employed = Tangible Net Wortl +
HERssa Chpili Empioyed lixes ; p['o!zll Depbt-r Deferre: Tax Liahl'lil_\'h 15.26% 13,92% 9.63%
Incaine gencrated from Time weighted averageinvestments 7.17% 5 639 27 360 i H
investments (Mutual Funds) 4 » o D A% Refer note (ii) below

Retum on mvestiment

Income penerated from

Time weighted averageinvestments 9 0 0
mvestments (Loans) & kot ¢ 8.00% 8.00% 0.00%

(1) Due 10 carrent year profits current assets were improved
1) Due 1o inerease in Market value of investments
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36 Ageing Schedule of Trade reccivables: (INR in M
QOutstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment
Particulars Total
Not Due <l year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
As at 31st March 2024
Undisputed Trade receivables - Considered good 351,27 762,89 76.83 27.79 1332 1,232.11
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Doubiful - - - .49 636 7.85
[isputed Trade Recervables - Considered pood - - - - = =
Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Doubtiul = = - 081 6404 7.75
As at 31st March 2023
Undisputed Trade recetvables — Considered good 311,22 77727 75.90 5377 16.8] 1,234,97
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Doubtful - - 1 49 3.51 355 8.55
Disputed Trade Recervables - Considered pood 7 " A - - i
Ihsputed Trade Recervables - Considered Doubttul - - 1.01 2.64 4.30 7.95
37 Ageing Schedule of Trade Payable (INR in Mi
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment
Not Due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years Yarl

Asat 31st March 2024
Micro Small Medium Enterprises
- Undisputed Dues # : = = -
- Disputed dues - - . = =
Other than Micro Small Medium Enterprises
- Undisputed Dues
- Related parties 441,92 1.06 - - 348 446,46
- Others 105.57 81.56 194.71 1.67 6.30 394 81
- Disputed dues o . i g
Asat 31st March 2023
Micro Small Medium Enterprises
- Undisputed Ducs - = % 5
- Disputed dues - - - = .
Other than Micro Small Medium Enterprises
- Uindisputed Dues
- Related parties 257.81 292.22 - - 3:.48 553.51
- Others 107.01 288.50 046 0.06 4.02 400.05
- Disputed dues . " ¥

38 Other Statutory Information:

a) The Company do not have any Benami property. where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
b) Transactions with struck off companies: Nil

¢) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

d) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

¢) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities. including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understandin o that
the Intermediary shall: directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsocver by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficraries) or

The Company have not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing
or otherwise) that the Company shall: (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiarics) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as. search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

£) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
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39 There are no dues to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as on 31st March, 2024,

40 During the F.Year 2012-13 a Charge sheet has been filed by CBI against company with the CBI court, Nampally. Hyderabad alleging certain irregularitics by the
company pertaining to reduction of Green belt area and also the Company has received a provisional attachment order under Section 5 (1) of the Prevention of Money
Laundering Act, 2002 from Enforcement Directorate (ED) dated 07 January 2013 for attachment of assets/properties valued at Rs 1337.4 Millions compris ing Land and
facilities valuing Rs. 13054 Millions and Mutual Fund of Rs. 32.0 Millions, During the previous year the adjudicating authority passed a confirmation order of the
above provisional attachment order and the company has preferred an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal, In the meantime, the office of Joint Director, Enforcement
Directorate, Hyderabad Zonal office has served a Notice for taking the possession of the referred properties under section 8(4) of the PMLA 2002. The company has
filed a writ petition before the honorable High court of Andhra Pradesh, IHyderabad seeking for stay ol proceedings. The honorable High court of Andhra Pradesh has
granted a interim stay of all further proceedings till a stay application is considered and appropriate orders passed by the Appellate authority. On 20th November, 2013,
the Appellate Tribunal has considered the stay application and stayed the FDs notice. Since the Appellate Tribunal ceased of the matter. the cause in the writ petition
does not survive. Hence, the above referred Writ Petition is dismissed, The case is posted for hearing on 29th July 2015 with the Appellate Tribunal, However, Mutual
Fund of Rs. 32.00 Millions was transferred in the name of the Directorate of Enforcement. Further on 26th March 2015, the Joint Director, Enforcement directorate,
Hyderabad zonal office has passed a provisional attachment order for Rs 2161.80 Millions on the assets of company. The Joint Director has filed a complaint under
PMLA before the Adjudicating authority seeking for confirmation of the above provisional attachment order on 10 April 2015, The Adjud icating Authority (AA) has
served a show cause notice on 22 April 2015 calling upon to show cause as to why the provisional attachment order shall not be confirmed and dirccted to appear before
the AA on |5 June 2015 and on 04-08-2015 the AA confirmed the provisional attached order and this order is in continuation to the order passed by ED for 1337.40
Millions. On 18-08-2015 the office of Joint Director, Enforcement Directorate, Hyderabad Zonal office has served a Notice for taking the possession of the referred
properties under section 8(4) of the PMLA 2002,

During the Previous Year, the Appellate Tribunal has reversed the orders of the ED Courts, Hyderabad and passed directions to release the attachment of the parcels of
land in the Pharma City subject to certain conditions such as:

i) To maintain 50 meter inward bulTer zone until decided by the Special court and the company shall not dispose off and sell buffer zone area nor raise any construction
thereon, unless final order is passed in its favour.

¢) The posession ol 16 unsold plots be restored to the company on a condition that the said plots or to raise any construction or to create third party interest. The
company may also move an application for removal of said condition if no charges are framed against the company by the Special Court,

The Company has filed an appeal before the Hon'ble High Court of Telangana chal lenging the condition not to dispose of the said plots or (o raise any construction or to
create third party interest on the 16 plots attached in O € 441 of 2015 made in FPAPMLA1052/H1YD/2015 on the file of Appellate Tribunal Prevention of Money
Laundering Act at New Delhi in appeals against the Adjudicating Authority order dated 06/06/2013 in O C 441 of 2015 and release all properties in O C 441 of 2015
unconditionally.

No adjustments have been made in the financial statements, as the Management believes that the project of the company is being carried out in accordance with the
provisions of the Concession Agreement executed between the company and Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited (APIC) after obtaining the
requisite approvals and following the due process of law,

41 Contingent liabilities and commitments: (to the extent not provided for):

(INR in Millions)

Particulars o N

: 3ist March 2024 31st March 2023
i. Disputed Service Tax & GST demands (including penalty) and net of amount paid under protest 393.78 393.78
i Disputed Income Tax demands (net of amount paid under protest) 0.99 27357
iii. Other claims against the company not acknowledged as debts 452.16 77.18

42 Balances in respect of Creditors, receivables and various Advances are subject to confirmation from the respective parties. Previous figures have been regrouped /
rearranged where ever necessary to confitm the current year classification,

43 Subsequent events: After the reporting date, dividend of INR 5.00 per cquity share of INR 10 each is proposed by the Board of Directors. subject to approval at the
annual general meeting, Such dividend has not been recognised as liability as on 31 March 2024,

The notes 1 to 43 are an integral part of these financial statements,

In terms of our report attached.

for ABY & Associates For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Visakha Pharmacity Limited
I'igm Regn No: 0049378
T — s
CA AS.Naidu P.P. Lal krishna Divakar Marri

Partner
Membership No: 208582

Managing Dircctor Director
DIN: 03515181 DIN: 06865376

LIDIN: 24208582BKATHM 3046

= =
NS 2
Place | Hyderabad Al Sa:ﬁjimﬁu KeSava Datta Nanduri \ \GJX
VN

Date | 23-05-2024 C.1O Company Secretary N




A BV & ASSOCIATES 8-2-686/DB/22, Plot No.22,
Chartered Accountants Road No. 12, Banjara Hills
Hyderabad - 500 034.
Phone: +91-40-23546705
Email: abvassociateshyd@gmail.com

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

To
The Members
Visakha Pharmacity Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Visakha Pharmacity Limited (‘the
Company’), its subsidiaries (the company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of
Changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
(“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the Consolidated state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2024, the consolidated profit and total comprehensive income, consolidated
changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matter in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements:

Note No. 42 to the consolidated financial statements which describe the uncertainty in connection with the
Charge sheet filed by CBI against company and the attachment order of the Enforcement Directorate in respect
of certain assets of the company. The Management believes that it has complied with the provisions of the
concession agreement. Our report is not qualified in respect of this matter as the consequential financial
impact of the said regulatory action will be reliably known only when the matter is resolved.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the Management Discussion and Analysis and Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does

not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.



In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated total comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India . The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of the adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also respansible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company and its subsidiary companies which are
companies incorporated in India, has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.



* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by
them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other matters

We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total assets of
Rs.2.66 Millions as at 31 March 2024, total revenue of Rs. 0.23 Millions and net cash inflows amounting to
Rs.0.16 Millions for the year ended on that date. These financial statements have been audited by other
auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and associates and our report in terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of section 143 of the Act, in so
far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associates, is based solely on the report of other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on other legal and regulatory requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the
reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated
financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.



(c)

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
Comprehensive Income), and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on 31
March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the statutory
auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors are disqualified as on
31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A which is based on
the auditor’s reports of the Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India: and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended :

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2024 on the consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note No. 42 & 43 to the
consolidated financial statements;

ii. The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material forseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India;

iv. a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have
represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such
subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have
represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company or any of such
subsidiaries from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of such
subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;



Y.

vi.

) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us on the Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i)
and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement,
and

The dividend declared or paid during the year by the company is in compliance with section 123
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Based on our examination which included test checks, performed by us on the Company and its
subsidiaries incorporated in India, have used accounting softwares for maintaining their
respective books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of audit, we have not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with,

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2020 (the “Order”/ “CARQ”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be
included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the
CARO reports issued by us for the Company and its subsidiaries, to which reporting under CARO is applicable,
there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements.

for A B V & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 004937S

Ve 3 &AS S,B/\

(A.S.Naidu)
Partner
Membership No. 208

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23-05-2024



Annexure- A to the Independent Auditors’ Report:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Visakha Pharmacity Limited as of
31st March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiary companies and its associate companies incorporated in India for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary companies, which are Company incorporated in India,
is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI
and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company and its
subsidiary companies.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated financial statements.



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company,
its subsidiary companies and its associate companies which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements insofar as it relates to
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of the
auditors of such companies. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

for ABV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0049375

Partner
Membership No. 208582
UDIN: 24208582BKATHN8448

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23-05-2024



VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
(CIN: U24239TG2004PLC0O42855)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024

(INR in Millions)

— As at As at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Assets
Non-current assets
Froperty, plant and eguipment 3A 1,467.26 1,377.96
Capital work-in-progress 3B 871.63 668.26
Intangible assets 3C 61.26 -
Intangible assets under development 3D 34.44 29.25
Right-of-Use Assets 3E 49.77 51.35
Financial assets

i) Mon-current investments 4 72.43 67,58

ii) Loans 5 1,835.30 1,687.53

iii) Other financial assets ] 94,46 57.99
Deferred tax assets, net 20 0.02 .
Total non-current assets 4,486.57 3,939.92
Current assets
Inventories 7 792.37 806,80
Financial assets

i) Trade receivables 8 1,224.29 1,231.72

ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 401.12 130.66

ili} Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 10 211.45 6.60

iv) Loans 11 . 91.76

v) Others financial assets 12 1.3 4.64
Current tax assets (net) 13 72.76 9.78
Other current assets 14 638.11 434.30
Total current assets 3,341.41 2,716.26
Total assets 7,827.98 6,656.18
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 15 180.00 180.00
Other equity 16 2,616.41 2,432.75
Non- Controlling Interest 20.38 -
Total equity 2,816.79 2,612.75
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i} Lease liabilities 3E . .

ii) Other financial liabilities 17 1,735.66 910.37
Deferred Government grant 18 173.90 .
Provisions 19 5.96 2.62
Deferred tax liabilities, net 20 138.44 71,67
Total non-current liabilities 2,053.96 984.66
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i) Trade and other payables 21
a) Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises - 3.29
b) Outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 866,38 969.98
ii) Other financial liabilities 22 155.70

Other current liabilities 23 1,933.51 2,084.27
Provisions 24 1.58 1.21
Current tax liabilities (net) 25 0.06 0.02
Total current liabilities 2,957.23 3,058.77
Total liabilities 5,011.19 4,043.43
Total equity and liabilities 7,827.98 6,656.18

The notes 1 to 45 are an integral part of these financial statements.
In terms of our report attached.

for ABY & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn;q: 004937

CA AJ5.Naidu
Partner

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 23-05-2024

P.P. Lal krishna Q,QE}E[YIQ > Divakar Marri
m

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Visakha Pharmacity Limited

Managing Directc
DIN: 03515181
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ﬁ\—ss M-Lr}”a 5
. satyam Naidu >

Kesava Datta Manduri

C.F.O Company Secretary



VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED

(CIN: U24239TG2004PLC042855)
Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31st March 2024

(INR in Millions)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Aagiculans Nptes 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers 26 4,426.94 3,883.80
Other income 27 232.37 129.16
Total income 4,659.31 4,012,96
Expenses
Operating expenses 28 3,701.53 3,261.18
Purchases of stock-in-trade 36.00 0.08
Employee benefits expense 29 59.22 63.19
Finance costs 30 72.67 18.66
Depreciation and amortization expenses 3A,3D & 3E 123.66 106.94
Other expenses 31 244.63 201.42
Total expenses 4,237.71 3,651.47
Profit before tax 421.60 361,49
Current tax 101.95 108.95
Deferred tax 24.57 (3.63)
Taxes of earlier years 0.42 (0.09)
MAT Credit Entitlements -
Income tax expense 126.94 105.23
Profit for the year 294.66 256.26
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be re classified to profit and loss
Actuarial gains/(losses) of defined benefit plans (1.56) {0.40)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.45 0.12
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (1.11) (0.28)
Total comprehensive income for the year 293.55 255.98
Profit is attributable to
Owners Of Visakha Pharmacity Limited 293.94 256.26
Non-Controlling Interests 0.72 -
294,66 256.26
Other Comprehensive Income is attributable to
Owners Of Visakha Pharmacity Limited (1.11) (0.28)
Non-Controlling Interests -
(1.11) (0.28)
Total Comprehensive Income is attributable to
Owners Of Visakha Pharmacity Limited 292.83 255,98
Non-Controlling Interests 0.72 -
293.55 255,98
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (INR) 16.33 14.24
Diluted earnings per share (INR) 16.33 14.24

The notes 1 to 45 are an integral part of these financial statements,
In terms of our report attached.

for ABV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm RegnNo: 0049375

e =28

CA A.S.Naidu

Partner

Membership No: 208582
UDIN: 24208582BKATHN8448

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 23-05-2024

M, )
(L
P.P. Lal krishna
Managing Director

DIN: 03515181

A. Satﬁ}ﬁ!ﬁu

C.F.O

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Visakha Pharmacity Limited

ISR

Divakar Marri
Director
DIN: 06865376

Jooduld

Kesava Datta Nanduri
Company Secretary



VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
(CIN: U24239TG2004PLC042855)

Statement of Consolidated CashFlows for the Year Ended 31st March 2024

(INR in Millions)

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year (before tax) 421.60 361.49
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 123.66 106.94
Bad debts written off 155.94 99.77
Provision for Doubtful debts 16.50
Finance costs 72.61 18.59
Interest Income (162.80) (98.09)
611.01 505.20

Working capital adjustments:;
(Increase) decrease in inventories 14.42 (0.31)
(Increase) Decrease in trade receivables (148.51) (210.36)
(Increase) Decrease in other financial assets (33.16) (5.21)
{Increase) Decrease in other current assets (203.82) (109.86)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables (106.85) 590.63
Increase (decrease) in other financial liabilities 980.76 607.93
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilites (150.58) 470.11
Increase (decrease) in provisions 2.14 1.98
Cash generated from (used in) operations 965.42 1,850.11
Income tax paid (Net) (122.63) (114.16)
Net cash from (used in) operating activities (A) 842,79 1,735.95
Cash flows from investing activities
Investment in Subsidary Company (net) - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (346.99) (577.74)
(Increase) / Decrease of capital work in progress (134.20) -
Increase in Right of use assets = (52.03)
Loans to Related Parties (65.78) (1,046.46)
Interest received 167.72 94.49
Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash equivalents (204.85) (0.31)
Net cash from investing activities (B) (584.10) (1,582.05)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital -
Increase/ (Decrease) in Non- controlling interest 0.49
Interest expense (72.61) (18.59)
Grant Received 173.90 -
Dividend Paid {90.00) (90.00)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities ( C) 11.78 (108.59)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 270.47 45,31
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 130.66 85.35
Closing cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 401.12 130,66

The notes 1 to 45 are an integral part of these financial statements,

In terms of our report attached,

for AB V & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No: 0049377) & ASSs

R C

! < —gl

CA A.5.Naidu
Partner

Membership Mo: 208582
UDIN: 24208582BKATHNE448

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 23-05-2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Visakha Pharmacity Limited

P.P. Lal krishna
Managing Director
DIN: 03515181

\ 13,
s B A
A.Satyam N N e
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Divakar Marri = « —\

Director
DIN: 06865376

Kesava Datta Nanduri
Company Secretary



VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED

Statement of Consolidated Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31st March 2024

a. Equity share capital

(INR in Millions)
Amount
Balance at 01st April 2022 180.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital Due to Prior period Errors -
Restated Balance at 01st April 2022 180.00
Changes in equity share capital during 2022-23 -
Balance as at the 31st March 2023 180.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital Due to Prior period Errors »
Restated Balance as at the 31st March 2023 180.00
Changes in equity share capital during 2023-24
Balance as at the 31st March 2024 180.00

b. Other equity

{INR in Millions)

Items of Other Attributable to
General reserve Retained earnings comprehensive Non Controlling Total

income (OCI) Interests
Balance as at 01st April 2022 50.00 2,215.90 0.87 - 2,266.77
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors
Restated Balance as at 01st April 2022 50.00 2,215.90 0.87 - 2,266.77
Profit or loss for the year - 256.26 . 256.26
Other comprehensive income(net of tax) - - {0.28) (0.28)
Total comprehensive income - 256.26 (0.28) 255.98
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners - 2 .
Dividend (90.00) (90.00)
Tax on final dividend 2 1 -
Balance as at 31st March 2023 50.00 2,382.16 0.59 - 2,432.75
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors -
Restated Balance as at 31st March 2023 50.00 2,3182.16 0.59 - 2,432.75
Profit or loss for the year 293.94 [ 0.72 294,66
Other comprehensive income(net of tax) - - (1.11) (1.11)
Total comprehensive income - 293.94 {1.11) 0.72 293,55
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners (19.17) 19.66 0.49
Dividend {90.00) (90.00})
Tax on final dividend 3 3 - - B
Balance as at 31st March 2024 50.00 2,566,93 (0.52) 20.38 2,636.79

The notes 1 to 45 are an integral part of these financial statements.

In terms of our report attached.
for AB V & Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA A\S.Naidu
Partner
Membership No: 208582\~
UDIN: 24208582BKATHN8448

0

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 23-05-2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Visakha Pharmacity Limited

e —

P.P. Lal krishna
Managing Director
DIN: 03515181

N

A.S5atyam Naidu
C.F.0

Divakar Marri
Director
DIN: 06865376

Kesavé%ri

Company Secretary




VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

3A. Property, plant and equipment

(INR in Millions)

R, Freehold and™ Social Plant and Furniture and vehicles Office Computer Total
infrastructure equipment fixtures equipment accessories

Deemed cost (gross carrying
amount)
Balance at O1st April 2022 64.67 475,63 1,305.30 1.54 1232 4,08 2.68 1,866.02
Additions 3 - 24.68 1.22 3.61 0.47 4.99 34.97
Disposals s 3 5 - ) N X R
Balance at O1st April 2023 64,67 475.63 1,329.98 2.76 15,73 4.55 7.67 1,900.99
Additions 2.89 185.78 19.98 0.17 0.72 209.54
Disposals 5 # £ - - 5 ] -
Balance at 31st March 2024 67.56 475.63 1,515.76 22.74 15.73 4.72 8.19 2,110.53
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at O1st April 2022 - 125.32 277.46 1.20 8.06 .13 1.64 415.81
Depreciation for the year - 18.22 85.58 0.16 1.62 0.57 1.07 107.22
Disposals - E = - = - - -
Balance at 01st April 2023 - 143.54 363.04 1.36 9,68 2.70 2.71 523.03
Depreciation for the year = 18.27 97.72 0.19 1.70 0.57 1.79 120.24
Disposals > - + 2 . -
Balance at 31st March 2024 - 161.81 460.76 1.55 11.38 3.27 4.50 643,27
Carrying amounts(net)
As at 31st March 2023 64.67 332.09 966.94 1.40 6.05 1.85 4.96 1,377.96
As at 31st March 2024 67.56 313.82 1,055.00 21,19 4,35 1.45 3.89 1,467.26

* Out of total depreciation duirng the year an amount of Rs,4.97 Millions (P.Y Rs. 0.96 Millions) was transferred to Intangible assets under development.

** Refer note no.40

3B, Capital work-in-progress {INR in Millions)
As at As at

31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023

Capital work -in-progress 871.63 668.26

871.63 668.26

Ageing Schedule of Capital work-in-progress:

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particulars -
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Morethan 3 years Total

As at 31st March 2024
- Projects in progress 365.17 419.79 86.67 - 871.63
- Projects temporarily suspended
As at 31st March 2023
- Projects in progress 515.93 152.33 - - 668.26
- Projects temporarily suspended
3C. Intangible assets

(INR in Miltions)

Opening Balance At Ast
31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023

Research & Development
Opening Balance
Add: Additions during the year
Less: Amortization
Closing balance

68.07
6.81

61.26
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3D. Intangible assets under development

As at As at
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2023
Opening Balance 29.25 .
Add: Additions during the year 73.26 29.25
Less: Capitalised during the year -68.07 -
Closing balance 34.44 15.25

Ageing Schedule of Intangible assets under development:

Particulars

Amount in IAUD for a period of

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years| More than 3 years Total
As at 31 March 2024
- Prajects in progress 34.44 = - 2 34,44
- Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023
- Projects in progress 29.25 - - - 29.25
- Projects temporarily suspended s ¥ - A

3E. Right of use assets & Lease liabilities :

Particulars

Right-of-use assets

Lease Liabilities

Gross block

As at 1 April 2022
Additions

Deletions
Amortisation Expense
Interest expense
Payments

52,03

0.68

As at 31 March 2023

Additions

Deletions
Amortisation Expense
Interest expense
Payments

As at 31 March 2024

Non-current
Current
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4. Non-current investments

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

a) In mutual funds, at fair value through profit and loss
25,026.552 units in Bandhan Liquid Fund - Regular Plan -Growth
( IDFC Cash Fund-Growth-(Direct Plan) ) (Face value of
Rs.1000/-each) (Refer Note no:42)

72.43

67.58

72.43

67.58

5. Loans

(INR in Millions)

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Unsecured, considered good:
Loans to Related Parties 1,835.30 1,687.53
1,835.30 1,687.53

The above loans will be repayable with in 24 to 60 months and interest @ 8% p.a.

6. Other non-current financial assets

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Unsecured, considered good:
Security deposits

94.46

57.99

94.46

57.99

7. Inventories
(valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

(INR in Millions)

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Development expenditure 791,35 805.52
Stock of stores, consumables and trading goods 1.02 1.28
792.37 806.80
8. Trade receivables
(INR in Millions)
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Unsecured, considered good 1,224.29 1,231.72
Credit impaired 15.60 16.50
1,239.89 1,248.22
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (15.60) (16.50)
1,224.29 1,231.72

Ageing details refer note no: 38




VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

9. Cash and Cash equivalents

(INR in Millions)

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Cash on hand 0.02 0.03
Cheques on hand 1.00
Balances with banks:

- in current accounts 401.10 127.12

- in deposit accounts with maturity is less than 3 months 2.51

401.12 130.66

10. Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Balances with banks:

- Deposits with remaining maturity lessthan 12 months 211.45 6.60
211.45 6.60
- includes Rs.6.99 Millions (P.Y Rs.6.60 Millions) as Margin money deposits against guarantees
11.Loans
(INR in Millions)

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Unsecured, considered good
Loans to related parties

91.76

91.76

* The above loan repayable on demand and interest @ 8% p.a

12.Other current financial assets

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Unsecured, considered good
Other loans and advances

1.31

4.64

1:31

4,64

13. Current tax assets (net)

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Advance Tax , Net of Provision for Income Tax

72.76

9.78

72.76

9.78

14.Other current assets

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind
Cenvat/GST receivable

Income tax refund receivable

Pre-paid expenses

Other Current Assets

47.24 24.30
477.47 311.73
20.00 -

4.56 5.18
88.84 93.09
638.11 434,30
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15.  Share capital

(INR in Millions)
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Authorised
1,80,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 180.00 180.00
180.00 180.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
1,80,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 180.00 180.00
180.00 180.00
A. Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Number (IMR in Millions) Humber (INR in Millions)
At the commencement of the period 1,80,00,000 180.00 1,80,00,000 180.00
Shares issued for cash - . - -
At the end of the period 1,80,00,000 180.00 1,80,00,000 180.00

B. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the company's residual assets on winding up.
The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time, The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion
to his/its share of the paid-up equity share capital of the company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares an which any call or other sums presently payable
has not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to their forfeiture,

On winding up of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the company, remaining after distribution of all preferential
amounts, in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

C. Shareholders holding more than 5% of equity share capital

31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Number of shares Number of shares
h N
held % of holding held % of holding
Ramky Infrastructure Limited 91,80,000 51% 91,80,000 51%
Rarky Estates and Farms Limited 68,40,000 38% 68,40,000 38%
Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastucture Corporation Limited 19,80,000 1% 19,80,000 1%
1,80,00,000 100% 1,80,00,000 100%
D. Shares held by holding company
(INR in Millions)
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
Equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
Ramky Infrastructure Limited AR #1:50 91801000 Tsee
91,80,000 91.80 91,80,000 91.80
E. Shares held by the promoter
31st March 2024
Promoter Name Class of Equity No. of shares at the  Change during the  No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during
Shares beginning of the year year end of the year the year
= — A — Equity shares of 8
amky Infrastructure Limite Rs.10 each 91,80,000 - 91,80,000.00 51.00% -
o Equity shares of
Ramky Estates and Farms Limited Rs.10 each 68,440,000 i 6B,40,000.00 38.00%
Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastucture Equity shares of
X 1 3
Carpoeation Likiited Rs.10 each 19,80,000 9,80,000.00 11.00%
31st March 2023
Promoter Name Class of Equity No. of shares at the Change during the  No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during
Shares beginning of the year year end of the year the year
Rarmky Infrast - Equity shares of
amky Infrastructure Limite Rs.10 each 91,80,000 . 91,80,000.00 51.00% .
L Equity shares of
Ramky Estates and Farms Limited Rs.10 each 68,40,000 E 68,40,000.00 38.00%
Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastucture Equity shares of
Corporation Limited Rs.10 each 19,80,000 = 19,80,000.00 11.00% -
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16.

17.

18,

19.

Other equity

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

General reserve

Securities Premium

Balance at the beginning of the year
(+) Addition during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year

Profit for the year

Net Impact of Changes in Non Controlling Interest
Dividend

Balance at the end of the year

Other comprehensive income
Balance at the beginning of the year
Changes during the year

Balance at the end of the year

50.00 50,00
2,382.16 2,215.90
293.94 256.26
(19.17) :

(90.00) (90.00)
2,566.93 2,382.16
0.59 0.87
(1.11) (0.28)
(0.52) 0.59
2,616.41 2,432.75

Other non-current financial liabilities

(INR in Millions)

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Security deposits 97.27 94.17
Capital creditors 1,638.39 816.20
1,735.66 910.37
Deferred Government Grant
(INR in Millions)

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Government Grant received

173.90

173.90

Non-current provisions

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity
- Compensated absences

2.35 0.78
3.61 1.84
5.96 2.62
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20. Deferred tax assets /(liabilities) , net

Movement in temporary differences

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Deferred tax asset

MAT credit entitlement 5.29 47 .94
5.29 47.94
Deferred tax liability

Property, plant and equipment 130.68 120.40
Investments 10.78 9.37
Others 2.25 (10.16)
143.71 119.61
(138,42) (71.67)

B. Reconciliation of effective Tax Rate

(INR in Millions)

31st March 2024

Profit Before Tax 421.60
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 29.12% 122.71
Effect of:

Non-deductible expenses / incomes not taxable 0.00% 3.81
Effective tax rate 29.12% 126.52

31st March 2023

Profit Before Tax 361.49
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 29.12% 105.26
Effect of:

Non-deductible expenses / incomes not taxable 0.00% 0.06
Effective tax rate 29.12% 105.32

21. Trade payables

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

- due to micro and small enterprises
- due to other than micro and small enterprises

: 3.29
866.38 969.98
866.38 973.27

Ageing details refer note no: 39

22, Other financial liabilities

(INR in Millions)

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Capital creditors 155.70 -
155.70 -
23, Other current liabilities
(INR in Millions)
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Advance from customers 1,888.17 2,049.96
Dues to statutory / government authorities 30.13 18.98
Accrued salaries,wages and benefits 4.44 4.65
Expenses payable 10.70 10.61
MSME Interest payable 0.07 0.07
1,933,541 2,084.27
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24.

25,

26,

27.

28,

29.

Current provisions

(INR in Millions)

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Provision for employee benefits:
- Gratuity 0.01 0.00
- Compensated absences 1.57 1.21
1.58 1.21
Current tax liabilities (net)
(INR in Millions)
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Provision for income tax (net) 0.06 0.02
0.06 0.02
Revenue from contracts with customers
(INR in Millions)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Revenue from sale of land and development 475.07 -
Operations and maintenance revenue 3,894.93 3,881.71
Sale of goods 56.94 2.09
4,426.94 3,883.80
Other income
(INR in Millions)
, Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Interest income 162.80 96.75
Other non-operating income 69.22 12.77
Liabilities no longer required, written back 0.35 19.64
232.37 129.16
Operating expenses
(INR in Millions)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Development expenditure 14.16 -
Operating and maintainance expenditure 3,670.69 3,246.05
Chemicals and reagents 3.93 5.66
Power and fuel 12.75 9.47
3,701.53 3,261.18
Employee benefits expense
(INR in Millions)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Salaries and wages 53.85 55.92
Contribution to provident and other funds 2.69 3.13
Workmen and staff welfare expenses 2.68 4.14
59.22 63.19
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30. Finance costs

(INR in Millions)

Particulars

Year ended
31st March 2024

Year ended
31st March 2023

Interest expense
- on term loans

- others 72.61 18.60
Other borrowing costs
- bank charges 0.06 0.06
72.67 18.66
31, Other expenses
(INR in Millions)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Rates and taxes 2.52 1.99
Professional and technical charges 50.16 53.74
Fees and charges 0.62 0.38
Business promotion 5.23 1.51
Advertisement 0.35 0.30
Travelling and conveyance 4.44 4.59
Printing and stationary 0.33 0.30
Audit fees 1.59 1.24
Communication charges 1.32 0.94
Repairs and maintenance 0.17 4.09
Insurance 7.76 6.59
CSR expenditure 10.00 6.00
Bad debts and advances written off 155.94 99.77
Provision for Doubtful debts - 16.50
Miscellaneous expenses 4.20 3.48
244,63 201.42
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32.Related parties
A. List of related parties and nature of relationship

5. No. Name of the related party Nature of relationship
1 Ramky Infrastructure Limited Holding company
2 |Ramky Estates and Farms Limited Group Company
3 RE Sustainability Limited Group Company
4 Smilax Laboratories Limited Group Company
5 Ramky Foundation Group Concern
6  |Frank Lloyd Tech Management Services Limited Fellow subsidiary
7 1.W. Vijaya Kumar* Whole Time Director
8 P. P. Lal krishna Managing Director and C.E.O.
9 A, Satyam Naidu C.F.0.
10 |V.Murahari Reddy Director
11 |E.Sankar Rao Director
12 |P.Eshwar Reddy Director
13 |M.Divakar Director
14 [M.Siva Satyanarayana Reddy Director
15 |S.Ravi kumar Reddy Director
16 |N.Kesava Datta Company Secretary

*upto 09-11-2022

B. Transactions with related parties during the year ended

(INR in Millions)

S. No. |[Name of the related party Nature of transactions 31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023

Contract expenditure 3,771.09 3,227.67

Inter Corporate Deposits given 120.00

Capital Expenditure 328.60 502.07

¢ Interest Income 67.04 66.40

1 |Ramby lofragtrusivre bimited Inter Corporate Deposits received back 300.00 315

Recovery of Expenses Incurred 741.74 746.32

Expenses incurred on behlf 4 0.01

Dividend paid 45,90 45.90

Dividend paid 34.20 34.20

- Inter Corporate Deposits given ¥ 100.00

: Rk Eviasand At Lindteg Inter Corporate Deposits Received back 94,13 13.00

Interest on ICD 2.64 5.29

3 |Re Sustainability Limited O&M Income 226.89 224,02

; g O&M Income 103.19 75.11

4 Smilax Laboratories Limited P 36.78 035

Inter Corporate Deposits given 665.00 811.00

; o Inter Corporate Deposits Received back 450.00 50,12

5  |Madhya Pradesh Waste Management Private Limited TR 7670 575
Rent and other expenses 3.26

[ Ramky Foundation C5R expenses 10.00 6.00
5 Ramky Ericlave Limited Inter Corporate Deposits given 97.50

Interest on ICD 6.56 -

8 |P.P Lal krishna Director Remuneration 6.39 5.80

9 |A. Satyam Naidu Salary 2.23 2.03

10 [V.Murahari Reddy Director Sitting fee 0.27 0.19

11 |E.Sankar Rao Director Sitting fee 0.21 0.10

12 |P.Eshwar Reddy Director Sitting fee 0.20 0.15

13 |S.Ravi kumar Reddy Director Sitting fee 0.27 0.19

C. Balances outstanding

S. No. [Name of the related party Details 31st March 2024  31st March 2023

Security deposit payable 50.00 50.00

Inter Corporate Deposits given 669.17 908.84

Trade Payables 465.77 550.00

1 Ramky Infrastructure Limited Capital creditors (before discounting) 1,785.69 838.31

Expenses payable - 0.01

Share Capital 91.80 91.80

2 [Ramky Estates and Farms Limited Share capital — i Ll

Inter Corporate Deposits given - 91.76

3 |Re Sustainability Limited Trade receivables 19.69 48.06

4 |Madhya Pradesh Waste Management Private Limited Inter Corporate Deposits given 1ibade L,
Expenses payable 0.39 *

5 Smilax laboratories Trade Receivables 78.49 74,00

Trade Payables 0.34 0.42

] Frank Lloyd Tech Management services Limited Expenses Payable 3.48 3.48
7 |Ramky Enclave Limited Inter Corporate Deposits given 103.41 -

8  [P.P.Lalkrishna salary payable 0.27

9 Satyam Maidu salary payable 0.09




VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

33, Description of the Group

The Company has the following subsidiaries which are included in consolidated financial statements and Group's holding there in are as follows:

Entity Country of incorporation ﬁ::;d;r:‘g ﬁ::;dl;;g
JNPC Pharma Innovation Limited india 100% 100%
RECEPS Limited India 51% 100%
Visakha Energy Limited India 100% 100%
Visakha Pharma Innovation and Incubation Limited India 100% 100%

34, Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and for the future development of the Company. In order to maintain or
achieve an optimal capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment, return on capital to shareholders or issue of new
shares.

The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 was as follows:

(INR in Millions)
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Debt
Less: cash and cash equivalents 401,12 130.66
Adjusted net debt (401.12) (130.66)
Total equity 2,816.79 2,612.75
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 0.00 0.00
35. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit attributable to owners of the group
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued
during the year and excluding treasury shares
(INR in Millions)

31st March 2024 31st March 2023
i. Profit (loss) attributable to equity shareholders(basic) 293.94 256.26
ii. Weighted average number of equity shares (basic) 1,80,00,000 1,80,00,000
Basic EPS (In Rs.) 16,33 14,24

The Company does not have any potentially dilutive equity shares outstanding during the year,

36. Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits
For details about the related employee benefit expenses, see Note 29,
The Company operates the following post-employment defined benefit plan:
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The plan entitles an employee, who has
rendered at least five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof

in excess of six months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned. This defined benefit plans expose the Company to
actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and market (investment) risk

A. Funding
The gratuity plan is funded.,

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset) liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit (asset) liability and its
components,

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

Plan A (INR in Millions)
Liability 3 1st March 2024 31st March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 5.34 N
Benefits paid (2.44)
Current service cost 1.83 1.42
Interest cost 0.31 0.24
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income

- changes in demographic assumptions (0.46)

- changes in financial assumptions 0.13 (0.05)

- experience adjustments 1.88 0.42

Balance at the end of the year 6.59 5.34
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Fund assets 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 7.59 7.01
Interest income 0.48 0.51
Contributions 0.09 0.10
Benefits paid (2.44)
Remeasurement - return on assets 0.01 (0.03)
Balance at the end of the year 5.73 7.59
Plan B
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 3.05 1.44
Benefits paid (0.29)
Current service cost 2.73 1.59
Interest cost 0.23 0.16
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income
- changes in financial assumptions 0.05 {0.01)
- experience adjustments (0.88) 0.16
Balance at the end of the year 5.18 3.05
Expense recognised in profit or loss
Plan A
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Current service cost 1.83 1.42
Interest cost 0.31 0.24
Interest income (0.48) (0.51)
ki 1.66 1.15
* Includes Rs.1.60 Millions (P.Y Rs.0.78 Millions) transferred to Intangible assets under development.
Plan B
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Current service cost 2.73 1.59
Interest cost 0.23 0.16
Past service gain (0.83) 0.15
2,13 1.90
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income
Plan A
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Actuarial (gain) loss on defined benefit obligation’ 1.55 0.37
Return on plan assets excluding interest income (0.01) 0.03
1.54 0.40

C. Defined benefit obligation

i. Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Plan A

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Discount rate

Future salary growth

Withdrawal Rate

Mortality table (as % of IALM(2006-08)(Mod.) Ult. Mortality Table)

7.23%

8.00%

1.00%
100.00%

7.50%

8.00%

1.00%
100.00%

Plan B

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Discount rate

Future salary growth

Attrition rate

Mortality table {as % of IALM{2006-08)(Mod.) Ult. Mortality Table)

7.23%

8.00%

1.00%
100.00%

7.50%

8.00%

1.00%
100.00%
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ii. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have
affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below

Plan A (INR in Millions)
31st March 2024
Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 6.14 713
Future salary growth (1% movement) 13 6.13
Withdrawal rate (1% movement) 6.50 6.69
31st March 2023
Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 5.04 571
Future salary growth (1% movement) 5.71 5.03
Withdrawal rate (1% movement) 5.30 5.36
Plan B
31st March 2024
Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 2.02 213
Future salary growth (1% movement) .45 2.01
Attrition rate (1% movement) 2.07 2.08
31st March 2023
Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 2,95 3.15
Future salary growth (1% movement) 3.16 2.94
Attrition rate (1% movement) 3.04 3.05

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the
sensitivity of the assumptions shown.
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3

i

A. Accounting classifications and fair values

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities recognized in the financial statements approximate
including their levels in the fair value heirarchy is not given,

. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities:

31st March 2024

their fair values and hence no further details about the fair value measurements

{INR in Millions)

Carrying Amount

Financial assets - Other financial Financial liabilities - Other financial Total carrying
FYTPL assets -amortised cost FYTPL liabilities - amortised cost amount
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investment in mutual funds* 72,43 - 72.43
72,43 - - . 72.43
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Security deposits 94.46 94.46
Loans 1,835.30 - 1,835.30
Trade receivables 1,224.29 1,224.29
Cash and cash equivalents 401.12 - 401,12
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents - 211.45 211.45
Other current financial assets 1.3 L 1.3
- 3,767.93 - 3,767.93
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Security deposits received . 97.27 97.27
Capital creditors** 1,638.39 . 1,638.39
Other financial liabilities - 155.70 155.70
Trade payables 5 & 866.38 866,38
- - 1,638.39 1,119.35 2,757.73

31st March 2023

(INR in Millions)

Carrying Amount

Financlal assets -

Other financial

Financial liabilities -

Other financial

Total carrying

FYTPL assets -amortised cost FYTPL liabilities - amortised cost amount
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investment in mutual funds* 67.58 67.58
67.58 - - = 67.58
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Security deposits . 57.99 57.99
Loans . 1,779.29 - 1,779.29
Trade receivables : 1,231.72 > 1,231.72
Cash and cash equivalents 130,66 130.66
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 6.60 6.60
Other current financial assets 4.64 - % 4.64
- 3,210.90 - 3,210.90
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Secured bank loans = -
Security deposits received - 94.17 94.17
Capital creditors** 816.20 - 816.20
Trade payables 2 973.17 973.27
- - 816.20 1,067.44 1,883.64

“Level 1 Inputs used
“*Level 3 Inputs used

= Levell inputs - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.
» Level? inputs - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly,
= Levell inputs - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability,
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37. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

B. Financial risk management

i) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial labilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The
Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation,

The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on financial labilities (other than trade payables) over the next six months. The
Company also monitors the level of expected cash inflows with expected cash outflows on trade payables and other financial liabilities.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date, The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments and exclude the
impact of netting agreements

315t March 2024 (INR in Miltions)
Contractual Cashflows
Carrying Amount Total & months or less 6-12 months 1-2 Years 2-5 Years Mare than 5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Lease liabilities . . 3 ¥ :
Other non-current financial liabilities 1,735.66 1,735.66 - - 1,638.39 91.27
Trade payables B66.38 B66.38 B66.38 v .
Other current financial liabilities 155.70 155.70 . 155.70 -
2,757.74 2,757.74 B66.38 155,70 1,638.39 = 97.27
31st March 2023 {INR in Millions)
i Contractual Cashflows
Carrying Amount Total & maonths or less 6-12 months 1-2 Years 2-5 Years More than 5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other non-current financial liabilities 90,37 910.37 - 816,20 & 94.17
Trade payables 973.27 973.27 973.27
1,883.64 1,883.64 973.27 - 816,20 - 94,17

ii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices - will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments, The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retumn.

Interest rate risk
The Company adopts a policy of ensuring that between 80 and 90% of its interest rate risk exposure is at a fixed rate, This is achieved partly by entering into fixed rate instruments and partly by borrowing
at a floating rate instruments,

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to management is as follows:

(INR in Millions)
31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets 2,046.76 1,785.89
Financial liabilities B




VISAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
Motes to the consolidated financial statements

38, Ageing Schedule of Trade receivables:
{INR in Millions)

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment
Particulars <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Morethan 3 years Total
Not Due

As at 31st March 2024

Undisputed Trade receivables - Considered good 351,27 755.08 76.83 27.79 13.32 1,224.29
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Doubtful - < . 1.49 6,36 7.85
Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered good 8 G i . 4 -
Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Doubtful - - g 0.81 6.94 7.75
As at 31st March 2023

Undisputed Trade receivables - Considered good 3122 774.02 75.90 5377 16.81 1,231.72
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Doubtful - - 1.49 3.51 3.55 B.55
Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered good - E - = - -
Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Doubtful = - 1.01 2.64 4.30 7.95

39. Ageing Schedule of Trade Payable
{INR in Millions)

Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment
Not Due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

As at 31st March 2024
Micro Small Medium Enterprises
- Undisputed Dues ’ - - - E - .
- Disputed dues - = - - - =
Other than Micro Small Medium Enterprises
- Undisputed Dues
- Related parties 441.92 1.06 ¥ . 3.48 446.46
- Others 129.34 82.89 199.71 1.67 6.30 419.92
- Disputed dues - - - - -
As at 31st March 2023
Micro Small Medium Enterprises
- Undisputed Dues 3.9 5 . - - 3.29
- Disputed dues - - - - - .
Other than Micro Small Medium Enterprises
- Undisputed Dues
- Related parties 257.80 289.20 - - 3.48 550.48
- Others 126.73 188.24 0.46 0.05 4,02 419.50
- Disputed dues . - 2 - . -

40, Other Statutory Information:
a) The Group do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.

b} Transactions with struck off companies: Nil
¢} The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,

d) The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall: directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
The Group have not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the Company shall: {i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

e) The Group have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

f) The Company and any of it's subsidaries has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
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ViSAKHA PHARMACITY LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

42. During the F.Year 2012-13 a Charge sheet has been filed by CBI against company with the CBI court, Nampally, Hyderabad alleging certain irregularities by the
company pertaining to reduction of Green belt area and also the Company has received a provisional attachment order under Section 5 (1) of the Prevention of Money
Laundering Act, 2002 from Enforcement Directorate (ED) dated 07 January 2013 for attachment of assets/properties valued at Rs 1337.4 Millions comprising Land and
facilities valuing Rs. 1305.4 Millions and Mutual Fund of Rs. 32.0 Millions. During the previous year the adjudicating authority passed a confirmation order of the above
provisional attachment order and the company has preferred an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal, In the meantime, the office of Joint Director, Enforcement
Directorate, Hyderabad Zonal office has served a Notice for taking the possession of the referred properties under section 8(4) of the PMLA 2002. The company has
filed a writ petition before the honorable High court of Andhra Pradesh, Hyderabad seeking for stay of proceedings. The honorable High court of Andhra Pradesh has
granted a interim stay of all further proceedings till a stay application is considered and appropriate orders passed by the Appellate authority. On 20th November,
2013, the Appellate Tribunal has considered the stay application and stayed the EDs notice. Since the Appellate Tribunal ceased of the matter, the cause in the writ
petition does not survive. Hence, the above referred Writ Petition is dismissed. The case is posted for hearing on 29th July 2015 with the Appellate Tribunal,
However, Mutual Fund of Rs. 32.00 Millions was transferred in the name of the Directorate of Enforcement. Further on 26th March 2015, the Joint Director,
Enforcement directorate, Hyderabad zonal office has passed a provisional attachment order for Rs 2161.80 Millions on the assets of company. The Joint Director has
filed a complaint under PMLA before the Adjudicating autharity seeking for confirmation of the above provisional attachment order on 10 April 2015, The Adjudicating
Authority (AA) has served a show cause notice on 22 April 2015 calling upon to show cause as to why the provisional attachment order shall not be confirmed and
directed to appear before the AA on 15 June 2015 and on 04-08-2015 the AA confirmed the provisional attached order and this order is in continuation to the order
passed by ED for 1337.40 Millions. On 18-08-2015 the office of Joint Director, Enforcement Directorate, Hyderabad Zonal office has served a Notice for taking the
possession of the referred properties under section 8(4) of the PMLA 2002.

During the Previous Year, the Appellate Tribunal has reversed the orders of the ED Courts, Hyderabad and passed directions to release the attachment of the parcels
of land in the Pharma City subject to certain conditions such as:

a) To maintain 50 meter inward buffer zone until decided by the Special court and the company shall not dispose off and sell buffer zone area nor raise any
construction thereon, unless final order is passed in its favour.

¢} The posession of 16 unsold plots be restored to the company on a condition that the said plots or to raise any construction or to create third party interest. The
company may also move an application for removal of said condition if no charges are framed against the company by the Special Caurt.

The Company has filed an appeal before the Honble High Court of Telangana challenging the condition not to dispose of the said plots or to raise any construction or
lo create third party interest on the 16 plots attached in O C 441 of 2015 made in FPAPMLA1052/HYD/2015 on the file of Appellate Tribunal Prevention of Money
Laundering Act at New Delhi in appeals against the Adjudicating Authority order dated 06/06/2013 in O C 441 of 2015 and release all properties in O C 441 of 2015
unconditionally.

No adjustments have been made in the financial statements, as the Management believes that the project of the company is being carried out in accordance with the
provisions of the Concession Agreement executed between the company and Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited (APIIC) after obtaining the
requisite approvals and following the due process of law.

43 Contingent liabilities and commitments: (to the extent not provided for):
{INR in Millions)

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

i, Disputed Service Tax & GST demands {including penalty) and net of amount paid under protest 393.78 393.78
ii. Disputed Income Tax demands { net of amount paid under protest) 0.99 27.57
iii. Other claims against the company not acknowledged as debts 452.16 77.18

44 Batances in respect of Creditors, receivables and various Advances are subject to confirmation from the respective parlies, Previous year's figures are not available as
this is the first year of consolidation.

45 Subsequent events: After the reporting date, dividend of INR 5.00 per equity share of INR 10 each is proposed by the Board of Directors, subject to approval at the
annual general meeting. Such dividend has not been recognised as liability as on 31 March 2024.

The notes 1 to 45 are an integral part of these financial statements,

In terms of our report attached.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To
The Members,
RAMKY ELSAMEX HYDERABAD RING ROAD LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RAMKY ELSAMEX HYDERABAD RING ROAD LIMITED
("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(Including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Statement Cash Flow for
the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “Financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Management Discussion and Analysis and Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board's Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.



Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules
issued there under. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.



Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure ‘A a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in Equity and the statement of Cash flows and dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, relevant rules issued there under.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31* March, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31" March,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
(f) and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B"; and

(g} The company has not paid or provided any managerial remuneration during the year. Hence, with
respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.



(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements - Refer Note No. 37 & 38 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements, no funds have been received by the company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

V. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company; and

vi, Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

for ABV & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Partner
Membership No.208582
UDIN: 24208582BKATHR8621
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24-05-2024



Annexure- A to the Independent Auditors’ Report:

The Annexure referred to the Independent auditors’ report to the members of the company on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, we report that:

(1) (@) A) the company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

B) The Company has no Intangible assets in the books of the Company and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) A major portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

()  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name
of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not revalued its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both
during the year hence paragraph 3 (i)(d) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is
not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder hence paragraph
3 (i)(e) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable.

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable
intervals and in our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate were not noticed for
each class of inventory on such physical verification.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis
of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) (a) During the year the company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans
and

A) the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet
date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates was Rs. Nil;

B) the aggregate amount during the year Rs. Nil, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to
parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates was Rs. Nil Millions.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the
grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not
prejudicial to the company’s interest.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of advances in nature of
loans granted by the company the repayment and payment of interest are regular.

(d) Inrespect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, no amount is overdue for a period of
more than ninety days and hence clause 3 (iii)(d) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020 is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year no loan or advance
in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same
parties.



(iv)

(v)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the loans or advances in the
nature of loans granted by the company has contain the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest and hence clause 3 (iii)(f) of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans,
investments, guarantees, and security the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 have been complied with by the company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and no order has been passed by Company Law
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any tribunal.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, maintenance of cost
records as specified by the Central Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us the company has been generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues to the appropriate authorities and no undisputed amounts payable were outstanding as at 31st
March, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, there are no dues of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any
other statutory dues as at 31st March, 2024 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute.
However, the Company disputes the dues in respect of Income tax is as mentioned below;

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount in Rupees | Period to which the | Forum where dispute

Statute Dues amount relates is pending
The Income Tax on Rs.8.84 Millions Financial year NATIONAL FACELESS
Tax Act,1961 additions 2019-20 APPEAL CENTRE
made and (NFAC)

disallowance

of deductions
and carry

forward losses

The Income Tax on Rs. Nil Millions Financial year NATIONAL FACELESS

Tax Act,1961 disallowance 2021-22 APPEAL CENTRE
of deductions (NFAC)

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks,
government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) (a) of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the company
is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) The Company has not raised any term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix)
(c) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable.



(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(b)

(c)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we
report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by
the company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any amount by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, Clause 3 (x)(a) of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, during the year the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully,
partially or optionally convertible) under section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, Clause 3(x) (b) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
company or no material fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by [cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us] in Form ADT - 4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year. ‘

The Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a)

(b)

In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal
audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the
Companies Act 2013.

The company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020 is not applicable.

(@)

(b)

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934,

The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable,

The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable,



(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no CICs in the
Group. Accordingly, clause 3({xvi)(d) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is
not applicable.

(xvii) The company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year of Rs.41.21 Millions and Rs. 199.11 Millions respectively.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause
is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when
they fall due.

{xx) The provisions of section 135 are not applicable to the company based on the threshold limits
prescribed under section 135 of the said Act and hence the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(a)
and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

for A BV & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(A.S.Naidu)
Partner
Membership No.208582
UDIN: 24208582BKATHR8621

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24-05-2024



Annexure- B to the Independent Auditors' Report:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of RAMKY ELSAMEX HYDERABAD RING
ROAD LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31st March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

for AB V & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regisw 0049375

(A.S.Naidu)
Partner
Membership No.208582
UDIN: 24208582BKATHR862 1

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24-05-2024



Ramky Elsamex Hyderabad Ring Road Limited
CIN:U43203TG2007PLC034825
Balance Sheet as at 31 Mar 2024

(Rs in Millions)

Notes As at As at
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 4 0.48 0.48
Financial assets
i} Loans 5 - 1.52
i1) Other financial assets 6 900.00 900.00
Other non-current assets 7 20.49 20.27
Deferred tax assets, net 86.05 86.05
Total non-current assets 1,007.02 1,008.32
Current assets
Inventories 9 # 0.23
Financial assets
i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 0.06 4,70
i) Other financial assets 11 1.91 2.28
Other current assets 12 0.15 0.38
Total current assets 2.12 7.59
Total assets 1,009.14 1.015.91
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 13 200.00 200.00
Other equity 14 281.09 32242
Total equity 481.09 522.42
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
1) Borrowings 15 502,57 485.52
Long term provisions 16 2.17 1.91
Total non-current liabilities 504,74 487.43
Current liabilitics
Financial liabilities
i} Trade payables 17
a) Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises . %
b) Outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 116 2.21
11) Other tinancial liabilities 18 21.03 3.04
Provisions 19 0.17 0.17
Other current liabilities 20 0.93 .64
Total current liabilities 23.31 6.06
Total liabilities 528.05 493.49
Total equity and liabilities 1,009.14 1.015.91

Significant accounting policies lto3
The notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of these financial statements,
As per our report attached of even date.

For A BV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 00

AS.Naidu
Partner
Membership Number :

Ankush Lahoti
Company Secretary
M.No. AS0579

Place : Hyderabad
Date 1 24.05.2024

Chief Financial Otticer
ANZPD37280

For and on behalf of the Board of Direcrors of
Ramky Elsamex Hyderabad Ring Road Limited

v-P-

Y R Nagaraja
Director
DIN: 00009810

YA

Bhogeswara Rao
Chiel Executive Officer
AMAPB4164E




Ramky Elsamex Hyderabad Ring Road Limited
CIN:U45203TG2007P1.C054825
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31 March 2024

(Rs in Millions)

Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Income

Revenue from contracts with customers 21 - 109.05

Other income 22 1 20,15
Total income (I) 0.27 129.20
Expenses

Employee benefits expense 23 8.84 8.53

Finance costs 24 25.67 27.70

Depreciation expense 4 0.08 0.06

Other expenses 25 6.97 294,13
Total expenses (I11) 41.56 330.42
Profit/(loss) Before Tax (I11=I-I1) (41.29) (201.22)

Current Tax " B

Deferred Tax expense/(income) % -

Previous year's income tax - (0.02)
Total Tax Expense (IV) - (0.02)
Profit/(loss) for the year (V=III-1V) (41.29) (201.20)
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) for the year, net of income tax

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement (losses)/gains on defined benefit plans (0.04) (0.17)

Total comprehensive income for the year (41.33) (201.37)
Earnings per share (Face value of Rs.10/- each)

Basic earnings per share Rs. (2.06) (10.06)

Diluted earnings per share Rs. (2.06) (10.06)
Significant accounting policies lto3

Thenotes 1 to 39 are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report attached of even date.

For A BV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm R?{slration No. 0049378 _

JSDJ‘“\\\
A.S.’,L:lidu

Partner

Ankush Lahoti
Company Secretary
M.No. A50579

Place : Hyderabad
Date: 24.05.2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Direcrors of
Ramky Elsamex Hyderabad Ring Road Limited

SBAL =] {ﬂ“'i L) asad .
i _':I'; Diréctor
g 4 IN: 07872103

risﬁﬂRedd}'
Chief Financial Officer
ANZPD37280Q

DL

Y R Nagaraja
Director
DIN: 00009810

4
Bhogeswara Rao
Chief Executive Officer

AMAPB4164E

W,
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Ramky Elsamex Hyderabad Ring Road Limited
CIN:U45203TG2007PLCO54825

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 31 March 2024

(Rs in Millions)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Interest expense
Interest income
Liabilities no longer required

Working capital adjustments:
Decrease in other financial assets
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets
Inerease / (decrease) in provisions
(Decrease) / increase in Trade payables
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities
Cash generated from operating activities
Income tax (paid) /refund (net)
Net cash from operating activitics (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
(Increase)/ Decrease in Loans
Interest received

Net cash from investing activitics (B)

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long term borrowings
Interest paid

Net cash flow from financing activities (C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(41.29 (201.22)
0.08 0.06
25.67 27.70
(0.16) (0.49)
(15.70) (173.95)
0.36 659.89
0.46 19.48
0.22 0.36
(1.05) (316.10)
0.30 (0.66)
(15.41) 189.02
(0.22) 7.21
(15.63) 196.23
(0.08) £
1.52 1.81
0.16 0.49
1.60 2.30
11,39 (173.23)
(2.00) (21.12)
9,39 (194.35)
(4.64) 4.18
4.70 0.52
0.06 4.70

a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method™ as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) -

Statement of Cash Flow,

b) Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises of
Cash on Hand
Balances with Banks
- Current Accounts

The notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of these financial statements,

As per our report attached of even date.

For A BV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reﬁimtimn No. 00493

N S
A.SNaidu

Partner
Membership Number : 208582

Place : Hyderabad

Date : 24.005.2024

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

0.06

4.70

0.06

4.70

For and on behalf of the Board of Direcrors of

.

P, Ra‘,';,Fi;as;ul

1ky Elsamex Hyderabad Ring Road Limited

Director

Ankush Lahoti
Company Secretary
M.Na. AS0579

L Digeétor
e AﬁrN:msnms

\ = 7
i S
Chief Financial Officer

ANZPD3T280)

/<DIN: 00009810

DY~

Bhogeswara Rao
Chief Executive Officer
AMAPB4164E



Ramky Elsamex Hyderabad Ring Road Limited
CIN:U45203TG2007PLCOS4825
Statement of changes in equity for the Year ended 31 March 2024

a. Equity share capital
(Rs in Millions)

Amount
Balance as at 31 March 2022 200.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital Due to Prior period Errors -
Restated balance as 01 April 2022 200.00
Changes in equity share capital during 2022-23 -
Balance as at the 31 March 2023 200.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital Due to Prior period Errors -
Restated balance as 01 April 2023 200.00
Changes in equity share capital during 2023-24 -
Balance as at the 31 March 2024 200.00

b. Other equity
(Rs in Millions)
Equity component of
Retained earnings compound financial Total
instruments

Balance as at 31 March 2022 493.38 3041 523.79
Changes in Accounting policy or prior period errors - - -
Restated balance as 01 April 2022 493.38 30.41 523,79
Profit or loss for the year (201.20) - (201.20)
Other comprehensive income (0.17) - (0.17)
Total comprehensive income (201.37) - (201.37)
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity - - -
Balance at 31 March 2023 292.01 30.41 322.42
Changes in Accounting policy or prior period errors - - -
Restated balance as 01 April 2023 292.01 30.41 322.42
Profit or loss for the year (41.29) - (41.29)
Other comprehensive income (0.04) (0.04)
Total comprehensive income (41.33) 2 (41.33)
Balance at 31 March 2024 250.68 30.41 281.09

For A BV & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants - amky Elsamex Hyderabad Ring Road Limited

N

Y R Nagaraja
Director
DIN: 00009810

A8 Naidu
Partner

I . ‘BL'*\“V\_,
Ankush Lahoti D Krishna Reddy Bhogeswara Rao
Place : Hyderabad Company Secretary e =" Chief Financial Officer Chief Exccutive Officer
Date: 24.05.2024 M.No. A50579 ANZPD3728Q AMAPB4164E




Ramky Elsamex Hyderabad Ring Road Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1. Reporting entity
Ramky Elsamex Hyderabad Ring Road Limited (the ‘Company’) is a company domiciled in India, with its
registered office situated at Ramky Grandiose, 15th Floor, Sy No 136/2 & 4, Gachibowli, Hyderabad, Telangana.
The Company has been incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 as a Special Purpose
Vehicle ("SPV") promoted by Ramky Infrastructure Limited (‘RIL’) and Elsamex S.A(‘Elsamex’).
The Company has entered into a has entered into a Service Concession Arrangement(*SCA”) with Hyderabad
Metropolitan Development Authority (HMDA)for design, construction, development, finance, operation and
maintenance of eight lane access controlled expressway under Phase-lIA programme as an extension of Phase-I
of ORR to Hyderabad City, in the state of Telangana, for the package from Tukkuguda to Shamshabad on Build,
Operate and Transfer (BOT) (Annuity) Basis for a period of fifteen (15) years from commencement date i.e. 27
November 2007 including construction period of two years and six months. The construction activities were
completed on 26 November 2009,

2. Basis of preparation

A. Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013,
(the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.
The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 24-05-2023.
Details of the Company's accounting policies are included in Note3.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest Millions, unless otherwise indicated.

C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

| Items Measurement Basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

D. Use of estimates and judgment

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized prospectively.
Judgments

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

— Note 3(j)(ii) - realization of deferred tax assets



Ramky Elsamex Hyderabad Ring Road Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the year ended 31 March 2019 is included in the following notes:

— Note 3(d)(ii) — impairment test of non-financial assets;

— Note 3(j)(ii) — recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses
carried forward can be used;

- Notes 3(f)- recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources:

— Note 3(d)(i) - impairment of financial assets.

E. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values. for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
Note 3(a) - financial instruments;

3. Significant accounting policies

a. Financial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments
All financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are
included in the fair value of the financial assets. Purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trade) are

recognized on trade date. While, loans and borrowings and payable are recognized net of directly attributable
transactions costs.



Ramky Elsamex Hyvderabad Ring Road Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified in the following
categories: non-derivative financial assets at amortized cost; non derivative financial liabilities at amortized cost.
The classification of financial instruments depends on the objective of the business model for which it is held.
Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition

Non- derivative financial assets

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss.

The company's financial assets include security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee and other
advances, trade receivables and eligible current and non-current assets.

Non-derivative financial assets — service concession arrangements

The Company recognises a financial asset arising from a service concession arrangement when it has an
unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor of
the concession for the construction or upgrade services provided. Such financial assets are measured at fair
value upon initial recognition and classified as trade receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, such financial
assets are measured at amortised cost.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.

The company has the following financial liabilities: loans and borrowings, trade and other payables including
deposits collected from various parties.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b. Property, plant and equipment
i. Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing
the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.



Ramky Elsamex Hyderabad Ring Road Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

ii. Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure its property, plant and equipment at its fair value as
per Ind AS, and use that fair value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment.

iii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company.

iv. Depreciation

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are
as follows:

Asset Management Useful life as per
estimate of useful Schedule Il
life

Office equipment 5 years Syears

Vehicles 8 years 8 years

Computer equipment 3 years 3 years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates
of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which asset is
ready for use (disposed of).

c.Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the
first-in first-out formula, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion
costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses.

d.Impairment
i. Impairment of financial instruments

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

¢ Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, and bank balance.
e Trade receivables.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables
which do not contain a significant financing component. The application of simplified approach does not require
the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition
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Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the Balance Sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. Ifany such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in
respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then
to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

e. Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash
bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

i. Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes
specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the
periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payments is available,
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ii. Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company's
net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods discounting that amount and
deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited
to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits,
consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in OCI.
The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.

iii. Compensated absences:

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit and the accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the
period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on
the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

f. Provisions (other than employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation.

Provision for major maintenance

Provisions are taken for contractual obligations to maintain the condition of infrastructure under concession,
principally to cover the expense of major road repairs (surface courses, restructuring of slow lanes, etc.), bridges,
tunnels etc. Provision for major maintenance is determined by discounting the expected maintenance expense
spanning several years at a pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value and the
risks specific to the liability and is updated annually. Provisions are also taken whenever recognised signs of
defects are encountered on identified infrastructure.
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9. Revenue recognition

Revenue from contract with customers is recognised when the Company satisfies performance obligation by
transferring promised goods and services to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Accounting of service concession arrangement:

The Company has determined that Appendix D to IND AS 115 on "Service Concession Arrangements (SCA)" is
applicable to the concession agreement and hence has applied it in accounting for the same.

Under Appendix D to Ind AS 115, concession arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the
consideration. The intangible asset model is used to the extent that the Company receives a right to charge
users of the public service. The financial asset model is used when the Company has an unconditional
contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the
construction services.

The Company has determined that financial asset model is applicable to the agreement as the Company is
entitled to receive fixed annuity from the grantor.

Construction contract revenue arises from construction of road as per the agreement with HMDA.
Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract work, claims
and incentive payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and can be measured

reliably.

Contract costs are recognised as expenses as incurred unless they create an asset related to future contract
activity. An expected loss on a contract is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Revenue related to construction or upgrade services provided under a service concession arrangement is
recognised based on the stage of completion where the performance obligations are satisfied over time.
Operation or service revenue is recognised in the period in which the services are provided by the Company.

h. Government grants
Government grants are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and the Company will comply with the conditions associated with the grant; they are
then recognised in profit or loss as other operating revenue on a systematic basis.

Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as other operating
revenue on a systematic basis in the periods in which such expenses are recognised,

i. Recognition of interest income or expense
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to:

— the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
— the amortised cost of the financial liability

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset or to the amortised cost of the liability.
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j

Income tax

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will beavailable
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit
may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax
asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax
assets — unrecognized or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the
extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settied, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

The Board of Directors assesses the financial performance of the Company and makes strategic decisions and
has been identified as being the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Based on the internal reporting
provided to the CODM, the Company has only one reportable segment i.e. the BOT road project and hence no
separate disclosures are required under Ind AS 108.
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m. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the
assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

i) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to those items
that are considered to be low value (i.e., below Rs. 3,00,000). Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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n.

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share (“EPS”) for the year is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) after tax for the
year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account:

~ the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares,
and

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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4 Property, plant and equipment

Reconciliation of carrying amount

(Rsn Millions)

Land Computer Vehicles Office Total
cquipment equipment
Deemed cost (gross carrying amount)
Balance at 1 April 2022 0.41 0.13 0.55 0.12 121
Additions - B - -
Disposals - - - - .
Balance at 31 March 2023 0.41 0.13 0.55 0.12 1.21
Additions - - 0.08 0.08
Disposals - : - -
Balance at 31 March 2024 0.41 0.13 0.55 0.20 1.29
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 April 2022 - 0.04 0.55 0.08 0.67
Depreciation for the vear - 0.04 - 0.02 0.06
Balance at 31 March 2023 - 0.08 0.55 0.10 0.73
Depreciation for the year - 0.04 - 0.04 0.08
Balance at 31 March 2024 - 0.12 0.55 0.14 0.81
Carrying amounts (net)
Balance at 31 March 2023 0.41 0.05 - 0.02 0.48
Balance at 31 March 2024 0.41 0.01 - 0.06 0.48
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5. Non-current loans and advances

(Rs in Millions)

Asat
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Inter carporate deposit to related parties v 1.52
- 1.52
Inter corporate deposit carrys a interest rate of 8% p.a.
6. Other non-current financial assets
(RBs in Millions)

As at
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Receivable from grantor (refer note no: 37) 5R4.48 384,48
Bonus annuity receivable (refer note no; 37) 315.00 315,00
Security deposils 0.52 .52

900.00 200.00

7. Other non-current assets

(Rs in Millions)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

TDS Receivable

2049

20.27

2049

0.27

8. Deferred tax Asset, net

A, Movement in temporary differences

{Rsin Millions)

Asat
31 Mareh 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Deferred tax assets

MAT Credit Entitlement 86.05 86,05
86.05 §6.05
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Asat 31 March 2024 Asat 31 Mrach 2023

Profit hefore tax (41.29) (201.22)
l'ax using the Company's domestic tax rate 29.12% (12.02) 29.12% (38.60)
Eftect of:

Non-deductible expenses (.00% . 0.00% .00

Difference in tax rates 0,00% - 0.00% -

Tax on exempt income -19,12% 12.02 -29.12% SR.60
Efiective tax rate 0.00% - 0.00% &

9. Inventories

(Rs in Millions)

As at
3 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

(Valued ai lower of cost or NRY)
Stores and spares

0.23

0.23

10, Cash and cash equivalents

(B3 in Millions)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

A. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks;

- In current accounts (L6 470
.06 4.70
11.  Other current financial assets
(Rs in Millions)
As uat As at
3 March 2024 31 March 2023
Ohther receivables 1.91 2.25
Interest receivable - 0.03
1.91 2.28
12, Other current assets
(Bs in Millions)
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advances for expenses 0.15 0.38
0.15 0.38
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13, Share capital

(Rs in Millions)

As at
3 Mareh 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Authorised

2,00,00.000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 200,00 200,00
2,50.00,000 Cumulative, Redeemable, Optionally Convertible 250,00 250.00
10% Prefercnve shares of Rs, 10/- each®
450.00 450.00
Issued, subseribed and paid-up
2,00,00.000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each 200.00 200,00
200,00 200,00

*10% Cumulitive, Redeemable, Optionally Convertible Prefirence shares of Rs. 100~ each have been issued and are classified as financial liahility.

A. Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

{Rs in Millions)

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Number in Millions Amount Number in Millions Amount
Al the commencement of the year 2000 200.00 20.00 200.00
Shares issued for cash - = - -
At the end of the yvear 20,00 200.00 20.00 200,00

B. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares, Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the company's residual assets on
winding up. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time, The voting riglts of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of
hands) are in proportion to his/its share of the paid-up equity share capital of the company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call
or other sums presently pavable has not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead (o their forteiture,

On winding up of the company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the company, remaining after distribution of all

preferential amounts, in proportion to the number of equity shares held,

C. Shareholders holding more than 5% of equity share capital

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Number of shares
(in Millions)

% Holding

Number of shares
(in Millions)

Ramky Infrastructure Limited

20,00

100%

% Holding

20.00

100%

20.00

100%

20.00

100%

Dy, Details of shareholding by Holding Company

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Number of shares
(in Millions)

% Holding

Number of shares
{in Millions)

% Holding

Ramky Infrastructure Limited
|- Equity shares

20000

100%%

20.00

100%,

E. Shares held by the promoter
Asat 31st Mareh 2024

Number in Millions

Nuo. of shares at
the beginning of
the year

Class of Equity

Promoter Name =
Shares

Change during the
year

No. of shares at the
end of the year

% of Total Shares

% change during
the yvear

Equity shares of 2000

Ramky Infrastructure Linited Rs.10 each

20,00

10049

As at 3st March 2023

Number in Millions

Na, of shares at

S oCEmiy the beginning of

Promoter Name

Change during the

No. of shares at the

% of Total Shares

%o ehange during

Shares thie yieas year end of the year the year
T RGBT 5 9 ¥ =
Ramky Infrastructure Limited Equu‘y Yot 20,90 a0 100
Rs 10 each
14, Other equity
{Rs in Millions )
As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Balance at the beginning of the year 292.01 493,38
Add: (Loss) Profit for the vear (41.33) {201.37)
Add: Transfer from reserves m -

Balance at the end of the year 250.68 292.01

Equity component of compound financial instruments

Balance at the bepinning of the year 3041 RIEY
Additions during the year -

Balance at the end of the year 041 41

28109 32242
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15. Non-current borrowings

(Rsin Millions)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Unsecured loans [rom :

- Holding Company 11.38 5
- Other Related Parties 245.52 245.52
10% Cumulative, Redeemable, Optional, Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.10/- _
245.67 240.00
each
502.57 485.52

A. Terms and conditions attached to 10% Cumulative, Redeemable, Optional, Convertible Preference Shares

The Company issued 19,163,700 (September-2008) and 5,834,300 (March-2009) 109

o Cumulative, Redeemable, Optionally Convertible

Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each at par. These shares are redeemable at par after the expiry of 15 years but within 20 years. The holder of
the preference shares has an option to convert these shares into equity at any time during the tenure of the preference shares at a price and

terms mutually agreed between the parties.

The preference shares issued are analysed as a compound financial instrument and are separated into a liability and an equity component.
The fair value of the liability component is initially measured at amortised cost determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-
convertible instrument. The residual amount is recognised in equity. The finance cost arising on the liability component is included in
finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The carrying amount of the conversion option as reflected in the equity is not re-measured in

subsequent periods

B. Inter corporate deposit from related parties carrys a interest rate of 8%p.a. and reapayable between 2 to 5 vears.
P I Y P pay ¥
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16.

18,

19,

20.

Long term provisions

(Rs in Millions)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Pravision for

31 March 2024

Gratuity 1.56 1.31
Leave encashment 0.61 (.60
2.17 1.91
. Trade payables
(Rs in Millions)
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Creditors for expenses .16 2.21
1.16 2.21
Ouistanding for the following periods from the due date of payment®
Piiicilars <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Morethan 3 years Total
Asat 31 March 2024
Micro Small Medium Enterprises
- Undisputed Dues - - " " =
- Disputed dues - - - <
Other than Micro Small Medium Enterprises
- Undisputed Dues 1.03 0.06 0.07 1.16
- Disputed dues - =
Asat31 March 2023
Micro Small Medium Enterprises
- Undisputed Dues - " " . "
- nsputed dues = - = - "
Other than Micro Small Medium Enterprises
- Undisputed Dugcs 1.60 0.24 - .37 2.21
- Disputed dues - - -
Other current financial liabilities
(Rs in Millions)
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest accrued but pot due on borrowings 21.03 3.04
21.03 3.04
Current provisions
(Rs in Millions)
As at As at

31 March 2023

Provision for

Gratuity .03 0.05
Leave encashment 0.12 0.12
(.17 0.17
Other current liabilities
(Rs in Millions)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Statutory liabilities .95 0.64
0.95 0.64
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21. Revenue from contracts with customers

(Rs in Millions)

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Rendering of services
Operating income

109.05

109.05

22. Other income

(Rs in Millions)

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Interest income 0.16 0.49
Interest under Service Concession Arrangement (SCA) - 1.98
Insurance claim - 2.16
Liabilities no longer required 0.11 15.52
0.27 20.15
23. Employee benefits expense (Rs in Millions)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries and wages 5.40 7.76
Gratuity 0.22 0.19
[eave Encashment S 0.30
Contribution to Provident fund 0.22 0.28
8.84 8.53
24, Finance costis (Rs in Millions)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest expense 25.67 27.70
25.67 27.770
25, Other expenses (Rs in Millions)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
O&M expenditure and client recoveries 1.44 284.60
Professional consultancy charges 4.18 0.90
Insurance - 4.68
Rates and taxes 0.75 0.09
Auditor fee 0.27 0.31
Travelling and conveyance 0.01 0.04
Office Maintenance 0.29 0.28
('SR expenditure - 1.11
Balances written off - 2.05
Power and fuel 0.03 0.07
L 6.97 294.13
(i) Payments to auditors (Rs in Millions)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
As Auditor
- Statutory audit 0.18 0.18
- Other services 0.09 0.13 |
0.27 031
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26,

27,

A,

Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base sa as to safeguard its ability 10 continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and for the future development of the Company, In
order 1o maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment, return on capital o

shareholders or issue of new shates.
The Company's adjusted net debt to equity mtio at 31 March 2024 was as follows:

(Rs in Millions)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total debt 502.57 485.52
Less: cash and cash equivalents (0.06) (4.70)
Adjusted net debt 502,51 480.82
Total equity 481.09 52242
Adjusted equity 481.09 52242
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 1.04 0.92

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing;
- the profit attributable to owners of the group

- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the {inancial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued

during the year and excluding treasury shares

(Rs in Millions)

’-.— Year ended Year ended
31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023

i. Profit (loss) aitributable to equity sharehelders(basic) (41.29) (201.20)
1 Weighted average number of eouity shares (basic) 20,00 20.00
Basie EPS (2.06) (10.06)
i, Profit (loss) attributable to equity shareholdersfdiluted) {41 .20) (201.20)
il. Weighted average number of equity shares (diluted)?” 45.00 45.00
Diluted EPS (2.06) (4.47)

*25,000,000 10% Cumulative, Redeemable. Optionally Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 10/- each, ean potentially dilute the basic
eamnings per share in future, but were not ineluded in the caleulation of diluted earnings per shave for current year because they are

antidilutive for the period presented.

. Finaneial instruments - Fair values and risk management

Acconnting classifications and fair values

The carrying amounts of financial assets and labilitics recognized in the financial statements approximate their Ear values and hence no
further details about the fair value measurements including their levels in the fair vaiue hei rarchy is not given. No assets and liabilities are

measured at Bair value.

The following table shows the carrying amounis and fair values of financial assets

31 March 2024

and financial liabilities:

(Rs in Millions)

Carrying amouut
Other financial Other financial Total carrying
assets -amoriised cost | liabilities - amortised cost amount

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Receivables from grantor under SCA 199,48 B 89948
Security deposits 0.52 = 0.52
Other financial assets 1.91 - 1.91
Cash and cash equivalents (.06 - 0.06

901,97 - 901,97
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Loans from related parties - 256.90 256.90
Optionally convertible preference shares 245.67 245.67
Trade payables l.16 L16
Other financial labilities - 21,03 21.03

. 524.76 524.76 |
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28. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

A. Accounting classifications and fair values

31 March 2023

(Rs in Millions)

Carrying amount

Other financial

Other financial
liabilities - amortised

Total carrying

assets -amortised cost " amount

Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Loan 1.52 1:52
Receivables from grantor under SCA 89943 g 899.48
ecurity deposits 0.52 - 0.52
Other financial assets 2.23 2.28
Cash and cash equivalents 4.70 - 4.70
908.50 - 908.50

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Loans from related parties - 245.52 245,52
Optionally convertible preference shares - 240.00 240.00
Trade payables - 2.21 201
Other financial liabilities - 3.04 3.04
- 490,77 490.77

B. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments;

a) credit risk
by liquidity risk
¢) market risk

i) Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management
standards and procedures. aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their

roles and obligations.

The Company’s Board oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures,
and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation Lo the risks faced by the Company,




Ramky Elsamex Hyderabad Ring Road Limited
CIN:U45203 TG2007PLCOA4823
Notes to the Financial statements for the Year ended 31 March 2024

28. Finaneial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
B. Financial risk management

i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company i a customer or counterparty to a finaneial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Company's receivables from customers and loans.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum eredit 1isk exposure,

Trade receivables and loans

The eredit risk on trade receivables and foans is limited because the counterparties are government ot related parties of the company.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company holds cash and cash equivalents of INR 0.06 millions at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: INR 4.70 millions ). The credit risk on liguid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

i) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset, The Company’s approach o managing liquidity is to ensure. as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they
are due. under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The Com pitny uses activity-based
costing to cost its products and services, which assists it inmonitoring cash low requirements and optimising its eash retumn on investments.

Expasure to liguidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturitics of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest
payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements:

31 March 2024 (Rs in Millions)

Contractual Cash flows

R AN Taotal % Do 6-12 months 1-2 Years 2-5 Years M thians
less years
Non-derivative financial liabilitics
Loans from related parties 236,90 156.90 - - 11.38 - 243,52
Ootionaily convertible prefercnee shares 245.67 245.67 - - - - 24567
Trade payables 1.16 .16 .16 - - - ¥
Oither finsincial liabilities 2103 21.03 21,03 - - -
524,76 524,76 22,19 - 11.38 - 491,19

31 March 2023

{Rsin Millions)

Carrying Amount

Contraciual Cash flows

6 months or

More than 5

Total 6-12 months 1-2 Years 2-5 Years
less yeurs

Non-derivative financial liahilities
Loans from related parties 243,52 245,52 - - - - 245.52
Optionaliy convertible preference shares 240.00 240.00 - - - - 240.00
Trade payables 221 221 2.21 - - - -
Other financial labilities 3.04 3.04 3.04 . i K

490.77 490.77 5.25 - - - 485,52

i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the Company’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk managernent is o manage and control market risk exposures within acceptahle parameters, while optimising
the: return,

liiterest rate risk
The Company adopts a policy of ensuring that between 80% and 90% of its inlerest rate risk exposure is at a fixed rate. This is achieved partly by entering into fixed-rate
instruments and partly by borrowing at-a floating rate instruments.
Exposure fo interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as teporied to management is as follows:
{Rs in Millions)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Fixed rate instruments
Finaneial assets ]
Finaneial liabilities 256.90

ta F3
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29, Assets and liabilitics relating to employee benefits

For details about the related employee benefit expenses, see Note 23,

The Company operates the following post-employment defined benetit plan:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least
five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months, based on the
rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned. This defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, currency risk, interest

rate risk and market (imvestment) risk

A, Funding
The gratuity plan is unfunded.

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset) liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components.

Recanciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

(Rs in Millions)

Liability 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year k35 0.99
Benetits paid - =
Current service cost 0.12 0.1l
Past service cost # -
Interest expenses 0.10 0.08
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income

- changes in demographic assumptions 2 -

- changes in financial assumptions 0.05 (0.03)

- experience adjustments (L01) 0.20
Balance at the end of the year 1.61 1.35

Expense recognised in profit or loss

(Rs in Millions)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Current service cost 0.12 0.1
Past service ¢ost " o
Interest expenses 0.10 0.08
Interest income = N
0.22 0,19

Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

(Rs in Millions)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Actuarial (gain) loss on defined benefit obligation
Return on plan assets excluding interest income

0.04

0.17

0.04

0.17

C. Defined henefit obligation

i Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate 7.23% 7.52%
Future salary growth 4.00% 4.00%
Withdrawal Rate 2.00% 2.00%
Mortality table (as % of IALM (2012-14) Ult. Mortality Table) 100.00% 100.00%,

if, Sensitivity analvsis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined

benefit obligation by the amounts shown below

(Rs in Millions)

31 March 2024

31 Mareh 2023

Inerease Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 146 1.79 1.22 1.50
Puture salary growth (1% movement) 1.80 1.44 1,52 1.21
Withdrawal rate (1% movement) 1.66 1,56 1.40 1.30

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
g 3 I ki

assumpt ions show,

Liability for [eave encashment as on 31 March 2024 is Rs.0.73 Millions (previous year: Rs. (1.72 Millions). Caost of Leave encashment liability 1s a non funded

Irability.
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30. Related parties

A, List of related parties and nature of relationship

S. No. Name of the related party Nature of relationship
I |Ramky Infrastructure Limited Holding Company
2 |Elsamex SA Enterprise where KMP have significant inlluence
3 |Ramky Estates and Farms Limited Group company
4 IMr. D. Krishna Reddy Chief Financial Officer
5 [Mr.Ankush Lahoti Company Secretary
6 | Dr. S, Ravi Kumar Reddy Independent Director
7 | Mr, V. Murahari Reddy Independent Director

B. Transactions with related parties during the year

(Rs in Millions)

8. No. |Name of the related party

Nature of transactions

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

I |Ramky Infrastructure Limited Unsecured loan received back .52 1.81
Unsecured Loan Taken 11.38 -
Interest income 0.02 0.22
Interest Expenses (.30 -
Unsecured loan repaid - 173.24
2 |Ramky Estates and Farms Limited Interest repaid - 18.76
Interest expense 19.70 23.20
|3 Elsamex 5.A Liabilities no longer required - 1552
4 |Mr. D. Krishna Reddy Salary 1.04 0.90
5 [Mr. Ankush Lahoti Salary 0.30 .30
6 | Dr. 8. Ravi Kumar Reddy Sitting fees 0.15 0.18
7 |Mr, V. Murahari Reddy Sitting fces 0.15 0,18

C, Balunces outstanding at the end of the year

(Rs in Millions)

5. No. | Name of the related party

Nature of transactions

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1 Ramky Infrastructure Limited Equity share capital 200.00 200,00
Preference share eapital 250.00 250.00
Unsecured loan given - 1.52
Interest Pavable 0.27 E
Unsecured loan taken 11,38 -
Interest recievable - 0.03
2 |Ramky Estates and Farms Limited Unsecieee \oum Gy ik 245,52
Interest payable 20.76 3.04
3 |Mr. D, Krishna Reddy Salary payable 0.11 0.07
- Mr. Ankush Lahoti Salary pavable 0.02 002
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32 Service concession arrangement

REX
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The Company has entered into a service concession arrangement with Hyderabad Metropolitan Development Authority (HMDA) for design, construction, development, finance,
operation and maintenance of eight lang aceess controlled expressway under Phase-HA programme as an extension of Phase-1 of ORR 1o Hyderabad City, in the state of Andhra
Pradesh, {or the package from Tukkuguda 1o Shamshabad from Km 121,00 to Km 133,63 on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) (Annuity) Basis for a period of fifteen (15)
vears from commencement date i.e; 27 November 2007 including construction period ol twe vears and six months, The construction activitics were completed on 26 November
2009, The SCA does not provide for any renewal of this arrangement.

The Company has received cash support by way of grant for a sum of INR 663.02 Millions (20% of the total project cost). The Company has right to receive an an nuity payment
of INR 315.00 Millions on hall yearly basis from the grantor. Accordingly, the Company has recognised a linancial asset. The € ‘ompany is also entitled to receive bonus for
carly completion of the project or incur reduction in annuity for delayed completion of the project, as the case may be. Al the end of the concession period the wll road will
become the property of the grantor and the Company will have no further involvement in its operation or maintenance,

During the previous year the preoject period was completed, hence the Company has recorded no revenue during the year. Financial asset of Rs. 584,48 Millions and bonus
annuity receivable of Rs. 315.00 Millions has been recognised as at 31st March 2024,

As the Company is not in the possession of information regarding dues to the Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises, the same has not been furnished herewith,

Balances in respect of Creditors, receivables and various Advanees are subject to confirmation from the respective parties.

Previous figures have been regrouped / rearranged where ever necessary to confirm the current year classification.

Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities:

Since the company running in losses and does not meet the critiera mentiond as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules therein, Corporate Social Responsibility
(USR] Provisions are not applicable. Hence, Company is not required to spend any amount towards CSR.

The Company had executed the Project for Hyderabad Metropolitan Development Authority (HMDA). As at 31st March 2024, the Other non-current financial assets includes

the following amounts fram HMDA towards various retentions:
(Rs. in Millions)

Particulars Amount
|. Bonus Annuity 315.00
2. Retention in First annuity 197.75
3. Retention in Fourth annuity 161.63
4. Retention in Eighth annuity 4.60
3. Retention in Twenty fitst annuity 121.54

During the year 2013-14 the Coinpany had sent Arbitration Notice to HMIA for recovery of the receivables and hath the Company and HMDA appointed Arhitrators. Arbitral
Award pronounced on 18.06.2018 in favour of the company. HMDA filed application before District Commercial courl under section 34 & 36 of A & C Act seeking setside of
the award pronounced by Arbitral tribunal and for a stay on the Award respectively. The company filed reply for the saime and argued on their application seeking stay on the
Award, Hon'ble court was convineed with the Arguments of the Company and allowed the application and granted conditional stay on the Award subject to HMDA depositing
50% of the Award Value in the Court. With in 60 days from the date of the order i.e, 18.03.2019, HMDA did not depasit the sum as ordered an instead preferred to challenge
the Grder of the District court by filing an appeal in the Hon'ble High Cowrt, Now the matter is pending before Hon'ble Migh Court for the state ol Telangana, Hyderabad.

Challenging the Arbitral Award, HGCL filed an application Uls 34 of the A& Act belore the District Commercial Court at Hyderabad secking setting aside of the Award along
with an application u/s 36 of the A&C Act seeking a stay on the Award.

The Company has liled an Execution Petition before the District Commercial Court at Hydersbad seeking attachment of the moveable properties and bank Accounts of the
HGCL for recovery of the decretal amount. HGCL filed CRP before Hon'ble High Court and got 4 stay on Execution proceedings, Both parties argued the matter before Hon'kle
court and Hon'ble High court disposed the matter and directing that time for payment of the amount as per the impugned order dated 18032016 passed by commercial court s
extended for a period of three months {rom Sth March’2024. And also directed to decide the objections preferred by HIMDA under section 34 of A&C Act, 1996 expeditiously
within an outer limit of four months. HMDA arguments commenced and completed. REHRRL commenced their arguments: and next date posted to 10th June2024

During the previous year HMDA deducted an amount of Rs.121.38 Millions towards damages. The company approached HMDA, that the imposition of the said damages is not
in consonance with the agreement and sought for amicable resolution of the disputes in accordance with elause 39.1(h) of the Agreement, regarding the imposition of the said
damages. The company filed Application under Seetion 9 of the Arbitration and Coneiliation Act, 1996 filed before the Hon'ble Additional Chief Judge Cum Comnmercial
Court, Uity Civil Court at Hyderabad, issued notice in accordance with clause 39.2 of the Concession agreement tor resolving the dispute and appointed Arbitrator, HMDA has
alsa appeinted Arbitrator and both the Nominee Arbitrators have 1o appoint the third Arbitraior who shall act as Presiding Arbitrator.

HGCL filed CRP hefore Hon'ble High conrt Lo setting aside of the order dated 26.01.2023 passed by Arbitral Tribunal in application under section 32 of the A&C Aet, 1996,
company filed reply. However matter got disposed inlavour of HGCL on 22.04.2023 and the same is under challenge by the company betore the Hon'ble Supreme Caourt of India
vide & Special Leave Petition, The appeal was listed on 14.05.2024 and the next date ol hearing is vet to be notilied.

3. Contingent labilities and commitments: (to the extent not provided for):

(INR in Millions)
Asat Asat
Ist March 2024 | 31st March 2023

Particutars

i, isputed Income Tax demands 884 £
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39. Other Statutory Information:

a} The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property,

b) Transactions with struck of U companies: Nil

¢) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

d) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the linancial year,

¢) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including forcign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall: directly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)

or

The Company have not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall: (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identitied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

f} The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

g} The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

As per our report atlached of even date,
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